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For the period ended 31 December 2008

ABN Previous ccrresponding period
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Resulis for announcement to the market

$A million
Revenue Up 11.4% 1o 2,805.0
Underlying profit after tax Up 41,65 to 871.¢
Profit atier tax attributable to members Up 358.3% to 1.650.1
| Met profit for the peried atiributable to members Up 360.3%  to 1,660.1
E Amount pcr Frankced amount pCl’
' Dividends security secunity at 30% &x
| ‘
| Interim Dividends .
Ordinary securities 22.0¢ 22.0¢
Preference securities $3.3365 $3.3365
Final Dividends
Ordinary securities 20.0¢ 20.0¢
Prafaranra sactirities $2 QRS $2 9QRG
Record date for determining entitlements to the dividends: 3 March 2009
B L L LT T e S B B e e et R PN L __.‘.lf,l_.l
: Thiw 200060 Conimvlidalwd Fhoanoclial Regoet, Sonmtiterrlary  wis Mootz ased

Mandia Dalaaea Adatad 10 Caheiiary ONNA0 farm part Af and ehnnld o raad in
conjunction with this Preliminary Final Report (Appendix 4E).



Santos Ltd
Financial Commentary to Appendix 4E

The fellowing cemments should be read in conjunstien with the Comaslidatsed
Firmanrial RapAart fAr thae Vaar andad 21 Naramhbhar 9000

1. Consolidated Income Statement

Net Profit for the perlod {$1,650, | milllon, up by $1,290.8 militon +352.3%)

Nel profit afler inwonne laa ncieased by $1,290.8 raillivn 1o $1,830. 1 miilliure.

Earninys pen shaie ot 2008 ihiviedsed Ly 394.4% v 272.9 vonlds,

Undoriying Meefit aftor tan for tho poricd ($C71.¢ million, up by G1C7.0 millien  14.89%)

Tha racanailiatinn of inderlying pentit afiar tav iz ac fndloane

2008 2007
Smillion Smillion

Net profit after tax 1,.650.1 3593
Nel gain on sale of 40% interest in Fairview and

Roma assets to PETRONAS {1,188.2) -
Capitel lnsses not previoosly brooughh 1o Jecennl {P7.%%) -
bopainmenl ol il cond yas woscla 102.7
Insurance recoveries {32.8) -
Remediation and related costs of the Moonie to

Nrislare pipeslioe incivernts 22 2060,
Gain on sale of available-ior-sale investments (0.2) (33.4)

Net gain on redetermination cf unilised Bayu-Undan

flela - (32.8)
Incraaca in proavvicion for patential ramadiatinn and

related costs related to the Sidoarjo mudflow

incideni - 8.0
Net loss on sale of discontinued operations - 67.7
Underlying profit after 1ax 571.6 403.8

Arn analycic nf tha crhanga in nat prnfit after tav and ondarlying prafit aftar tav ic ast ANt [ater in thisg
renort.

Dividends

During the year Santos Ud paid fully franked dividends ot $248.3 million on ordinary shares and

$38.0 millien on redeemable convertible preference shares for a total of $286.3 million
{2007: $268.6 million),

Trie RDircotara hawve Aoolorood o final dividena fore 2008 of 20 oot mor arcdimorsye ohoro, fully—dranbes e
(20T 20 voenis, lullty lanhed) and a preferornitial, non curmalative fully lrached dividend of $£2.39203 por

recdeemable converiblepreference share, payable sn 31 March 2009,
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Product Sales ($2,761.8 million, up by $273.3 million +11.0%)

The increased revenue reflects higher average prices ($410.3 million) and lower AUD/USD exchange
rates ($64.1 million) partially ofiset by 2.4 mmboe {4.1%) decrease in sales volumes {$201.1 million).

Crude oil sales of $1,150.6 million were $113.8 million higher prirarily due to an increase in USD
base oil prices {$209.3 million} and lower average AUD/USD exchange rates ($39.0 million). This is
partially ofiset by a 13.3% lower sales volumes ($134.5 million) arising from lower production from the
Mutineer-Exeter field and the timing of shipments from other Olishore Australia fields.

Condensate/naphtha sales of $321.2 million decreased by $8.9 million due to a 18.9% decrease in

sales volumes {$63.2 millien) arising predominantly from the lower Cooper Basin production and from
raducad lohn Rrankes praduction reculting fram tha Varanue leland incidant  This was partially affest
by increased base USD prices ($435.4 million) and lower AUD/USLC exchange rates ($10.9 million).

Liquefied petroleum gas ("LPG") revenues increased by $60.9 million 1o $238.4 millien due to
i gased base USD prives {$51.5 milliuny aid luwer AUDIUSD exchiaige 1dles ($8.1 inilliure and
Diinw vanialices i sales vuluimes Zonia (B31.3 arillivig.

Sales gas and ethane revenues of $871.8 million were 3.0% higher than 2007. Sales Gas and
Ethane pricea in 2008 averaged $:3.98/CJ compared with $3.78/CJ in 2007 ($32.6 million). This
reflects the positive impact of ethane volumes sold above MDQ in the second half of 2008 and

sscolatien ot eentracted Avsctralian mas prises,. Lewer sales velurmas {(0.2 rmmbec or £€.0 millien)
were largely due 1¢ The shul-in 01 Faruricia Baleen and jower Jonn Brookes proguction resuiling rom
tho Varamue lelnnd ineidont affeat by highor Malen and @ongo sontribaatinne and Fighar QM goe

dermand.

Liquefied Natural Gas ("LNG") revenues increased by $81.8 million predominantly due 1o higher base
USD prices {73% or $73.5 million) and lower AUD/USD exchange rates ($6.1 million). Marginally
higher production volumes {$2.2 million) also contributed to the favourable variance.

Othor Incomo {$1,721.6 million, up by $£1,722.6 millicn 111,235.5%)

Other incame af $21.724 8 million inchidan 2 gain an anla nf Cosl Sanrm Cina-nnnnta tn PETROMAS
(¢1.Q07.4 rmitlionm), Srewuwarmes vescusriss im reopact of dhe Qanjar Dﬁﬁj; Q;denvje rudilows end Ao

Moome — Bnstiane Fipehng Algesierincident, and othermiscellanebus asset and invesiinent sales. = -

Cost of Sales ($1,422.6 million, up by $87.7 million +6.6%)

» Production Costs
* Field production costs of $543.4 million were $34.6 million higher than in 2007. Volume
effects added $19.9 million 10 production costs and can be attributed to:

~ New sources of production ($19.9 million} rellecting full yvear production from the
Oyong, and Sangu fields partially offset by the abandonment of Elang Kakatua

Cart imAaraacne addad $74 7 milline te r\rnrlnniinh Anrte ThaeA incraAamsne primnvily roven 1l3ms
fromm higher Cooper Gas field expenses; higher Cooper Qil production optimisation and well

repair program and increased trucking caosts relating to the Moonie to Brisbane pipzline
fallurc | highor RMutlineer Cheter worlwyor actlvity; and a highor proe rata ohars ot Yaranus

Island cosis attributed to John Brockes production throughput.

* Product stocks increased by $28.9 million during 2008 due to the planned increase in
Cooper Basin and EQ Gas inventories ($20.4 million) and timing of lifting's in Cooper Qil
{$3.2 millian), Jehn Brookes ($4.7 million) and Asia Growth Assets ($0.6 million).

« Pipellne Tarffs, Tolls and Other (384, 1 alilon, up $13.2 millon +22.17%)
Pipeline tariffs, tolls and other expenses are $15.2 million higher in 2008 predominantly due to

LRALLEAAIR At B ramariatiam anatn (LU mdian), hugior Chlinonatnemel gan thedauigihpot o tihee
Cpic pipaling tw Dallera (4.7 millica), highee oet thirad parcty il pecocosineg dolla acioivgg oo e
BADDD Clh o s (q}ﬂo |||“li\.v.|) crnd Uis basgitivii wfl g Oilbaool Planl oo s Mioduc i Toeility o w

Talling tacility in 31 30D {£2.7 millian). Thiz is partially offect by lower rescervation sharges for
the Dallera to Wallumbilla pipetine ($4.2 million} and Iéwer Casino pracduction (§27 millien).
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« Depletion
Deplaton ot $101,. 7 mithon is $29.6 million lower than in 2007, Depleton decreased
predominantly cue to lower production ($61.1 million}, principally in Mutineer Exeter ($25.6

millir\n) p"ﬂrlr"l:\ R:uln.c-n (4:1’-19 rmlllr‘\n) :mri 1hn f‘nnnnr Racin ("-\Q mlllmn) Theea

= e
: b [ Y [N
fi, tre dovo!npmont r‘m;m p:mlr'ularly tar tha r:\por Magin
Thu docruwmew i doplothen wiag fuw e uifeol by Higgl oo Joploduwn © wluargon Tn Sywing (%13
[ |I..-...\ -...;J Cmimsns s /PO A il emmas 47 5.—.-‘.-.. N Y | A O 5 15 T4 1= e, -l
\ . C mAme (e, - ! - . ' - mAns, N~ - .t o mAaa )

= Depreciatiun

Nenreciatinn nf $2R4 ] millinn ie $RA 7 millinn lmaer than in 2007 principatly fos 0
+  Volume effects :
+  Lower Mutineer Exeter production{$14.5 million reduction)

¢ Transfer of Sangu depreciation to depletion ($2.9 million reduction).
+ Rate aftants-

- Lcrwwesr Clono e Liaasn clepreaation (b 7 it .). i=fmienld o a o easseEsETIREr of
- mmmd e e T AN LD ki m wbleen e ] e e L o S P
— | I (a1 ¥l l.,-. S S S ¥ Y o S L R F T S S LT P | L P . - ' L}

Amne] hves 00 2000 Al sale Gl nileresl o r‘r'Tn(')hlA")
L t.ower JMP f MBP depf9C|a"Oﬂ aue 10 write-off of MIBPF asset in zuu7 (&) 2.9 miliion).

- Luvwer Udopiouialiviee v Vicluian assels (P135.0 |||i||iu||?. Minatily iclatos v luwe
wrnits ol peeductivn dopreciativin cosveiated  with  incrcascd  rescrvea o
Cmaimedl lemeypMatberby and Hhe avapennion of ket Plant dapeaointion n /HO00.

» Higher Elang depreciation ($8.8 million) resulting from upward revision cf restoration

Anantnlliahiliiae At vraar AanAd anAd ~heraAiiand gt Adaurs A fAlA e s A
producing
- LI PR Tty ) JES P U S 10 B T 1 ) S o [ UV iy UG - TS PP S S

botweoor  subcurtacal/eurtace [impact osticot by cowrecponding _decrease o
depietialiving

= Lower dapreciation acroee other aroae ($0.8 million}.
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Preliminary Final Report under ASX Listing Rule 4.3A

For tho poriod ondod 21 Docombor 2000

ABN

Previous corresponding pericd

| 80007550823 | |

31 December 2007

0

Resulis for announcement to the market

$A millicn
Revenue Up 11.4% 1o 28050
Underlying profit after tax Up 41.6% 1o 571.6
Profit after tax atiributiable to members Up 359.3% to 1,650.1
Net profit for the period aftributable to members Up 359.3% to 1.650.1
Amount per Franked amount per
Dividends sacurity security at 30% tax
Interim Dividends
Crdinary securities 22.0¢ 22.0¢
Preterence securities $3.3365 $3.3365
Final Dividends
Ordinary securities 20.0¢ 20.0¢c
Prelerence securities ' $2.9989 $2.9989

Record date for determining entitlements to the dividends:

3 March 2009

This report is based on financial statements which have been audited.

The 2008 Consolidated Financial Report, Commentary on Results and
Media Release dated 19 February 2009 form part of and should be read in
conjunction with this Preliminary Final Report (Appendix 4E).
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Santos Ltd
Financial Commentary to Appendix 4E

The following comments should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Report for the Year ended 31 December 2008

1. Consolidated Income Statement

Net Profit for the period ($1,650.1 miilion, up by $1,290.8 million +359,3%)

Net profit after income tax increased by $1,290.8 million to $1,650.1 mitlion.

Earnings per share for 2008 increased by 394.4% to 272.9 cents.

Underlying Profit after tax for the period ($571.6 million, up by $167.8 million +41.6%)

The reconciliation of underlying profit after tax is as follows:

2008 2007
$million $million

Net profit after tax 1,650.1 359.3
Netl gain on sale of 40% interest in Fairview and

Rama assets tc PETRONAS (1,188.2) -
Capital losses not previously broughnt o account (27.9) -
Impairment of oil and gas assets 139.7 -
Insurance recoveries 32.8) -
Remediation and related costs of the Moonie to

Brisbhane pipeline incidents 221 26.6
Change in fair value of embedded derivatives 8.8 8.4
Gain on sale of available-tor-sale investments (0.2) (33.4}
Net gain on redetermination of unitised Bayu-Undan

field - {32.8)
Increase in provision for petential remediation and

related costs related 1o the Sidoarjo mudflow ,

incident - 8.0
Net loss on sale of discontinued operations - 67.7
Underlying prolit after tax ' 571.8 403.8
An analysis of the change in net profit after tax and underlying profit after tax is set out later in this
report,
Dividends

During the year Santos ttd paid fully franked dividends of $248.3 million on ordinary shares and
$38.0 million on redeemable ceonvertible preference shares for a total of $288.3 million
{2007: $268.6 million).

The Directors have declared a final dividend for 2008 of 20 cents per ordinary share, fully franked
{2007: 20 cents, fully iranked) and a preferential, non cumulative tully franked dividend of $2.9989 per
redeermable convertible preference share, payable on 31 March 2009.
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Product Sales ($2,761.8 million, up by $273.3 million +11.0%)

The increased revenue reflects higher average prices ($410.3 million) and lower AUD/USD exchange
rates {$64.1 million) parially ofiset by 2.4 mmboe {4.1%) decrease in sales volumes {$201.1 mitlion}.

Crude oil sales of $1,150.8 million were $113.8 million higher primarily due to an increase in USD
base oil prices {$209.3 million} and lower average AUD/USD exchange rates ($39.0 million). This is
partially offset by a 13.3% lower sales volumes ($134.5 million) arising from lower production from the
Mutineer-Exeter field and the timing of shipments from ather Offshore Australia fields.

Condensate/naphtha sales of $321.2 million decreased by $8.9 million due 10 a 18.9% decrease in
sales volumes ($63.2 million) arising predominantly fram the lower Cooper Basin production and feom
reduced John Brookes production resulting frorm the Varanus Island incident. This was panially offset
by increased base USD prices ($43.4 million} and lower AUD/USD exchange rates ($10.9 million).

Liquefied petroleum gas ("L.PG"} revenues increased by $60.9 million to $238.4 million due to
increased base USD prices ($51.5 million) and lower AUD/USD exchange rates ($8.1 million} and
minor variances in sales volurmes / mix ($1.3 million).

Sales gas and ethane ravenues of $871.8 million were 3.0% higher than 2007. Sales Gas and
Ethane prices in 2008 averaged $3.93/GJ compared with $3.78/GJ in 2007 ($32.6 million). This
reflects the positive impact of ethane volumes sold above MDQ in the second half of 2008 and
escalation of contracted Australian gas prices. Lower sales volumes (0.3 mmboe cor $6.9 million)
were largely due 10 the shut-in of Patricia Baleen and lower John Brookes production resulting from
the Varanus tsland incident offset by higher Malec and Sangu contributions and higher CSG gas
demand.

Liquefied Natural Gas ("LNG") revenues increased by $81.8 million predominantly due 1o higher base
USD prices (73% or $73.5 million) and lower AUD/USD exchange rates ($6.1 million). Marginally
higher production volurmes ($2.2 million} also contributed 1o the favourable variance.

Other Income ($1,734.6 million, up by $1,722.5 million +14,235.5%)

Other income of $1,734.6 million includes a gain on sale of Coal Seam Gas assetls to PETRONAS
{$1.697.4 million), insurance recoveries in respecl of the Banjar Panji Sidoarjo mudflow and the
Moonie ~ Brisbane Pipeline Algester incidert, and other miscellaneous asset and investment sales.

Cost of Sales ($1,422.6 million, up by $87.7 million +6.6%)

+ Production Costs
» Field production costs of $543.4 milion were $94.6 million higher than in 2007. Volume
effects added $19.9 million to production costs and can be attributed to:

2 New sources of production ($19.9 million) reflecting full year production from the
Ovyong, and Sangu fields partially offset by the abandonment of Elang Kakatua

Cost increases added $74.7 million 1o production costs. These increases primarily resulted
from higher Cooper Gas lield expenses; higher Cooper Qil production optimisation and well
repair program and increased trucking costs relating to the Moonie to Brisbane pipeline
failure: higher Mutineer Exeter workaver activity; and a higher pro-rata share of Varanus
Island costs attributed to John Brookes production throughput.

« Product stocks increased by $28.9 million during 2008 due 10 the planned increase in
Cooper Basin and EQ Gas inventories ($20.4 million} and timing of lifting's in Cooper Qil
{$3.2 million). John Brookes ($4.7 million) and Asia Growth Assets (30.8 million).

+ Pipeline Tariffs, Tolls and Other ($84.1 million, up $15.2 million +22.1%)
Pipeline tarilfs, tolls and other expenses are $15.2 million higher in 2008 predominanily due to
inclusion of MBP remediation costs ($10.9 million), higher Queensiand gas throughput in the
Epic pipeline to Ballera ($4.7 million), higher net third party oil processing tolls arising from the
MBP closure ($2.8 million) and the transition of the Orbost Plant from a Production facility to a
Tolling facility in Q1 2008 ($2.7 million). This is partially ofiset by lower reservation charges for
the Ballera to Wallumbilla pipeline ($4.2 million) and lower Casino production {$2.7 million),
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Royalties and Excise ($100.5 million, up $26.4 million +35.6%)
Raoyalties are $26.4 million higher in 2008 principally due to higher sales revenue and timing of

expenses ($23.1 million} and a refund of Legendre excise payment in the first half of 2007
{$3.3million).

Third Party Gas Purchases ($62.0 million, up $41.9 million +208.5%)

Third party gas purchases are $41.9 million higher than in 2007 primarily as a result of
optunising the group's Eastern Australia gas supply portiolio {($22.0 million) and from higher gas
trading activities (purchases for resale) ($18.4 million).

Depreciation and Depletion ($661.5 million, down by $95.3 million -12.6%)

Depletion

Depleticn ot $401.7 million is $29.6 million lower than in 2007. Depletion decreased
predominanily due to lower praduction ($61.1 million), principally in Mutineer Exeter ($29.6
million). Patricia Baleen {$13.8 million). and the Cooper Basin (3.9 million). These
decreases were parially offset by higher depletion rates ($32.6 million), principally in the
Cooper Basin ($11.5 million), Mutineer Exeter ($10.7 million) and Bayu Undan ($3.9
million), The benetit of positive reserve revisions was outweighed by the impact of higher
future develocpment costs, panicularly for the Cooper Basin,

The decrease in depletion was further offset by higher depletion charges in Oyong ($1.3
rillion) and Sangu ($8.4 million). resulting from a full year of production in 2008, compared
with part year in 2007 {Oyong began producing in 2007; Sangu was acquired in 2007}

Depreciation
Depreciation of $253.8 miltion is $65.7 million lower than in 2007 principally due ta.
« Volume effects ;
. Lower Mutineer Exeler production {($14.5 million reduction)

. Transfer of Sangu depreciation to depletion {($2.9 million reduction).
=« Rate effects:

. Lower Cooper Basin depreciation ($34.7 million) related 1o a reassessment of
asset lives in 2008 based on estimated decommissioning dates.

. Lower GLNG depreciation {$0.6 million) primarily reiated to a reassessment ol
asset lives in 2008 and sale of interest to PETRONAS.

e Lower JMP/MBP depreciation due to write-off of MBP asset in 2007 ($12.9 million).

s Lower depreciation on Victorian assets ($15.5 million). Primarily relates 1o lower

units  of production depreciation associated wilh increased reserves on
e DI TN yll\l¢ltlcl WY cdl iU U1 D2UDHTID T W ) LS rial L HERA [ ST S 1L WL RN T i WL

« Higher Elang depreciation ($8.8 million) resulting from upward revision of restoration
assets/liabilities at year end and subsequent write-down as field is no longer
producing

= Higher Sampang depreciation ($7.5 million) due to reclassification of cost pool
between subsurface/surface (impact offset by corresponding decrease to
depreciation)

= Lower depreciation across other areas ($0.9 million).
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Selling and Corporate Administrative Expenses ($117.0 million, up by $27.4 million +30.6%)

Selling and corporate administration expenses were $27.4 million higher than in 2007. This was
primarily due to SA communily sponsorship, a sell insured deductible relating to the Varanus Island
incident. delined benefit provision impacts and higher growth project costs.

Change in Fair Value of Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
($12.5 million loss, 2007: $11.2 miilion loss +5.0%)

A $12.5 million loss has been recognised in 2008 for the revaluation of derivatives embedded in sales
contracts.

Impairment of Oil and Gas Assets ($216.2 million, 2007: $nil)

The 2008 review of the net fulure cash flows (discounted) of cash-generating units identified the
following assets which required impairments:
s Ballera Plart ($44.6 mittion)
Patricia Baleen ($22.1 millian}
Sampang {Oyong) ($57.8 millian}
Jeruk {$70.6 million)
Sangu ($20.0 miflion)
*  USA - Gulf Coast {Couger Wells) ($1.1 miflion).

.In addition to the above. there was also a minor impairment of debiors ($0.4 million).

Exploration and Evaluation Expensed ($179.0 million down by $55.8 million -23.8%)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure expensed in 2008 was $179.0 million {2007 $234.8 millian).
The amount expensed relates to studies. seismic and unsuccesstul wells primarily in olishore
Australia. Vietnarn, indonesia. Bangladesh, Kyrgyzstan, Egypt and the Cooper Basin, Costs incutred
in the evalyation of new ventures and exploration opportunities that have either not met Sanios’
internal investment criteria or not resulted in a successful bid have alsg been written off.

Financial Expenses ($153.7 million, up by $1.0 million +0.7%)

Interest expense has increased marginally due to higher average gross debt (38.1%) partially offset
by lower interest rates. The weighted average interest ratle for the Group (allowing for interest rate
swap contracts) as at 31 Decernber 2008 was 5.7% compared to 6.6% in 2007,

Income Tax Expense ($768.4 million, up by $572.7 million +292.6%)

The effeclive income tax rate is 30.3% which {s higher than the 2007 effective tax rate of 27.2%.
Factors varying the effective tax rate from ihe prime facie tax rate of 30% include the benefits of
recognition of capital losses and prior period over accrual, and ofiset by the increased tax effect of
foreign operations due to foreign exchange conversions and exploration expenditure not tax affected.

Royalty Related Taxation ($114.7 million, down by $28.9 million -29.9%)
Royalty related taxation reduced as a result of lower petroleum resource rent tax, due to reduced

cash flows from Mutineer Exeter and higher transierrable exploration, and partly offset by increased
additional profits tax paid to East Timor in relation 1o Bayu-Undan,
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2. Consolidated Balance Sheet
Overview

The Group's net assets increased by $1.385.2 million (44.8%) during 2008 to $4.476.3 million
principally due to proceeds received from the sale of 40% interest in the Gladstone LNG project,
offset by anincrease in current tax liabilities and the non-current restoration provisions.

Assets

Current assets of $2,483.4 million were $1,427.1 million higher than in 2007 predorminantly due to
cash received from the sale of 40% interest in the Giladstone LNG project {($2.074.0 million), cross
currency swaps (§59.2 million), higher driling and maintenance stock in Third Party Operated
Ventures and to support CSG drilling programme $50.2 million partially offset by repayment of debt
($245.9 million) and higher capital expenditure ($321.9 million).

Non-current assets were $7,318.5 million compared to $6,263.9 million at the end of 2007, an
increase of $1.054.6 million, due to higher cross currency and interes! rate swaps ($259.1 million)
and 2008 capital expenditure.

Capital expenditure in 2008 for exploration, delineation and development, capitalised increases in
restoration provisions and acguisitions of off and gas assets amounted 1o $1,883.8 millicn, of which
$179.0 million was expensed in 2008 as unsuccessiul exploration. These increases were offset in
part by depreciation and depletion charges of $663.9 million.

Current Liablilities

Current liabilities of $1,352.6 million were $428.3 million higher mainly due to an increase in current
tax liabilities of $357.5 millien and higher deferred income $43.2 million relating to access to Barrow
Island and John Brookes Take or Pay gas.

Net Debt

Net debt (borrowings. net of cash on hand and value of financial derivatives used to hedge debt} of
$506.0 million was $1,332.7 million lower than at the end of 2007 primarily as a result of proceeds
from the sale of 40% interest in GLNG and fully underwriting the 2008 dividend partially ofiset by
higher capital expenditure in 2008.

The group's net debt / net debt plus equity ratio has decreased from 37.3% in 2007 to 10.2% at the
end of 2008.

Equity

Retained earnings increased by $1,101.6 million 1o $2,138.0 milllon at year end. The increasse
primarily reflects the 2008 net profit afler tax of $1,650.1 million less dividends paid during the year of
$286.3 million and the fully franked dividend component of the share buy-back {($245.0 million).

Issued capital at 31 December 2008 was $2,530.8 million, an increase of $199.2 million and
comprised:

«  584.8 million fully paid ordinary shares (2007, 586.0 million),
« 0.1 million ordinary shares paid to 1 cent (2007: 0.1 miliion), and

e« 6.0 million redeemable convertible preterence shares (2007: 6.0 million).
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3. Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Operating Cash Flows ($1,473.2 million inflow, increase of $259.3 million +21.4%)

Higher operating cash flows are a result of increased sales due to higher product prices, cffset by
lower volumes and increased payments to suppliers,

Investing Cash Flows ($444.3 million inflow, 2007: $1,265.5 million outflow)

Capital expenditure payments increased by $313.9 million frern $1,257.7 million in 2007 to
$1,571.6 million in 2008 largely as a result of the timing of the work program and related payments.

During 2008, the Company made deferred consideration payments of $7.5 million in relation to the
following controlled entities acquired during prior years:

* Bronco Energy Pty Limited, and

s  (CJSC South Petroleurn Company.

In 2008 the Company received proceeds from the sale of non-current assets of $2,080.0 million
{2007: $8.7 miltion). This included the sale of Coal Seam Gas assets to PETRONAS.

Financing Cash Flows ($584.8 million outflow, 2007: $54.3 million inflow)

The group paid $251.2 million of fully franked dividends during the year (2007: $217.0 million) and
made net repayments of $252.2 million {2007: $479.5 million net drawdowns} resulting in a decrease
in the group's borrowings.  Proceeds from issues of ordinary shares totalled $220.5 million
{2007: $93.8 miltion),

Santos Ltd undertook an off-market buy-back of its ordinary shares. purchasing these shares for
$301.9 millien {2007: $302.0), including transaction costs.
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SANTG LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR T YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

COBOLIDATED ° CONSCLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Continuing Ccontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
Note $million $million $million $millicn Smillion $million $million $million
Product sales 3 27618 . 27618 24584 301 2,488.5 8725 974.3
Cost of sales 4 (1.4228) - (1,422.6) (1.329.1) {5.8) {1.334.9) (520.7) (603.1)
Gross profit 1,339.2 - 1,338.2 1.129.3 243 1,153.6 3518 37Nz
Other revenue 3 432 - 432 ., 295 - 295 643 a3
Cther income 3 1,734.6 - 1,734 6 81.7 {69.6) 12.1 1.1 156
Cther expenses 4 {493 4) - (493.4) (317.8) {20.5) (3383} {210.6) 169.7
Operating profit/{loss) before net financing
cosls 2.623.6 - 2623.6 9227 (65.8} 836.9 206.6 1,457.8
Financial income 6 63.3 . 63.3 136 03 4.4 183.0 188.8
Financial expenses 6 (183.7) . {153.7} {152.7} - {152.7} {286.4) (284.4)
Net financing {costs)income {80.4) - {20.4) (139.1) 08 {138.3) {103.4) (105.8)
Profit/(loss) before tax 2533.2 - | 25332 783.6 {65.0) 7186 103.2 1,352.2
Income tax expense 7 {768.4} - {768.4) {195.1} {0.6) {185.7) (51.4) {50.1)
Royalty related taxation expense 7 {114.7) - (114.7) {163.6) - {163.8) {31.7} {31.9)
Total taxation expense (883.1) - (883.1) {358.7) (0.5 {359.3) {83.1) (82.0)
Net profit/{loss) for the period attributable 1o
equity holders of Santos Lid 1.650.1 - 1,650.1 424.9 (65.6) 359.3 20.1 1.270.2
Eamings per share attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of Santos Ltd (¢}
Basic earnings per chare 25 272.9 - 272.9 56.3 {11.1) 55.2
Diluted samings per share 25 261.7 . 261.7 66.0 {11.1) 54.9
Dividends per share (3)
Ordinary shares 24 042 £.40
Redeemable preference shares 24 6.3348 5.5864

The income statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to thiconsolidated financia! statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD

2008 2007 2008 2007
Note  $million $million $million $million

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,552.9 200.5 1,402.9 56.8
Trade and other receivables 10 581.6 607.4 693.9 208.5
inventories 11 2897 2415 136.0 115.9
Derivative financial instruments 12 59.2 8.9 - -
Total current assets 2,483.4 1.056.3 2,232 .8 381.2
Mon-current assets

Receivables 10 6.0 - 1,300.9 1,304.8
Derivative financial instruments 12 336.3 77.2 - -
Exploration and evaluation assets 13 427.5 332.4 42.7 15.5
Oil and gas assets 14 6,254.8 55844 1,777.7 1,650.1
Other land, buildings, plant and equipment 15 159.9 134.8 108.7 1G07.4
Available-for-sale financial assets 17 2.1 15.6 2.1 i5.6
Ciher financial assets 18 20.9 327 3,440.8 3.488.6
Deferred tax assets 19 111.0 86.8 - -
Total non-current assets 7.318.5 6.263.9 6.673.9 6.582.0
Total assets 9,801.9 7.320.2 8,906.7 5,963.2
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 20 604.8 609.7 723.0 625.1
Deferred income 55.2 12.0 1.8 1.7
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 21 98.6 103.1 0.6 -
Current tax liabilities 469.2 7.7 454 2 45.5
Provisions 22 116.7 112.4 65.8 65.1
Other current liabilities 23 8.1 15.4 - -
Total current hiabilities 1,352.6 924.3 1.245.4 738.4
Non-current liabilities

Deierred income 541 8.8 - -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 21 2,355.8 1,892.9 40854 2,478.2
Deferred tax liabilities 19 744 1 743.0 1340 109.2
Provisions 22 808.0 5436 3109 167.8
Other non-current liabilities 23 9.0 14.5 - -
Total non-current liabilities 3,971.0 3.302.8 4,530.3 2.755.2
Total liabilities 5,323.6 4227 .14 85,7757 3.493.8
Net assets 4,478.3 3.083.1 3,131.0 3,469.6
Equity

Issued capital 24 2,630.8 23316 2,530.8 2,331.6
Reserves 24 {188.8) (272.9) (2.0} 7.4
Retained earnings 24 2,136.0 1.034.4 602.2 1,130.6
Equity aftributable to equity holders of Santos

Lt 4.478.0 3.0583.1 3,137.0 3,469.6
Equity attributable to minority interest 24 0.3 - - -
Total equity 4,478.3 3.083.1 3,131.0 3,4695.6

The balance sheets are 10 be read in conjunction with the notes to the consoclidated financial statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTRCLLED ENTITIES
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Fax Server

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note  $million $million $million $rnillion
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 3.100.9 2.555.1 985.3 1,036.6
Dividends received - - - 874.0
Interest received 48.8 14.2 39.4 188.7
Overriding royalties received t4.8 147 242 22.0
Insurance proceeds received 12.5 18.3 - -
Pipeline tariffs and other receipts 64.3 83.0 41.4 2.0
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,089.0) (808.4) (401.7) (313.4)
Rovyalty and excise paid (102.2) (76.3) {47.5) (33.9)
Borrowing costs paid (133.5) {(128.4} (0.3) (280.6)
Income taxes paid (291.8) (384.6) (229.0) (231.1)
Royalty related taxes paid {151.6} (73.7)  (35.4) (22.4)
Net cash provided by operating activities 29 1,473.2 1.213.8 376 4 1,241.9
Cash tlows from investing activities
Paymenis for:
Exploration and evaluation expenditure {353.5) {(279.8) (84.7) {80.5)
Qil and gas assets expenditure {1,178.5}) {915.4) (358.9) (324.3)
Other land, buildings, plant and equipment (39.6) {58.5) (13.8) (47.7)
Acquisitions of oil and gas assets - {33.5) (0.7} -
Acquisitions of controlled entities (7.5) (75.7) (6.2} (4.5)
Restoration expenditure (54.9) (34.4) (2.6) 2.7
Share subscriptions in controlled entities - - - (245.2)
Advances to relaled entities (6.0} - - -
Other investing activities .35 3.5 3.2 (1.8)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 2.080.0 0.6 1.2 -
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued
operations:

Non-current assets - 8.1 - -
Controlled entities - 73.4 - -
Proceeds from disposal of ather investments 0.4 52.2 0.4 23.8

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities 4443  {1265.5) (462.1)  {682.9)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (251.2) {(217.0) {251.2) {217.0)
Proceeds from issues of ordinary shares 220.5 93.8 220.5 93.8
Off-market buy-back of ordinary shares (801.9) (302.0) {301.9) (302.0)
Repayments of borrowings {(752.2) (1,703.1) (0.7} -
Crawdown of barrowings 500.0 2.182.6 - -
Receipts from controlled entities - - 2,816.7 166.8
Payments to controlled entities - - {(1.052.6) {296.4)
Net cash (used inYprovided by financing

activities (584.8) 54.3 1,430.8 {554.8}
Net increase in cash 1,332.7 2.7 1,345.1 4.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the year 200.5 200.0 56.8 52.8
Effects of exchange rate changes on the

balances of cash held in foreign currencies 18.7 (2.2} 1.0 (0.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

year 9 1,552.9 200.5 1,402.9 56.8

The cash flow statements are 1o be read in conjunction with the notes to the consolidated financial

statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note $million $million $millilon  $million

Adjustment 1o retained earnings on initial

adoption of Interpretation 1003 Australian

FPetrofeum Resource Aent Tax - {136.1) - {51.3)
Adjustment to retained earnings on initial

adaption of Interpretation 11 AASB 2 Group and

Treasury Share Transactions - - - c.z2
Exchange dilierences on translation of foreign

operations 269.0 {101.8) - -
(Loss)/gain on foreign currency loans designated

as hedges of net investments in foreign

operations {177.0) 62.6 - -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial ’

assets, net of tax {9.3) 17.4 {9.3) 14.7
Share-based payment transactions 31 83 5.2 83 5.2
Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit plan, net

of tax 30 {25.5) 4.4 {25.5) 4.4
Net income/{expense) recognised directly in

equity 65.5 (148.3) (26.5) {26.8)

Transfers (net of any related tax):
Transfer to profit on sale of available-for-sale

financial assets (Q.1) (23.8) (0.1 (9.7}
Transfer {o profit on disposal of foreign
cperatian 1.5 (27.2) - -
Proftit for the period 1.650.1 359.3 20.1 1.270.2

Total recognised income and expense for the
period attributable to equity holders of
Santos Ltd 1,717.0 160.2 (6.5) 1.233.7

Other movements in equity arising from transactions with cwners as ocwners are set out in note 24.

The statements af recognised income and expense are 1o be read in conjunction with the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial repori of Santes Lid {“the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2008 was
authorised for issue in accordance with a resclution of the Directors on 19 February 2009.

Santos Ltd (the parent) is a company limited by shares incorporated in Australia whose shares are
publicly traded on the Australian Securities Exchange ("ASX") and is the ultimale parent entity in the
Group. The consolidated financial report of the Company for the year ended 31 Decernber 2008
camprises the Company and its controlted entities (“the Group™).

The nature of the operations and principal activities oi the Group are desgribed in the Directors’
Report.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 20071, Australian Accounting
Standards and other autheritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Siandards
Board. The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") as issued by the Internaticnal Accounting Standards Board.

Basis of preparation
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

The financial repert is prepared on the historical cost basis, except for derivative financial
Insuumen s, flxed rdale nowes thal are hedyged by dn lnHeresl (a8 swap dirid avallablesTur-sule
financial assets, which are measured at fair value.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998
{updated by Class Order 05/641 ellective 28 July 2005), and in accordance with that Class
Order amounts in the financial report and Directors’ Report have been rounded to the
nearest hundred thousand dallars, unless otherwise stated.

Change in accounting policy

From 1 January 2008 the Group has adopted Interpretation 1003 Australian Fetroleumn
Resource Rent Tax, which is applicable for annual reporting periods ending on or after
30 June 2008.

The adoption of Interpretation 1003 has resulted in the Greup recognising some royalty-
based taxes, including petroleum resource rent tax, resource rent royalty and additional
profits tax as an income tax under AASB 112 /ncome Taxes. This change has been
accounted tor by adjusting the opening balance of current and deterred tax liabilities and
retained earnings at 1 January 2007.

The effect of the change in the accounting policy for these royally-based taxes from
1 January 2007 is shown below:
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued)

Fax berver

CONSQOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Impact of Irmpact of
change in change in
accounting Restated accounting Restated
policy amount policy amount
$million Smilllon tmillion smillion $milllon $million
31 December 2007
Cost of sales 1,452.5 {117.68) 1,334.9 §43.3 140.2} 603.1
Profit befare tax 801.0 117.6 718.6 1,312.0 40.2 1,362.2
Income tax expense 160.4 353 1957 38.0 1241 50.1
Royalty 1elated taxation expense - 163.6 163.6 - 31.e 1.9
Profit after tax 440.6G (8+.3) 359.3 1,274.0 (3.8) 1.270.2
Basic earnings per share (¢) 68.9 {13.7) 55.2 -
Diluted earnings per share (¢} £8.7 {13.8) 54.9 - -
Trade and other payables 650.9 {41.2) £09.7 642.9 {17.8) 625.1
Current tax liabilies 30.5 41.2 7.7 28.7 17.8 46.5
Deferred 1a« liabilities 5256 217.4 743.0 541 55.1 109.2
Relained earnings 1,251.8 [217_4) 1,034.4 1,185.7 {55.1) 1,130.8
1 January 2007
Trade and other payables 441.8 {12.5) 4293 562.9 5629
Current tax liabilities 2135 12.5 228.0 207.8 - 2078
Deferred tax liabilities 517.5 1361 853.6 85.3 51.3 116.6
Retatned earnings 1,301.4 {136.1} 1.165.3 401.7 {51.3) 350.4

Adoption of new accounting standards and interpretations

The Greup has also adopted the following standards and interpretations, which becarne
applicable on 1 January 2008. Adoption of these standards and interpretations has only
aflected the disclosure in these financial staternents. There has not been any impact on the
financial pasition or performance of the Group.

. AASB 2007-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB Interpretation 11
AASB 2007-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
AASE 2008-4 Amendments o Australian Accounting Standard — Key
Mazanagement Personnel! Disclosures by Disclosing Entities
. AASB 2008-10 Amendrments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Reclassification of Financial Assets
) AASB 2008-12 Amendments to Australian Accouriting Standards —
Reclassification of Financial Assets — Effective Date and
Transition
. Interpretation 11 AASB 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

interpretation 14 AASB 118 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction.

The adoption of Interpretation 11 had a minor impact on the 2007 opening retained earnings
of the Company ($0.2 million} for shares issued to employees of subsidiaries {refer note

().

Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations that have recently been issued or
amended but are not yel effective have not been adopted by the Group tor the annual
reporting period ending 31 December 2008. These are cutlined in the following table:
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{b) Basis of preparation (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Summary

Effective for annual

reporting periods
beginning on
or after

Impact on Group
financial report

Application date
for Group

Reference Title
AASB 3 Business Combinations
AASB 8 Operating Segments
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial

Slatements (issued in
September 2007)

AASB 123 Borrowing Costs

AASB 127 Consclidated and Separate

Financial Staterments

Adopts the acquisition method to account for
business combinations; acguisition costs
expensed; contingeni consideration recognised

at fair value on acquisition date,

Segment disclosure based on components of an
entity that management monitors in making
decisions about allocating resources to
segments and in assessing their performance,

Changes the titles of financial statements:
requires all non-owner changes in equity be
presented in statement of comprehensive
income; additional statement of financial position
at beginning of earliest comparative period
required for changes in accounting policy or
reclassifications; income tax relating to each
component of comprehensive income 1o be

disclosed.

Removes option 1o expense borrowing costs

related to qualifying assets,

Changes in a parent's ownership in a subsidiary
that result in a loss of control requires reserves
to be recycled and remaining ownership interest
10 be measured at fair value; changes that do
not resultin a loss of control are accounted for

as equily transactions,

1 July 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

t July 2009

Recognition of
future
acquisitions.

Minor disclosure
impact,

Minor impact.
Presentation of
financials
statements will
change from
2009 onwards.

No impact.

Unlikely to have
impac.

1 January 2010

1 January 2009

i January 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2010
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Effective for annua!

reporting periods

beginning on Impact on Group  Application date
Reterence Title Summary or after financial report far Group
AASB 2007-3 Amendments fo Austrafian Consequential amendments to number of 1 January 2009 No impact. 1 January 2009
Accounting Standards arising  standards following release of AASB 8
from AASB 8 Operating Segments.
AASB 2007-8 Amendments to Austrafian Consequential amendments 1o number of t January 2009 No impact. 1 January 2009
Accounting Standards arising  standards foltowing release of AASBE 123
from AASB 123 Borrowing Costs,
AASB 2007-8 Amendments to Australian Consequential amendments to a number of 1 January 2009 No impact, 1 January 2009
Accounting Standards arising  standards following issue of a revised AASB 101
fram AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements in
Septernber 2007.
AASB 2007-10  Further Amendments to Changes term terminology in Australian 1 January 2009 Nc impact. 1 January 2008
Australian Accounting Accounting Standards to align with IFRS.
Standards arising from AASB
101
AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian Clarifies the definition of vesting conditions: 1 January 2009 No impact. 1 January 2009
Accounting Standard — Share-  introduces concept of non-vesting conditions:
based Payments: Vesting reguires non-vesting conditions to be reflected in
Conditions and Cancellations grant date fair value; provides the accounting
treatment for non-vesting conditions and
cancellations,
AASB 2008-2 Amendments to Australian Intreduces exception to the definition of financial ! January 2009 No impact. 1 January 2009

Accounting Standards —
Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations arising on
Liguidation

:ability to classiy certain puttable financial
instrumenis as equity instruments,
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SANTOS LTDAND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE CON:GLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{b) Basis of preparation (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Eftective for annual
reporting periods

beginning on Impact on Group  Application date
Reference Title Summary or after financial report for Group
AASB 2008-3  Amendments to Australian Censequentil amendments to number of i July 2009 No impact. 1 January 2010
Accounting Standards arising standards foowing the issue of the revised
from AASB 3 and AASB 127 AASB 3 Busiess Combinations and AASB 127
Consalidate.and Separate Financial
Statements,
AASB 2008-5  Amendments to Ausiralian Amends fiflen standards, including where entity 1 January 2009 Unlikely to have 1 January 2008

AASB 2008-6

AASB 2008-7

Accounting Standards artsing
from the Annual Improvernenis
Project

Further Amendments to
Austratian Accounting
Standards arising from the
Annual Improvements Project

Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards — Cost of
an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Confrolled Entity or

Associale .

committed tcsale plan invelving loss of control
of subsidiarythen all of subsidiary's assets and
liabilities arezlassified as held for sale {AASB 5
Non-currentissets Held for Sale and
DiscentinuecOperations): additional disclosures
where recovrable amount is based on fair
value less cats to sell (AASB 136 Impairment of
Assets),

Terminologyar editerial amendments to eight
standards tht are expected to have no or
minimal eifets cn accounting practices.

Removes the definition of the cost methed in
AASB 127 Onsofidated and Separate Financial
Statements; equires all dividends from
subsidiaries.ointly controlled entities or
associates tbe recognised as income: receipt
of dividend ray be indicator of impairment if
certain criter: met; specified accounting tor
certain tfrans ctions where newly formed entity
becomes paznt of another entity in a group.

1 July 2009

1 January 2009

material impact.

No impact.

No Group impact.

Potential
impairment
impact on
investments held
by the Company
if intercompany
dividends are
received.

1 January 2010

i January 2009
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)  Basis of preparation (continued)
Effective for annual

137130
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reporting periods

beginning on Impact on Group  Application date
Reference Title Summary or after financial report for Group
AASB 2008-8  Amendmenis to Australian Clariiles the hedge accounting provisions of 1 July 2008 No impact. 1 January 2010
Accounting Standards - Eligible  AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
Hedged ftems and Measurement to address inflation in a
tinancial hedged item, and one-sided risk in a
hedged item. .
AASB 2008-13  Amendments to Australian Consequential amendments 1o existing 1 July 2009 No impact. 1 January 2010
Accounting Standards arising standards following the issue of Interpratation 17
from AASB Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners.
Distributions of Non-Cash
Assets to Owners
Interpretation  Hedges of net investments in Provides guidance on net investment hedging. 1 Cctoher 2008 No impact. 1 January 2009
16 foreign operations
Interpretation  Diskribulions of Non-Cash Pravides guidance on when and how a liability 1 July 2009 No impact. i January 2010
17 Assets to Owners for certain distributions of non-cash assets is

recognised and measured. and how to account
for that liability. Does not apply to common
control transactions,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Signiticant Accounting Policies (continued)

{(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in the consolidated financial report.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group.
Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, 1o govern the financial and operatling policies of an entity so
as 1o oblain benefits from its activities. In assessing control. potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable or convertibie are taken inlo accournt. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that contro!
commences until the date that control ceases.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting,
which involves allocating the cost of the business combination to the fair value of the assets
acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition {refer
note 1(a@)).

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at their cost of acquisitiocn, less any impairment
charges, in the Company’'s financial staterments.

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising
fram intragroup transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
staternents.

Minority interests

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated entities are allocated their share of net
profit after tax in the incorme statement, and are identified separately from the Group’s equity
in those entities. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interesis at the date of the
original business combination and the minority's share of changes in equity since the dale of
ihe combination, Where the minority interest has losses greater than its equity interest in the
consclidated subsidiary, the excess and any further losses applicable to the minority interest
are allccated against the Group's interest.  |f the minority interest subsequently reports
profits, the profits are allocated to the Group until the minority's share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group have been tully recovered.

Jointly controlled assels

Sanlos’ exploration and production activities are coften conducted through joint venture
arrangements governed by joint operaling agreements. production sharing contracts or
similar contractual relationships. A summary of the Group's interests in its significant joint
ventures is included in note 28.

A joint venture characterised as a jointly controlled asset involves the joint cantrol, and often
the joint ownership. by the venturers of one or more assets contributed 1o, or acquired for the
purpose of, the joint venlure and dedicated 1o the purposes of the joint venture. The assets
are used to obtain benefits for the venturers. Each venturer may take a share of the output
from the assets and each bears an agreed share of expenses incurred. Each venturer has
control over its share of future economic benelfits through its share of jointly controlled
assets,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{c}

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The interests of the Company and of the Group in unincorporated joint ventures are brought
to account by recognising in the financial statements the Group's share of jointly controlled
assetls, share of expenses and liabilities incurred, and the income from the sale or use of its
share of the production of the joint venture in accordance with the revenue policy in
note 1(x).

Jointly controlled entities

The Group has interests in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities, whereby the
venturers have contractual arrangements that establish joint control cver the economic
activities of the entities. The Group recognises its interest in jointly controlled entities using
propartionate consolidation, by combining its share of the assets, liabilities. income and
expenses of the joint venture with similar line items in the consolidated financial statements,

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

Both the tunctional and presentation currency of Samos Ltd is Australian dollars. Some
subsidiaries have a functional currency of United States dollars which is translated to
presentation currency (see below).

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying
the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in toreign currencies are retranslated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Foreign exchange dilferences arising on translation are recognised in
the income statement.

Foreign exchange differences that arise on the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in a foreign cperation are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rale at the date of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.

Group companies

The resulis of subsidiaries with a functional currency of United States dollars are translated
to Australian dollars as at the date of each transaction. The assets and liabilities are
translated to Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised direcily in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

Exchange dilferences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations
and of related hedges are taken tc the foreign currency translation reserve. They are
released into the income staternent upon disposal of the foreign operation.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAB ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{e) Derivative financial instruments

(t)

The CGroup uowo darivative finaecial notrarne eats te edge ita Snperours 1o chungeo in farcigm
exchange rates, commodily prices and imerest rates arising in the normal course cf
business. The principal derivatives that may be used are forward foreign exchange
contracts, foreign currency swaps and options, interest rate swaps and commeodity crude oil
price swap and option conlracts. Their use is subject to a comprehensive set of policies,
procedures and limits approved by the Board of Directors. The Group does not trade in
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent o initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. Where derivatives
gualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature
of the itermn being hedged; otherwise the gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or
pay 1o terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into accourt current interest
rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterpanies. The fair value of forward
exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, being the present
value of the quoted forward price. The fair value of commodity swap and option contracts is
their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to these of
the host contract and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Hedging

Fair value hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the changes in fair value of a recegnised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment {or an identitied portion of such asset,
liability or firm commitment), any gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the
income statlement. The hedged itern is stated at fair value in respect of the risk being
hedged, with any gain or loss being recognised in the income statement,

Cash flow hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash
flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, ihe effective
part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recoanised directly in equity.
When the forecast transaction subseguently results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or nen-financial liability, or the forecast transaction for a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability becomes a firm cemmitment for which fair value hedging is applied, the
associated curnulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or
other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability. If a hedge of a
forecast transaction subsequenily results in the recegnition of a financial asset or a financial
liability, the associaled gains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are
reclassified into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired
or liability assumed affects profit or loss {that is,. when interest incame ar expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding paragraph, the associated
cumulative gain or loss is removed from equily and recognised in the income stalement in
the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or
loss. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

N

. Hedging (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes
designation ot the hedge refationship, but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
oceur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in
accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs. | the hedged transaction is
no longer expected to take place. the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity
is recegnised immediately in the income statement.

Hedge of monetary assets and liabilities

When a derivative financial instrument is used 1o hedge economically the foreign exchange
exposure of a recognised monelary asset or liability, hedge accounting is not applied and
any gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement.

Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation

The portion of the gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation that is determined to be an efiective hedge is recognised directly in equity. Any
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Cn disposal of the
foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or lcsses recognised directly in
equity is transferred to prolit or loss,

Acquisition of assets

All assets acquired are recorded at their cost of acquisition, being the arnount of cash or
cash equivalents paid, and the fair value of assets given, shares issued or liabilities incurred.
The cost of an asset comprises the purchase price including any incidental costs directly
attributable to the acquisition; any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating; and the estimate of the
costs ol dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located
determined in accordance witih note 1{q).

Business combinations

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assetls are acquired. Cost is measured as
the fair value of the assels given, shares issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange plus costs directly atiributable to the coembination. Where equily instruments are
issued in a business combination, the {air value of the instruments is their published market
price as at the date of exchange. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments
are recognised directly in equity.

Except for non-current assets or disposal aroups classified as held for sale {which are
measured at fair value less costs to sell}, all identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are reasured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the costs of the business cembination over the
net fair value of the identifiable net assets of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the Group’'s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary, the difference is recognised as
a gain in the income statement, but only after a reassessment of the identification and
measurement of the net assets acquired.

Where settlement of any part of the consideration is deferred. the amounts payable in the
future are discounied to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity's incremental baorrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued}

(h)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluaticn expenditure in respect of each area of interest is accounted lor
using the successiul efforts method of accounting. The successful efforts method requires
all exploralion and evaluation expenditure to be expensed in the period it is incurred, except
the costs of successiul wells and the costs of acquiring interests in new exploration assets,
which are capitalised as intangible exploration and evaluation. The cosis of wells are initially
capitalised pending the resuits of the well,

An area of interest refers to an individual geolcgical area where the presence of oil or a
natural gas field is considered favourable or has been proved 1o exist, and in mast cases will
comprise an individual prospective oil or gas field.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is recognised in relation to an area of interest when
the rights to tenure of the area of interest are current and either:

i) such expenditure is expected to be recovered through successiul development and
commercial expleitation of the area of interest, or allernatively, by its sale; or

(i} the exploration activities in the area of interest have not yet reached a stage which
permits reasonable assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves
and active and significant operations in, or in relation to, the area of interest are
continuing.

The carrying amounts af the Group's exploration and evaluaiion assels are reviewed at each
balance sheet date, in conjunction with the impairment review process referred 1o in
note 1(p), 1o determine whether any of the following indicators of impairment exist:

(i) tenure over the licence area has expired during the period or wili expire in the near
future, and is not expected to be renewed;

{iiy substantive expenditure on further exploration tor and evaluation of mineral resources
in the specific area is not budgeted or planned.

(i)  exploration for and evaluation of resources in the specific area has nol ted to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of resources. and the Group has decided
to discontinue activities in the specilic area; or

(iv) sufficient data exists to indicate that although a development is likely to proceed the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recaovered in
full from successful development or from sale.

Where an indicator of impairment exists a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is
made, and any resultant impairment lass is recognised in the incorne statement.

When a discovered oil or gas field enters the development phase the accumulated
exploration and evaluation expenditure is transferred to oil and gas assels — assels in
development.

Oil and gas assets

Oil and gas assets are usually single oil or gas fields being developed for future production
or which are in the production phase. Where several individual oil or gas fields are fo be
produced through commen facilities, the individual oil or gas fields and the associated
production facilities are managed and reported as a single oit and gas asset.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(i)

(i}

(k)

Oil and gas assets (continued)

Assets in development

When the technical and commercial feasibility of an undeveleped cil or gas field has been
demonsirated, the lield enters ils development phase. The costs of oil and gas asseis in the
development phase are separately accounted for as tangible assets and include past
exploration and evaluation costs, development drilling and other subsurface expenditure,
suriace plant and equipment and any associated land and buildings.

When commercial operation commences the accumulated costs are transferred to oil and
gas assets — producing assets.

Producing assels

The costs of oil and gas assets in production are separately accounted for as tangible assets
and include past exploration and evaluation costs, pre-production development costs and
the ongoing costs ol conlinuing to develop reserves lor production and to expand or replace
plant and equipment and any associated land and buildings.

These costs are subject to depreciation and depletion in accordance with note 1(k).

Ongoing exploration and evaluation activities

Often the initial discovery and development of an oil or gas asset will lead to ongoing
exploration for, and evaluatien of potential new oil or gas fields in the vicinity with the
intention of producing any near field discoveries using the infrastructure in place.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure associated with oil and gas assets is accounted for
in accordance with the policy in note 1(h). Exploration and evaluation expenditure amounts
capitalised in respect of oil and gas assets are separately disclosed in note 14,

Land, buildings, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation on buildings, less any
impairment losses recognised,

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of rotable spares and insurance spares that
are purchased for back up or rotation with specific plant and equipment items. Similarly, the
cost ol major cyclical maintenance is recognised in the cairying armount of the related plant and
equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation. Any remaining carrying
ameunt from the cost of the previous major cyclical mairdenance is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation on buildings, plant and equipment is calculated in accordance with note 1(k).
Depreciation and depletion

Depreciation charges are calculated to write-off the depreciable value of buildings. plant and
equipment over their estimated economic useful lives to the Group. Each component of an
itern of buildings, plant and equipment with a cost that is significart in relation to the 1otal
cost of the asset is depreciated separately. The residual value, useful life and depreciation
method applied to an asset is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

Depreciation of onshore buildings, plant and equipment and corporate assets is calculated
using the straight-line method of depreciation on an individual asset basis from the date the
asselis available for use.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

n

(m)

Depreciation and depletion {continued)

The estimated useful lives for each class of onshore assets for the current and comparative
periods are as {ollows: .

. Buildings ' 20 - 50 years
. Plant and equipment
= Computer equipment 3 - Syears
= Motor vehicles 4 - 7 years
= Furniture and fittings 10 - 20 years
= Pipelines 10 - 30 years
= Plant and facilities 10 - B0 years

Depreciation of olfshore plant and equipment is calculated using the units of production
method cn a cash-generating unit basis (refer note 1(p)} from the date of commencement of
production,

Depletion charges are calculated using a unit of production method based on heating value
which will amortise the cost of carried forward exploration, evaluation and subsuriace
development expenditure {"subsurface assets") over the lile of the estimated Proven plus
Probable ("2P7) reserves in a cash-generating unit, together with future subsuriace costs
necessary to develop the hydrocarbon reserves in the respective cash-generating units,

The heating value measurement used for the conversion of volumes of different hydrocarbon
products is barrels of oil equivalent.

Depletion is not charged on costs carried forward in respect of assets in the development
stage untii production commences.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial instruments held by the Group and the Company which are classified as being
available for sale are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity.

The iair value of financial instruments classified as available for sale is their quoted bid price
at the close of business on the balance sheet date.

Financial instruments classified as available for sale are recognised/derecognised by the
Group and the Company on the date it commits to purchase/sell the investments, When
these investments are derecognised. the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at ihe iower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. Costis determined as follows:

i drifling and maintenance stocks, which include plant spares, consumabies and
maintenance and drilling tools used for ongoing operations, are valued at weighted
average cost; and

{if) petroleum products. which comprise extracted crude oil, liquefied petroleurm gas,
condensate and naphtha stored in tanks and pipeline systems and processed sales
gas and ethane stored in subsurface reservoirs, are valued using the absorption cost
method in a manner which approximates specific identification,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

(0)

{p)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which in practlice is the
equivalent of cost, less any impairment losses.,

Long-term receivables are discounted and are stated at amortised cost, less impairmem
losses,

Trade and other receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheetl date. Where a receivable is impaired the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the assel's carrying value and the present value of estimated fulure cash flows,
discourted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the receivable is
reduced through the use of an aliowance account. Changes in the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term deposits that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and generally have an original maturity of three months or less.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each balance sheét date 1o determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. Where an indicator of impairment exists a formal estimate of the recoverable
amount is made.

Oil and gas assets, land, buildings, plant and equipment are assessed for impairment on a
cash-generating unit ("CGU") basis. A cash-generating unit is the smallest grouping of
assets that generates independent cash inflows, and generally represents an individual oil or
gas field. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generaling units are allocaled to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro-raia basis.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with note 1{h).

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale linancial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the curnulative
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recegnised in profit or loss even though
the financial asset has not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difterence between the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previocusly recognised in profit or loss,

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. In assessing value in use, an asset's eslimated future cash ilows are
discounied to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent from other assets or groups of
assets. the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued}

{p)

{9}

(r}

Impairment {continued)

For coil and gas assets the estimated future cash flows are based on estimates of
hydrocarbon reserves. future production profiles, commodity prices, operating cosis and any
future development costs necessary to produce the reserves. Estimates of luture
commodity prices are based on contracted prices where applicable or based on forward
market prices where available.

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been an increase in the estimated recoverable
amount of a previously impaired asset. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the assel's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or depletion, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are not reversed.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured atl the present value of management’'s best estimate of the
expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation using a discounted cash fiow
methodology. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the hability. The increase in the
provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs.

Restoration

Provisions for future environmental restoration are recognised where there is a present
obligation as a result of exploration, development, production, transpontation or storage
activities having been undertaken, and it is probable that an outtlow of economic benefits will
be required 1o settle the obligation. The estimated future obligations include the costs of
removing facilities, abandoning wells and restoring the afiected areas.

The provision for future restoration costs is the best estimate of the present value of the
future expenditure required 1o settle the restoration obligation at the reporting date, based on
current legal requirements. Future restoration costs are reviewed annually and any changes
in the estimate are reflected in the present value of the restoration provision at the balance
sheet date, with a corresponding change in the cost of the associated asset.

The amount of the provision for future restoration costs relating to exploration, development
and production facilities is capitalised and depleted as a compornent of the cost of those
activities.

Employee benefits

Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, and annual leave that are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporing date are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up {o the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts
expected 1o be paid when the liabilities are settled. Expenses for non-vesting sick leave are
recognised when the leave is taken and are measured at the rates paid or payable.



S - = - == - = 7 f W s =S s arn=s R e Fur A P e 4 A A Y A L

20
SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)

Long-term service benefits

A liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of the
estimated fuilure cash ocutflows o be made in respect of employees’ services up to the
balance sheet dale. The obligation is calculated using expected lulure increases in wage
and salary rales, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected
future payments are discounted using the rates attached to the Commonwealth Government
bands at the balance sheet date which have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group's obligations,

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its controlled entities contribuie 1o several defined contribulion
superannuation plans. Obligations for contributions are recognised as an expense in th
income statement as incurred, :

Defined benefit plan

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit superannuation plan is
calculated by estimating the amount of fulure benefit that employees have earned in return
ior their service in the current and prior pericds; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on government bonds that have
rnalurity dales approximating ithe terms of the Group's obligations, The calculation is
performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method,

When the benelits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to
past service by emnployees is recognised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent
that the benefits vest immediately. the expense is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Actuarial gains or losses that arise in calculating the Group's obligation in respect of the plan
are recognised directly in retained earnings.

When the calculation results in plan assets exceeding liabilities to the Group, the recognised
asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised acluarial losses and past service costs
and the present value of any fulure refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Past service cost is the increase in the present vaiue of the defined benefit obligation for
employee services in prier periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or
changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service
costs may either be positive {where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative {where
existing benefits are reduced).

Share-based payment transactions

The Santos Executive Share Option Plan allows eligible executives ta acquire shares in the
capital of the Company. The fair value of oplions granted is recognised as an employee
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured al grant date
and recognised over the period during which the executive becomes unconditionally entitled
to the options. The fair value of the options granted is measured using the Monte Carlo
simulation method, taking into account the terms and market conditions upon which the
options were granted The amount recognised as an expense is oniy adjusted when the
aptions do not vest due to non-market related conditions.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

{t)

(u)

Employee benefits {(continued)

The {air value of Share Acquisition Rights ("SARs") issued to eligible executives under the
Executive Long-term Incentive Program is recognised as an employee expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised
over the period during which the executive becomes unconditionally entitled to the SARs.
The fair value of the SARs granted is measured using the Monte Carlo simulation method,
taking inte account the terms and market conditions upen which the SARs were grantad.
The amount recognised as an expense is enly adjusted when the SARs do not vest due to
ron-market related conditions.,

The fair value of shares issued 1o eligible employees under the Santos Employee Share
Acquisition Plan. to eligible executives and employees under the Santos Employee Share
Purchase Plan, and new shares issued to Non-executive Directors under the Non-execulive
Director Share Plan, is recognised as an increase in issued capital on grant date.

Shares issued under the Santos Employee Share Acquisition Plan to employees of
subsidiaries are recognised in the Campany’s separate financial staterments as an additional
invesiment in the subsidiary with a corresponding credit to equity. As a result. the expense
recognised by the Company in relation to equity-settled awards only represents the expense
associated with granmis to employees of the Company. The expense recognized by the
Group is the total expense.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cosl with any difference between cost and redempiion value being recognised in
the income statement aver the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Fixed rate notes that are hedged by an interest rate swap are recognised at fair value {refer
note 1(f)).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, including interest and finance charges relating to major oil and gas assets
under development up to the date of commencement of commercial operations, are
capitalised as a component of the cost of development. Where funds are borrowed
specifically for qualifying projects the actual borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. Where
the projects are funded through general borrowings the borrowing costs are capitalised
based on the weighted average borrowing rate (refer note 21). Borrowing costs incurred
after commencement of corfimercial operations are expensed.

All other borrowing coslis are recognised in the profit or loss in the pericd in which they are
incurred,

Deferred income

A liability is recorded ior obligations under sales contracts 1o deliver natural gas in fulure
periods for which payment has already been received,

Deferred income is also recognised on asset sale agreements where consideration is
received prior to all conditions precedent being fulfilled. '
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Signiticant Accounting Policies (continued)

44

(w)

(x)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised when the related goods or services are received, at
the amount of cash or cash equivalent that will be required 1o discharge the obligation, gross of
any settlement discount offered. Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are setlled on
normal terms and conditions.

Share capital

Ordinary share capital
Ordinary share capital is classilied as equity.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable and any dividends are
discretionary, or it is redeemable only at the Company's opticn. Dividends on preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability at the time the Directors resclve to pay or declare the
dividend.

Transaclion costs
Transaction costs of an equily transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net
of any related income tax benefit.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised in the income statement when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer. Revenue is recognised and measured at the
fair value of the consideration or contributions received, net of goods and services tax
{("GST". to the extent it s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

Sales revenue

Sales revenue is recognised on the basis of the Group's interest in a producing fietd
("entitternents” method), when the physical product and asscciated risks and rewards of
ownership pass to the purchaser, which is generally at the time of ship or truck loading. or on
the product entering the pipeline,

Revenue earned under a production sharing contract (“PSC”) is recognised on a net
entillemenis basis according to the terms of the PSC.

Dividends
Dividend revenue from controlled entities is recognised as the dividends are declared, and
from other parties as the dividends are received.

Overriding royalties
Royalties recognised on farmed-out operating lease rights are recognised as revenue as
they accrue in accordance with the terms of the overriding royalty agreements.

Pipeline tariffs and processing tolls

Tariffs and toils charged to other entities for use of pipelines and facilities owned by the
Group are recognised as revenue as they accrue in accordance with the terms of the tanff
and tolling agreements.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(x)

(v}

(2}

(aa)

Revenue (continued)

Trading revenue

Trading revenue represents the net revenue derived from the purchase and subsequent sale
of hydrocarbon products from third parties where the risks and benefits of ownership of the
product do not pass to the Group, or where the Group acts as an agent or broker with
compensation on a commission or fee basis.

Other income

Other income is recognised in the income statement at the fair value of the consideration
received of receivable, net of GST, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transierred to the buyer or when the service has been performed.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of a non-current asset is included as other inceme at the
date contral of the assel passes o the buyer. The gain or loss on dispesal is calculated as
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the net
proceeds an disposal.

Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective
interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cast of a financial asset and
allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected lite of
the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or cenlains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiiment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ol the leased asset to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operaling leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased praperty
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are appertioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance ol the liability. Assets under
finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful lite of the asset and
the lease term if there is no reascnable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax
{("GST". except where the amaunt of GST incurred is not recoverable irom the Australian
Taxation Office ("ATO"). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

{aa)

(ab)

Goods and services tax (continued)

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the
balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST components
ol cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATC are classified as operating cash flows.

Taxation

Aoyalty related taxation
Petroleun resource rent tax, resource rent royalty and additional profits tax are recognised
as an income tax under AASB 112 Income Taxes.

Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. lnceme tax
is recognised in the income stalement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable on the laxable profit or loss for the year,
using lax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjusiment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is determined using the balance sheet approach, providing for temporary
ditterences between the carrying amounts ol assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the appropriate tax bases. The following temporary differences are not
provided for: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that atfect neither accounting nor
taxable profit: and dilferences relating to investmenis in subsidiaries 1o the extent il is
prebable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of delerred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacled or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is procbable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Company and all its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a lax-
consolidated group under Australian taxation law, Santos Ltd is the head entity in the tax-
consolidated group., Current tax expensefincome, deferred tax liabilities and delerred tax
assels arising from temporary differences of the members of the tax-consolidated group are
allocated among the members of the tax-consolidated group using a "stand-zlene taxpayer”
approach in accordance with Interpretation 1052 Tax Consolidation Accounting and are
recognised in the separate financial statements of each entity. Current tax liabilities and assets
and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits of the members of the
tax-consolidated group are recognised by the Company (as head entity in the fax-consclidated

group}.

The Company and the other entities in the tax-consolidated group have entered into a tax
funding agreement. Tax contribution amounts payable under the tax funding agreement are
recognised as payable to or receivable by the Company and each other member of the tax-
consolidated group. Where the tax contribution amount recognised by each member of the
tax-consclidated group for a particular peried under the tax funding agreement is different from
the aggregate of the current tax hability or asset and any delerred tax asset arising from unused
tax losses and tax credits in respect of that period assumed by the Company, the difference is
recognised as a contribution from (or distribution to) equity participants.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(ab)

{ac)

(ad)

Taxation (continued)

The Company and the other entities in the tax-consolidated group have also emtered into a tax
sharing agreement pursuant 1o which the other entities may be required to contribute to the 1ax
Habilities of the Company in the event of default by the Company or upon leaving the tax-
consolidated group,

Discontinued operations and non-current assets held for sale

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, and is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a
line of business or area of operations. The results of discontinued operations are presented
separately on the face of the income staternent and the assels and liabilities are presented
separately on the balance sheet,

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction. They are not deprecialed or amortised,
For an asset or disposal group 1o be classified as held for sale, it must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly probable.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or
disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group} but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset {or disposal group) is recegnised
at the date of derecognition.

Signiticant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are cften determined based on
management's judgement regarding estimates and assumptions of future events. The
reasonableness of estimates and underlying assurmptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
il the revision allects only that period or in the pericd of the revision and future periods if the
revision aftects both current and future periods. The key judgements, estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporing pertiod are:

Estimates of reserve quantities

The estimated quantities of Proven plus Probable hydrocarbon reserves reported by the
Company are integral to the calculation of depletion and depreciaticn expense and to
assessments of possible impairment of assets, Estimated reserve quantities are based
upon interpretations of geological and geophysical models and, assessments of the
technical feasibilty and commercial viability of producing the reserves. These
assessments require assumptions to be made regarding future deveiopment and
production costs, cornmodity prices, exchange rates and fiscal regimes. The estimates of
reserves may change from period to period as 1the economic assumptions used te estimate
the reserves can change frem period to period, and as additional geclogical data is
generaled during the course of operations, Reserves estimales are prepared in
accordance with the Company's policies and procedures for reserves estimation which
conform to guidelines prepared by the Society of Petroleum Engineers,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{ad} Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Exploration and evaluation '

The Group's policy for explaoration and evaluation expenditure is discussed in note 1{h}. The
application of this policy requires management io make certain estimates and assumptions as
to future events and circumstances, particularly in relation to the assessment of whether
econamic guantities of reserves have been found. Any such estimates and assumptions may
change as new infoermation becomes available. If, after having capitalised exploration and
evaluation expenditure, management concludes that the capitalised expenditure is unlikely to
be recovered by future exploitation or sale, then the relevant capitalised amount will be written
off to the incoeme statement.

The carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assels is disclosed in note 13,

Provision for restoration

The Group estimates the future removal and restoration costs of oil and gas production
lacilities. wells, pipelines and related assets at the time of installation of the assets. In most
instances the removal of these assets will occur many years in the future. The estimate of
future removal costs therefore requires management o make judgements regarding the
rernoval date, future environmental legislation, the extent of restoralion activities required and
future removal technolegies.

The carrying amount of the provision for restoration is disclosed in note 22,

Impairment of oil and gas assets

The Group assesses whether cil and gas assets are impaired on a sermni-annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belong. The carrying amount of oil and gas assets and the assumplions used in the
estimation of recoverable amount are discussed in notes 14 and 16 respectively.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Segment Information
The Group operates predominantly in one business, namely the exploration, development, production, transportation and marketing of hydrocarbons. Revenue is derived
frem the sale of gas and liquid hydrocarbens and the transporiation of crude cil.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
mainly comprise dividend revenue, interest-earning assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and liabilities,

Segment capilal expenditure is the total cost incurred dusing the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for imore than one period.

Geographic segments
The Group operates primarily in Australia but also has international operations in Indonesia, Papua New Guinea, Vietnam, india, Bangladesh, Kyrgyz Republic and Egypt.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS DISCONTINUED TOTAL QPERATIONS
. Australla International Total OPERATIONS
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Primary reporting $milllon $million $million Smillion $million $millian tmillion $million $million $million
Geographic segments
Revenue

Revenue from Australian customers 9478 8955 - - 947.8 8955 - - 9478 895.5

Revenue from international customers 1.615.6 1.460.9 2416 131.5 1,857.2 1,592.4 - 301 1,857.2 1,622.5
Total revenue 2,563.4 2,356.4 2416 131.5 28050 2,4879 - 301 28050 2.5180
Results
Segment results 27857 1.027.5 (58.0) {45.3) 27277 9822 - (65.8) 27277 916.4
Unallocated corparate expanses ) {104.3) (52.5) - - (104.1) (58.5)
Earnings before interest and tax (*EBIT") 26235 9227 - (658) 286236 856.9
Unallocated net financing {costs)/income (90.4) {139.1} - 0.3 (90.4} {138.3)
Profit/(loss) before tax 2,533.2 783.6 . {65.0) 25332 718.6
income tax expense (768.4) (195.1) . (0.6) {768.4) (195.7)
Royalty related taxation expense {114.7) {163.6} - - {114.7) {163.8)
Total taxation expense (883.1)  (358.7) - (06) (8831}  (359.3)
Net profit/{loss) for the peried 1,650.1 424.9 - {65.6) 1.650.1 358.3
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SANTQS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Segment Information (continued)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS DISCONTINUED TOTAL OPERATIONS
Australia International ‘otal OPERATIONS
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Primary reporting $million Smillion $millien Smiflion smilllo Smillian $million Smillian $milllon Smillian
Geographic segments (continued)
Non-cash expenses

Depreciation and depletion 593.0 707.2 48.1 27.0 6411 7342 - - 641.1 7342

Unallocated corporate depreciation and depletion 22.8 25.1 - - 22.8 25.1
Total depreciation and depletion §63.9 7593 - - 6639 7593
Exploration and evaluation expensed 1144 1317 64.6 94.4 179.0 2261 - 8.7 179.0 2348
Net impairment loss on otl and gas assets 66.7 - 1495 - 21862 - - - 216.2 -
Net impairment logs on receivables 0.4 - - - 0.4 - - - 04 -
Total non-cash expenses 1.059.5 9854 - B7 1.0585 9941
Acqulisitions and additions of non-current assets
Controlled entities - 12.4 13.6 77.0 13.6 894 - - 136 894
Qil and gas assets, property. plant and equipment 14292 1,095.4 408.7 163.6 1,835.9 1,289.0 - - 1,835.9 1,289.0
Unallocated corporate acquisition of ¢il and gas asseis, - ’

property, plant and equipment 47.9 42 4 - - 47.8 42.4
Total acquisitions and additions of non-current assets 18974 14208 - - 1,897 .4 14208
Assets
Segment assets 6,605.8 6,036.7 8022 6345 7,4080 6671.2 - - 7,408.0 6,671.2
Unallocated corporate assets 2,383.¢ 649.0 - - 2.393.9 6490
Consolidated fotal assets 28019 7.320.2 - - 9.801.8 73202
Liabilities
Segment liabilties 2.4218 1.936.3 126.0 149.8 25478 20861 - - 25478 2,086 .1
Unallocated corporate liabililies 27758 21410 - - 2,775.8 2.141.0
Consolidated total liabilities 53236 4.227.1 - - 59,3236 4227 1

Secondary reporting
Business segments

As described above, the Group operates predominantly in one business. Accordingly there are no additiondusiness segment disclosures to be made.
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CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million Smillion $million Smillion $million Smilfion
3. Revenue and Other Income
Product sales:
Gas, ethane and liquefied gas 1,051 86 1.051.6 920.8 233 944 1 3012 KRS
Crude il 1,150.6 1,150.6 1,034.4 2.4 1.036.8 407.2 497 .2
Condensate and naphtha 3212 3212 3257 4.4 3301 80.5 941
Liquefied petrofeum gas 2384 238.4 177.5 - 177.5 83.5 714
2,761.8 2761.8 2,458 4 3014 24885 8725 974.3
Other revenue:
Cverriding royalties 16.1 18.1 133 - 13.3 239 202
Pipeline tariffs and tolls 9.3 93 44 - 4.4 35 -
Trading revenue i25 25 6.6 . 8.6 8.4 6.1
Dividends from controlled entities . - - - - 27.0 874.0
Cther 5.3 5.4 5.2 - 5.2 15 1.0
43.2 42.2 29.5 - 29.5 64.3 901.3
Tetal revenue 2,805.0 2,805.0 24879 30.1 2.518.0 936.8 1.875.6
Other income:
Insurance recoveries 358 35.8 24 - 2.4 - -
Net gain on redetermiration of unitised field - - 45.8 - 46.8 . -
Net gain on sale of available-for-sale financial
assets 023 0.3 334 - 334 03 13.9
Net loss on sale of discontinued operations * - - - {67.7) {67.7} - -
Net gain on sale of non-current assets 1,698.5 1.698.5 {0.9] (1.9} {2.8) 0.8 1.7
1,734.8 1,734.6 81.7 {69.6} 12.1 1.1 15.6

2ANTUSD LLCd

" Includes impairment loss on measurement io fair value less costs to self of $37.6 million, net of $27.2 million gain recycled into profit and loss on the reversal of associated amounts
previousfy deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2607
Continuing  Discontinued Total Cantinuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million $million Smillion $million Smillion $million Smillion
4. Expenses
Cost of sales:
Cash cost of production
Production costs:
Production expenses 464 .8 - 4648 3779 3.0 380.9 155.3 1153
Production facilities operating leases 78.6 - 78.6 67.9 - 67.9 29.4 27.7
543.4 - 543.4 4458 30 448 8 184.7 143.0
Other operating cosis:

Fipeline tavifis, tolls and other 84.1 - 841 68.9 - 6389 208 231
Rovyalty and excise 100.5 - 100.5 713 2.8 741 434 308
184.6 - 184.6 140.2 28 143.0 64.2 539

Total cash cost of produciion 728.0 - 728.0 586.0 58 5918 248.9 196.9
Depreciation and depletion 661.5 - 651.5 756.8 - 756.8 2729 4182
Third party gas purchases 62.0 - 820 2041 - 201 74 37
Increase in product stock (28.9) - (28.9) (33.8) - {33.8) (8.5) {15.7)
1,422.6 - 1.422.6 1,329.1 58 1.334.9 520.7 603.1

Toial cost of sales
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2007 2008 2007
Continuing Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million Smillien $million $million $million Smillion
Expenses (continued)
Other expenses;
Selling 176 7.6 125 - 125 10.5 75
Corporate 87,0 97.0 62.8 11.8 74.6 87.3 64.3
Depreciation 24 24 25 - 25 04 1.1
117.0 170 778 13 89.6 gg.2 729
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (24.4) {24.4) {0.4) . (0.4) (7.1} 07
Change in fair value of financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss 125 125 1.8 - 1.8 - 1.3
Fair value hedges, (gains)/losses;
On the hedging instrument (236.2) (236.2) {56.7) - {58.7) . -
On the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk 2288 228.9 5941 - 591 - -
Exploration and evaluation expensed 179.0 179.0 226.1 87 2348 222 542
Net impairment loss an il and gas assets 216.2 216.2 - - . 7.2 566
Net impairment loss on receivables 0.4 0.4 - - - 03 -
Impairment {reversaliiloss on receivables due
from controlled entities - - - - . {23.8) 253
Net impairment loss/{reversal) on investments
in controlled entities - - - - - 49.6 {380.7)
493.4 4934 317.8 20.5 338.3 2106 {169.7)
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CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Continuing  Discontinued Total Continuing  Discontinued Total
$million $million Smillion $millien $million $millign Smiltion
4. Expenses (continued)
Profit before tax includes the following:
Depreciation and depletion:

Depletion of subsurface assets 401.7 - 401.7 4313 - 431.3 1812 265.7

Depreciation of plant and equipment 256.6 - 256.6 3236 - 3238 89.7 151.3

Depreciation of buildings 56 - 58 4.4 - 4.4 2.4 23
Total depreciation and depletion 6639 - 8639 759.3 - 759.3 273.3 419.3
Employee benefits expense 218.7 - 216.7 1728 6.5 180.3 210.4 175.8
Net write-down of inventories 0.6 - 0.5 0.2 - 0.2 0.2 03

Operating lease rentals:
Minimum lease payments 88.4 . 884 59.1 0.2 59.3 39.0 411
Contingent rentals 0.4 - 0.4 0.5 - 0.5 0.2 0.1
5. Earnings
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation.
depletion, exploraticn and impairment
("EBITDAX"} is calculated as follows:
Profit{less) before tax 25332 - 25332 7836 (65.0) 718.6 103.2 1.352.2
Add back:

Net financing costs/{income) 904 - 90.4 i394 {0.8) 1383 103.4 105.6
Earnings before interest and tax (‘EBIT") 262356 - 26236 9227 {65.8) 856.¢ 206.6 14578
Add back:

Depreciation and depleticn 663.9 - 663.9 759.3 - 759.3 273.3 4193

Exploration and evaluation expensed 179.0 - 179.0 226.1 8.7 234.8 22.2 54.2

Net impairment loss on cil and gas assets 218.2 - 216.2 - - . 7.2 568

Net impairment loss on receivables 04 - 04 - - - 0.3 -

Impairment (reversal)/loss on receivables

due from controlled entities - - . - - - {23.8) 25.3

Net impairment loss/{reverzal) on

Investments in controlled enitties - - - - - - 49.6 {380 7)
EBITDAX 3,683.1 - 3.683.1 1.908.1 {57.1} 1.851.0 589.4 18325
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SANOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOFTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

ONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Continuing  Discontinued Total Cantinuing  Discontinued
$milllion $million $million on $million $million $million
5. Earnings {continued) ’
Amounts that are unusual because of their
nature, size, or incidence:
Net gain on sale of non-current assets
includes the gain on sale of 40% interest in )
Fairview and Roma assets to PETRONAS Y {1.6974) - (1,697 .4) - - - - -
Remediation and related costs of the Moonie
to Brisbane pipeline incidents 31.5 - 315 38.0 - 38.0 - -
6. Net Financing Costs
Interest income:
Controlled entities - - - - - - {129.2) (186.2)
Other entities {63.3) - (63.3) {13.8) (0.8) {(14.4) (53.8) {2.6)
Financial income (63.3) - {63.3) {13.5) {0.8) {14.4} {183.0} {188 .8)
Interest expense:
Controlled entities - . - - - - 276.1 2797
Other entities i35 - 1315 129.5 - 1295 1.2 06
Less borrowing costs capitalised {9.5) - {9.5) {6.3} - (6.3) - -
122.0 . 1220 123.2 - 123.2 2773 280.3
Unwind of the effeci of discounting on provisions 313 - 313 239 - 238 87 8.5
Interest component of finance leases 04 - 04 . . - 0.4 -
Other - - - 5.6 - 5.6 - 5.6
Financial expenses 153.7 - 153.7 1527 - 182.7 286.4 2944
Net financing costs/{income} 80.4 - 20.4 1391 (0.8 138.3 103.4 105.6
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Smillion $million $million Srnillion

7. Taxation Expense
Recognised in the income statement
Income tax expense

Current tax expense

Current year 726.7 236.2 (8.0} 48.5
Adjustments for prior years ’ (8.5) (23.2) 13.6 10.7
718.2 213.0 5.6 £8.2
Deiferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary ditferences 89.6 12.% 42.4 1.5
Benelit of tax losses recognised (27.9} (19.2) {(27.9) -
Adjustments for prior years {11.5) (10.2) 31.3 {10.8)
50.2 {17.3} 45.8 {8.1)
Total income tax expense 768.4 195.7 5t.4 501

Royalty related taxation expense

Current tax expense

Current year 79.3 94.8 27.8 28.1
Adjustments for prior years 6.7 (12.5) 2.0 -
86.0 82.3 29.8 28.1

Deferred tax expense
Originatiorn and reversal o termporary differences 28.7 81.3 1.9 3.8

Total royalty related taxation expense 1147 163.6 31.7 31.9
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$miilion  $million  $million  $million
Taxation Expense (continued)
Numerical reconciliation between tax expense
and pre-tax net profit
Profit before tax 2,533.2 718.8 103.2 1,352.2
Prima facie income tax at 30% (2007 30%) 760.0 215.86 31.0 405.7
Increase in income tax expense due to:
Non-deductible depreciation and depletion 2.9 35 1.7 255
Net impairment less/{reversal} of investments in
controlled entities - - 14.8 (114.2)
Net impairment loss/(reversal) of receivabies
from centrolled entities - - (7.1) 7.6
Benefit arising frorm previously unrecognised tax
losses or temporary differences that is used to
reduce current tax expense (2.1) (10.1) - (6.6)
Foreign losses not recognised 26.4 38.5 - -
Dividends from controlled entities - - {(10.2) (262.2)
Tax losses recognised {27.9) (19.2) (27.9) -
Under/{over) provided in prior years 191 (33.4) 44.9 0.1
Other (10.0} c.8 4.2 {5.8)
Incorme tax expense 788.4 195.7 51.4 50.1
Royalty related taxation expense 114.7 163.6 31.7 31.9
Total taxation expense 883.1 355.3 83.1 82.0
Total taxation expense is attributable to:
Continuing cperations 883.1 3587 83.1 82.0
Discontinued operations - 0.6 - -
883.1 359.3 83.1 82.0
Detferred tax {credited)/charged directly to
equity
(Loss)/gain on foreign currency loans designaited
as hedges of net investments in foreign
operations (82.0) 268 - -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets {(4.0) (3.3} (4.0} 1.5
Off-market share buy-back transaction cosis {0.6) (0.8} (0.8} {C.6)
Actuarial {loss)/gain on detined benefit plan {(11.0) 1.9 (11.0} 1.9
(97.6) 24.8 (15.8) 2.8

Discontinued Operations

During 2007, the Group disposed of its exploration and production activities in the United States
for US$70.0 million {A$85.6 million). The results of the discontinued operations lor 2007 are
disclesed in the incorne statement. with further details provided in notes 3, 4 and 6.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TCQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$Smillion $million $million $million

10.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand 273.2 128.6 1545 49.3
Short-term deposits 1,278.7 71.9 1.248.4 7.5

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow
statements 1.552.9 200.5 1,402.9 56.8

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents represent fair value. Bank balances and
shori-term deposits earn interest ai floating rates based upan market rates.

Short-term deposits generally have an original maturity of three months or less. The Group
currently has a significant amount of funds invested in numerous short-term deposits that are
held with a range cof different counterparties, and that have varying maturity dates of between
three to six months based on when the cash is likely 1o be required and to take advantage of a
range of investment yields. These funds are managed as part of the Group's total cash
management procedures and are readily convertible to cash if required.

Restricted cash balances

Barracuda 1td, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Papua New Guinea, has cash and
cash equivalents at 31 December 2008 of US$10.2 million {2007: US$14.5 million) which can
only be repatriated to Australia with the permission of the Internal Revenue Commission of
Papua New Guinea in accordance with the financing plan submitted in respect of PDL 3,

Santes (BBF) Pty Ltd, a wholly-owned Australian subsidiary, has cash and cash equivalents at
31 December 2008 of US$20.4 million (2007: US$22.7 million) that are held to cover obligations
under a reserve-based facility.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Smillion $rnillion $million $million

Trade and Other Receivables

Current receivables

Trade receivables 327.8 425.0 121.3 145.2
Allowance for impairment loss {0.4) - (0.3} -
327.2 429.0 121.0 145.2
Tax related balances owing by controlled entities - - 532.8 20.0
Non-trade receivables and prepayments 254.4 178.4 40.1 43.3
581.6 607 .4 £593.9 208.5
The ageing of frade receivables at the reporting
date is as follows:
Past due not impaired:
Less than one month 3100 384.0° 121.0 143.7
One 1o three months 11.2 201 - 0.7
Three 1o six months 2.4 13.3 - -
Six to twelve months 2.9 - - 0.1
Greater than twelve months 0.7 1.8 - 07
Ceonsidered impaired:
Greater than twelve months 0.4 - 03 -

3278 429.0 121.3 145.2
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

1 LAdr LAAsrs L ¥V s 4

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and settlement terms are generally within 30 days.

Trade receivables thal are neither past due nor impaired relate 1o a number ol independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

Impaired receivables

An allowance for impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that an
individual trade receivable is impaired, An impairment loss of $0.4 million was recognised by the
Group during the year {$0.3 million by the Company), in relation 1o a disputed invoice ($0.3
million) and balances owed irorm companies that have gone into receivership ($0.1 million).

Non-current receivables

Receivables due from controlled entities:
Non-interest-bearing
Interest-bearing

Receivables due from other related entities

Receivables due from controlled entities are
shown net of impairment losses of $7.8 millicn
{2007: $31.6 million).

Receivables due from controlled entities are for
lcans made in the ordinary course of business for
an indefinite period. Interest-bearing amounts
owing by controlled entities are at normal market
terms and conditions.

Receivables due from other related entities are
for loans made in the ordinary course of business
for a term of five years, and interest is calculated
on normal market terms and conditions.

Inventories

Petroleum products
Drifling and maintenance stocks

Total invenitories at the lower of cost and net
realisable value

Drilling and maintenance stocks included above
that are stated at net realisable value

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million  $million  $million  $million
- - 108.0 29.1
- - 1,192.9 1.275.7
6.0 - - -
6.0 - 1,300.9 1.304.8
|
|
1634 1654 82.0 86.7
126.3 76.1 54.0 29.2
289.7 2415 136.0 115.9
106.2 59.7 53.3 28.6
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

12. Derivative Financial Instruments

Current derivative tinancial instruments

Cross-currency swap contracts 5g9.2 - - -

Fair value of embedded derivatives - 8.9 - -
58.2 6.9 - -

Non-current derivative financial instruments

Cross-currency swap contracts 32.8 - - -

Interest rate swap contracts 303.5 77.2 - -

336.3 77.2 - -

13. Exploration and Evaluation Assets

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Sub- Sub-
surface Plant and surface Plant and
assels equipment Total assels  equipment Total
$million $million 3$million $million $million $million
Balance at 31 December 2008 427.4 0.1 427.5 42.6 0.1 42.7
Balance at 31 December 2007 332.3 0.1 332.4 15.4 0.1 15.5
Reconciliation of movements
Balance at 1 January 2008 3323 0.1 332.4 154 0.1 153.5
Acquisition of controlled entities 15.0 - 15.0 - - -
Acquisition of exploration and
evalualion assets 27.8 - 27.8 - - -
Additions 3571 - 3571 81.4 - 81.4
Exploraticn and evaluation
expensed (179.0} - {179.0) (22.2} - (22.2)
Disposals {0.1} - {0.1) - - -
Net impairment losses {1.1) - {1.1) - - -
Transfer to oil and gas assets (182.9) - (182.9) (32.0) - (32.0)
Exchange differences 58.3 - 583 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2008 427 .4 0.1 427.5 42.6 0.1 42.7
Balance at 1 Jarnuary 2007 359.7 0.6 360.3 20.6 0.1 20.7
Acquisition of controlled entities 56.3 - 56.3 - - -
Acquisition of exploration and
evaluation assets 115 - 11.5 - - -
Additions 311.9 - 311.6 95.2 - 95.2
Exploration and evaluation
expensed (226 .1) - (226.1) {54.2) - (54.2)
Disposals (1.0) (0.5) {1.5) - - -
Transfer to oil and gas assets (163.3) - {163.3) (46.2) - (46.2)
Exchange differences (i6.7) - (16.7) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2007 332.3 0.1 332.4 15.4 0.1 15.5
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Oil and Gas Assets

2008
Cost at 31 December 2008

Less accumulated depreciation,

depletion and impairment

Balance at 31 December 2008 3.255.3

Reconciliation of movements

Assets in development

Balance at 1 January 2008

Additions

Transter from exploration and
evaluation assets

Exchange difierences

Balance at 31 December 2008

Producing assets

Balance at 1 January 2008

Acquisition of oil and gas

assels

Additions

Transier from exploration and.
evaluation assets

Disposals

Depreciation and depletion
expense

Net impairment losses

Exchange difterences

Balance at 31 December 2008

Total oil and gas assets

Comprising:

Exploration and evaluation
expenditure pending
commercialisation

Other capitalised expenditure

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Sub- Sub-
surface Plant and surface Plant and
assets  equipment Total assels equipment Total
$million  $million $million Smillion $million $million
7.811.1 6,070.8 13,8819 2.80%9.0 23774 5.186.4
(4,555.8) (3,071.3) (7.627.1) (1,947.7)  {1,461.0) (3.,408.7)
2,999.5 6,254.8 861.3 516.4 1.777.7
220.4 0.4 220.8 - - -
133.8 123.5 257.3 - - -
135.8 - 135.8 - - -
385 (0.8) 37.7 - - -
528.5 123.1 651.6 - - -
2.906.8 2.457.0 536386 749.8 S00.3 1.650.1
- - - 0.7 - 0.7
593.2 600.5 1.193.7 3011 1173 418 .4
47 1 - 471 32.0 - 32.0
{350.7} (0.7) {351.4) - 0.4 0.4
(401.6}) (239.5) (641.1) (181.2) (71.5) (252.7)
(128.0} {77.1} (215.1) (a41.1) (30.1) (71.2)
70.2 136.2 206.4 - - -
2.726.8 2876.4 5,603.2 B61.3 916.4 1.777.7
3,255.3 2,999.5 6,254.8 861.3 816.4 1.777.7
2229 0.7 2236 - - -
3.032.4 2,998.8 6.031.2 861.3 316.4 1.777.7
3.2585.3 2.999.5 6.254.8 861.3 916.4 1.777.7
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Oil and Gas Assets (continued)

2007

Cost at 31 December 2007

Less accumnulated depreciation,
depletion and impairment

Balance at 3t December 2007

Reconciliation of movements

Assets in development

Balance at 1 January 2007

Additions

Transter from exploration and
evaluation asselts

Transfer to producing assets

Exchanae diflerences

Balance at 31 December 2007

Producing assets

Balance at 1 January 2007

Acquisition of controlled entities

Acquisition of oil and gas

assels

Additions

Transfer from assets in
development

Transler from exploration and
evaluation assels

Depreciation and depletion
expense

Netimpairment losses

Exchange differences

Balance at 3t December 2007

Total oil and gas assets

Comprising:

Exploration and evaluation
expenditure pending
comrmercialisation

Other capitalised expenditure

rax oerver

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Sub- Sub-
surface Plant and surface Plant and
assets  equipment Total assels equipment Total
$million  $million $million $million  $million  $million
7,143.2 52121 12,355.3 2,475.2 2,259.7 4.734.9
(4.018.2) (2.754.7) (6.770.9} (1.725.4} (1,359.4) (3.084.8)
3.127.0 2,457.4 5.584.4 749.8 900.3 1.650.1
204.6 2.9 2075 - - -
52.1 14.6 66.7 - - -
109.6 - 109.6 - - -
(133.0) (14.1) (147.1) - - -
{(12.9) (3.0} {15.9) - - -
220.4 0.4 2208 - - -
2.651.9 23733 5.025.2 856.3 863.2 1.719.5
80.5 - 50.5 - - -
20.9 - 20.9 - - -
447 8 413.2 861.0 160.4 176.4 a3s8.8
133.0 141 147 .1 - - -
53.7 - 537 46.2 - 46,2
(431.3) (303.2) (734.5) (265.7) {130.1) {395.8)
- - - (47.4) (5.2) (56.8)
(19.9) {40.4) {60.3) - - -
2.906.6 2,457.0 5.363.6 749.8 800.3 1.650.1
3.127.0 2.457.4 5,584.4 749.8 900.3 1,.650.1
197.3 0.4 1897.7 - - -
2,929.7 2,457.0 5,386.7 749.8 $00.3 1.650.1
3,127.0 2,457 .4 5,584.4 749.8 G00.3 1.650.1
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

15. Other Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD

Land and Plant and . Land and Plantand

buildings equipment Total buildings equipment  Total

$million $million $million $million  $million 3$million
Cost at 31 December 2008 358 2755 3111 5.1 247.6 2527
Less accumnulated depreciation (3.2) {(148.0) {(151.2) {0.6) {142.4) (143.0)
Balance at 31 December 2008 32.4 127.5 159.9 4.5 105.2 109.7
Cost at 31 December 2007 271 236.1 263.2 4.8 224.9 2297
Less accumulaled depreciation (2.5) (125.9) {128.4) {0.6) {121.7} (122.3)
Balance at 31 December 2007 24.6 110.2 134.8 4.2 103.2 107.4
Reconciliation of movements
Balance at 1 January 2008 24.6 110.2 124.8 4.2 103.2 107.4
Additions 8.5 354 47.9 0.3 22.6 22.9
Depreciation {0.7) (22.1) (22.8) - {20.6) {20.8)
Balance at 31 December 2008 32.4 127.5 159.9 4.5 105.2 109.7
Balance at 1 January 2007 20.0 57.2 117.2 4.3 8%.9 94.2
Additions 5.1 37.3 42.4 - 38.7 38.7
Depreciation (0.5) (24.3) (24.8) {C.1) {23.4) {23.5)

Balance at 31 December 2007 24.6 110.2 134.8 4.2 103.2 107.4
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

16. Impairment of Cash-generating Units

At 31 Decemnber 2008 the Group reassessed the carrying amount of its oil and gas assets for
indicators of impairment such as changes in future prices, future cosls and reserves. As a result
of the significant decrease in the cil price, decreases in reserves and increases in the discount
rates applied, the recoverable amounts of some cash-generating units were formally reassessed
resulting in an impairment loss of $216.2 million.

Estimates of recoverable amounts are based on the asset's value in use. determined by
discounting each asset's estimated future cash flows at asset specilic discount rates. The pre-tax
discount rates applied were equivalent to post-tax discount rales between 88% and 15.8%
(2007:8.0% and 10.6%) depending on the nature of the risks specific to each asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent from other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Sub- Sub-
surface Plant and surface Plantand
CcGUu assets equipment Total assets equipment Total
$million  $million  $million  $million  $million  $million
2008
Sampang 7.5 30.9 128.4 - - -
Sangu 20.0 - 20.0 - - -
Other — impairment losses 1.1 - 1.1 - - -
International 118.6 30.9 143.5 - - -
Cooper Basin - 44.6 446 - 24.4 24.4
Paitricia Baleen 20.5 1.6 221 9.7 0.7 10.4
Mutineer-Exeter - - - 31.4 5.0 36.4
Australia 20.5 46.2 66.7 41.1 301 71.2
Total impairment loss 1391 771 216.2 411 301 71.2
2007
Mutineer-Exeter - - - 353 8.6 47.9
Other — impairment iosses - - - 8.1 0.6 8.7
Australia - - - 47.4 9.2 56.6
Total impairment loss - - - 47.4 9.2 56.6
CcGU Description
Cooper Basin Qil and gas field
Mutineer-Exeter Oil field
Patricia Baleen Gas lield
Sampang Qil field

Sangu Gas field
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

17. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

Equity securities available for sale 2.1 15.6 2.1 15.6

Investments in equity securities available for sale consist of investments in ordinary shares listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange, and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate,

18, Other Financial Assets
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

Investments in controlled entities - - 3.421.9 3.472.5
Other 20.9 32.7 18.9 16.1

20.9 32.7 3,440.8 3.488.6

19. Delerred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are atiributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Consolidated $million  $million  $million  $millicn  $million $million
Exploration and evaluation assets - - (73.5) (18.5) (73.5) (18.5)
Qil and gas assets - - (289.2) (351.5) (289.2) {351.5)
Other land, buildings, plant and

equipment 46 .4 63.5 - - 46.4 63.5
Other investments 0.8 - - (3.3) 0.8 {3.3)
Trade receivables - - (3.8) (5.7} (3.8) (5.7)
Other receivables - - (4.4) (0.1} (4.4) (0.1}
Inveniories - - (26.7) (20.1) {26.7) {20.1)
Prepayments - - {1.9) (2.2} (1.9) (2.2)
Derivative financial instruments - - (117.0) (19.1y  (117.0) (19.1}
Other assels - - (9.6} - (9.8) -
Equity-raising costs 0.8 0.6 - - 0.8 086
Trade payables - 8.5 - - - 6.5
interest-bearing loans and

borrowings 85.8 - - (87.1) 858 {(87.1)
Employee benefits 21.3 1.3 - - 21.3 19.3
Delined benefit obligation 13.3 3.4 - - 13.3 | 3.4
Other liabilities - - {3.4) - (3.4} -
Provisions 31.9 11.1 - - 319 11.1
Royalty related taxes - - (257.7) (217.4) (257.7)y (217.4)
Other ilems - - (52.1) (4.1} {52.1} (54.1)
Tax value of carry-forward losses

recognised 5.7 18.5 - - 5.7 18.5
Tax assets/{liabilities) 206.0 122.9 (839.1) (779.1) (633.1) (656.2)
Set-olf of tax (95.0) (36.1) 95.0 36.1 - -

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 111.0 85.8 (744.1) (743.0}) (633.1) (656.2)
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TGO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

19. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Assets Liabilities Net
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Santos Ltd $million $millicn $million  $million  $million  $million
Exploration and evaluation assets - - (10.2) {4.5) (10.2} (4.5)
QOil and gas assets - - {77.2) (71.7) (77.2) (71.7)
Other land, buildings. plant and

eqguipment - - (9.0} (7.7) (9.0) {7.7)
Other investments 0.8 - - (3.3) 0.8 (3.3)
Trade receivables - - (3.0} (5.0) (3.0) (5.0}
Other receivables - - (4.4) - (4.4) -
Inventories - - (15.3) {12.5) (15.3) (12.5)
Other assets 1.2 2.7 - - 1.2 27
Equity-raising costs 0.8 0.6 - - 0.8 0.6
Employee benelits 20.3 18.3 - - 20.3 18.3
Defined benefit cbligation 13.3 34 - - 13.3 3.4
Provisions 12.2 8.2 . - 12.2 8.2
Other liabilities - - 0.2) - {0.2) -
Royalty related taxes - - (680.8) {55.1) {60.8) (55.1)
Cther items - 8.4 (2.5) - {2.5) 8.4
Tax value of carry-ferward losses

recoghised - S0 - - - 9.0
Tax (assets}/liabilities 48.6 50.6 (182.86)} (159.8) (134.0) (109.2}
Set-off of tax (48.6) {50.8) 48.6 5.6 - -
Net tax liabilities - - (134.0}) (109.2) (134.0 (108.2)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

CONSOLIDATED SANTGOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

Temporary differences in relation to investmenis

in subsidiaries 1.017.1 834.4 - -

Deductible temporary differences 737 75.8 - -
Tax losses 45.9 72.8 - 27.8
1.1386.7 S83.0 - 27.8

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the future and that there will be sufficient futlure
taxable profits against which the benetits can be utilised. Unrecognised deductible temporary
differences and tax losses of $45.8 million (2007 $44.9 million) will expire between 20039 and
2028. The remaining deductible temporary differences and tax losses do not expire under current
tax legislation.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

20. Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables 3813 432.4 132.0 180.8

Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 2135 1773 64.8 55.3

Amounts owing to controlled entities - - 526.2 389.2
604.8 609.7 723.0 625.1

21. Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

This note provides information about the

contractual tlerms of the Group's interest-

bearing loans and borrowings. Far more

information abowut the Group's exposure to

interest rate and foreign currency risk, see

note 38.

Current liabilities

Obligations under finance leases 0.6 - 0.6 -

Bank loans — secured 241 1.4 - -

Bank loans — unsecured 27.6 17.3 - -

Commercial paper - 64.6 - -

Medium-term notes - 19.8 - -

Long-term notes 46.3 - - -

98.6 103.1 0.6 -

Non-current liabilities

Amounts owing to contrelled entities - - 4.082.8 2.478.2

Chligations under finance leases 2.6 - 2.6 -

Bank loans — secured 19.7 46.4 - -

Bank loans — unsecured 194.0 304.5 - -

Medium-term notes 457.2 438.8 - -

Long-term notes 1,682.3 1.203.2 - -

2,355.8 1,992.9 4.085.4 2.478.2

The ameounts owing to contrelled entities are for loans made in the ordinary course of business on
normal market terms and conditions and are not repayable for a minimum of nine years.

The Group has entered intc interest rate swap centracts to manage the exposure ta interest rates.
This has resulled in a weighted average interest rate on interest-bearing liabilittes of 5.74% as at
31 December 2008 (2007:5.62%). All borrowings are unsecured, with the exception of the
secured bank lcan, and arranged through a controlled entity, Santos Finance Ltd, and guaranteed
by Sanios Lid.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings (continued)
Details of major credit facilities

{(a) Bank loans - secured

A reserve-based lending facility for US$65.0 million was entered into in the 2006 reporting
period which bears a floating rate of interest. The facility is secured by a first charge over the
Group's interests in the Maleo and Kakap assets in Indonesia with a carrying amount at
31 December 2008 of A$122.3 milion. The average rate for the year was 7.04%,. and
A$43.8 million was outstanding at the balance sheet date (2007: A$47.8 million). The facility
is available until 2012, and the current amount drawn down is expected to be fully repaid by
2011,

{b) Bank loans - unsecured
The Group has access to the lollowing commitied revolving bank facilities:

Revolving facilities

2008 2007

Year of maturity Currency A$million A$mitlion
2011 Multi-currency 225.0 225.0
2012 Mukli-currency 375.0 3750
2013 Multi-currency 100.0 100.0
700.0 700.0

Revolving bank facilities bear interest at the relevant interbank reference rate plus 0.15% to
0.20%. The amount drawn at 31 Decernber 2008 is $nil (2007: $130.0 million).

Term bank loans

2008 2007
Year of maturity Currency Asmillion AS$miltion
2008 ush - 17.3
2009 uspo 276 21.4
2010 usD 28.1 22.2
2011 ush 29.1 229
2012 uso 25.0 19.7
2013 usp 20.9 16.4
2014 uspo 22.0 17.3
2015 UsD 22.4 17.7
2018 usD . 22.8 18.0
2017 usD 23.7 18.9

221.6 191.8

Term bank loans bear interest at the relevant interbank reference rate plus a margin of up to
0.75%. The amount outstanding at 31 December 2008 is US$153.1 million {(A$221.6 million)
(2007: US$168.1 million (A$191.8 million)} at a weighted average annual effective interest
rate of 5.03% (2007: 5.99%).
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings (continued)

{c} Commercial paper
The Group has an $800.0 million {2007 $800.0 million) Australian commercial paper program
supported by the revolving bank facilities reterred 10 in (b} above. At 31 December 2008, no
commercial paper is on issue (2007: $64.5 million) and the weighted average annual effective
interest rate is nil (2007 7.59%).

The Group has a $1.000.0 million (2007: $1,000.0 million) Australian rmediurm-term note
program.

Medium-term notes on issue

Effective
Interest 2008 2007
Year of issue Year of maturity rate $million $million
1598 2008 - - 19.8
2005 2011 4.63% * 349.4 349.0
2005 2015 8.10% 107.8 89.8
4572 458.6
* Floating rate of interest.
(e) Long-term notes
Long-term notes on issue
Teal Ul Yedlr o1 Sertye Zuvo aund i £UUo vy
issue maturity rate UsSs$million US$million A$million A$million
2000 2007 to 2015 5.72% 211.5 2031 3061 231.8
2002 2009 to 2022 5.39% 336.6 307.3 487 .1 350.7
2007 2017 to 2027 3.81% 646.3 5440 935.4 620.7
1.194.4 1,054.4 1.728.6 1,203.2
Provisions
CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Smillion $million $million $million
Current
Liability for annual leave 235 237 22.7 229
Liability for long service leave 39.0 35.7 38.3 35.2
Restoration 52.6 51.5 3.2 55
Non-executive Directors’ retirement benefits 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.5
116.7 112.4 65.8 65.1
Non-current
Liability for long service leave 4.2 3.5 4.1 3.2
Liability for defined benefit obligations
{reler note 30) 61.5 8.3 61.5 16.3
Hestoration 742.3 523.8 245.3 148.3

808.0 543.6 310.9 167.8
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Provisions {continued)

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than provisions relating to
employee benelits are set out below:

Total Non-
executive
Directors’
Total retirement
restoration benefits Total
Smillion $million $million
Consolidated
Balance at 1 January 2008 575.3 1.5 576.8
Provisions made during the year 148.8 01 148.9
Provisions used during the year (73.4) - (73.4}
Unwind of discount 31.3 - 21.3
Change in discount rate 100.9 - 100.9
Exchange differences 12.0 . - 12.0
Balance at 31 December 2008 794.9 1.6 796.5
Santos Ltd .
Balance at 1 January 2008 153.8 1.5 155.3
Provisions made during the year 55.5 0.1 55.6
Provisions used during the year (2.6) - (2.8)
Unwind of discount 8.7 - 8.7
Change in discount rate 33.1 - 33.1
Balance at 31 December 2008 248.5 1.6 250.1

Restoration

Provisions for future removal and restoration costs are recognised where there is a present
cobligation as a result of exploration, develepment, production, transportation or storage activities
having been undertaken, and it is probable that an outilow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. The estimated future obligaticns include the costs of removing facilities,
abandoning wells and restoring the aftected areas.

Non-executive Directors’ retirement benefits

Agreements exist with the Non-executive Directors appointed prior to 1 January 2004 providing
for the payment of a sum on retirement fram office as a Director in accardance with shareholder
approval at the 1989 Annual General Meeting. Such benelits ceased 1o accrue with effect from
30 June 2004. These benefits have been fully provided for by the Company.

In Jume 2007. the Board resolved to adopt a policy of indexation of these frozen benefits to
prevent further erosion of the real value. The entitlements are annually indexed to the five-year
agovernment bond rate.,

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

Other Liabilities

Current

Cross-currency swap contracts - 3.4 - -
Interest rale swap contracts - 9.9 - -
Fair value of emmbedded derivalives 56 - - -
Other 2.9 2.1 - -

8.1 15.4 - -
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million  $million  $million  $million
23, Qther Liabilities {continued)
Non-current
Cross-currency swap contracts - 7.1 - -
Other ' 9.0 7.4 - -
5.0 14.5 - -
Capital and Reserves

|
|
24,

Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of Santos

Ltd

Consolidated

Balance at 1 January 2008

Movement per recognised income and
expense statement

Share options exercised by employees

Shares issued

Share buy-back

Dividends to shareholders

Equity attributable 10 eguity holders of
Santos Lid

Equity atiributable to minerity interest

Balance at 31 December 2008

Balance at 1 January 2007

Movement per recognised income and
expense statement

Share options exercised by employees

Shares issued

Share buy-back

Dividends to shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2007

Santos Ltd

Balance at 1 January 2008

Movement per recognised income and
expense statement

Share options exercised by employees

Shares issued

Share buy-back

Dividends to shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2008

Balance at 1 January 2007

Movement per recognised income and
expense statement

Share options exercised by employees

Shares issued

Share buy-back

Dividends to sharehclders

Balance at 31 December 2007

Share Translation Fair value Retained Total
capital reserve reserve earnings equity
$million $million $million $million $million
23316 (280.3) 7.4 1,034.4 3.093.1

- 935 (9 .4) 1,632.9 1.717.0

25 - - - 2.5
2531 - - - 2531
(56.4) - - (245.0) {301.4}

- - - {286.3) {286.3)
2.530.8 (186.8) (2.0} 2.138.0 4.478.0
0.5 - {(0.2) 0.3
2531.3 {186.8} (2.0} 2,135.8 4.478.3
2,254 .4 (213.9) 136 1,301 .4 3.355.5
- {66.4) (6.2) 232.8 160.2

3.0 - - - 3.0
144.4 - - - 144 4
(70.2) - - (231.2) (301.4}
- - - (268.6) (268.6)
23316 (280.3) 7.4 1,034.4 3,083 1
23316 - 7.4 1,130.6 3,469.6
- - (9.4) 2.9 (6.5}

2.5 - - - 2.5
2531 - - - 253.1
{(56.4) - - (245.0} {301.4}
- - - _(286.3) {286.3)
25308 - (2.0} 602.2 3,131.0
2,254 4 - 2.4 401.7 2.658.5
- - 50 1.228.7 1.233.7

3.0 - - - 30

144 4 - - 144.4
(70.2) - - {231.2) {301.4})

- - - {268.6) (258.6)
23318 - 7.4 1.130.6 3,469.6
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Capital and Reserves (continued)

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all fareign exchange differences arising from
the franslation of the financial statemments of foreign operations where their functional currency is
different to the presentation currency of the reporting entily, as well as from the translaticn of
liabilities thal hedge the Company's net invesiment in a foreign subsidiary and exchange
differences that arise on the translation of monetary items that form part of the net investmen in a
foreign operation.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net chanae in the fair value of available-for-sale
investments until the investment is derecognised.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
Share capital 2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million  $million  $million

584,812,875 (2007: 585,964,352) ordinary

shares, fully paid 1.946.4 1,747.2 1.946.4 1.747.2
88.000 (2007: 88.000) ordinary shares, paid to one

cent - - - -
6.000.000 (2007: 6,000,000) redeemable

convertible preference shares 584.4 584.4 584.4 584.4

2,530.8 2.331.6 2.530.8 2.331.6

In accordance with changes to the Corporations Law effective 1 July 1998, the shares issued do
not have a par value and there is no limit on the authorised share capital of the Company.

2008 2007 2008 2007

Movement in tully paid ordinary
shares Note Number of shares $million  $millicn
Balance at the beginning of the year 585,964,352 598,524,106 1.747.2 1.670.0
Santos Employee Share Acquisition

Plan 31{a) 111,153 100,650 1.4 1.3
Santos Employee Share Purchase

Plan 31(a) 300,100 400 3.3 -
Shares issued on exercise of options  31(b) 303,583 455,398 25 3.0
Shares issued on vesling of Share

Acquisition Rights 31{b} 141,330 - - -
Santas Executive Share Plan 31(c) - - - -
Non-executive Director Share Plan 31{d) 33,356 14,847 0.5 0.2
Dividend Reinvestment Plan ("DRP™)  24(a) 2,323,249 4,695,296 35.1 51.6
DRP underwriting agreement 24({a) 14,123,057 6,844,930 212.8 91.3
Off-market buy-back 24({b) (18,487.305) (24,671.275) {56.4) {70.2)
Balance at the end of the year 584,812,875 585,964.352 1.946.4 1.747.2
Redeemable convertible
preference shares
Balance at the beginning and end of

the year 24(c) 6,000,000 6,000,000 584 .4 584.4

Fully paid ordinary shares carry ane vole per share, entitle the holder to participate in dividends
and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion to ihe number of and amounts paid
an the shares held. This is subject to the prior entitterments of the redeemable convertible
prelerence shares. The market price of the Company's ordinary shares on 31 December 2008
was $14.87 (2007: $14.12).
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Capital and Reserves (continued)

(a) Dividend reinvestment plan
The Santes Dividend Reinvestment Plan is in operation. Shares are allocated at the daily
weighted average market price of the Company's shares on the ASX over a period of seven
business days commencing on the business day afler the Dividend Record Dale. At this
time. the Board has determined that no discount will apply. The Dividend Reinvestment Pian
has been fully underwritien since payment of the 2007 interim dividend.

{b) OtHf-market buy-back
Cn & October 2008, the Company bought back 18,487,305 fully paid ordinary shares.
representing 3.07% of {ully paid ordinary shares on issue at that date, at a price of $16.23
per share. $56.4 million was debited against the Company's capital account (including
$1.3 millicn transaction costs, net of tax) and $245.0 million was debited against retained
earnings.

On 30 June 2007, the Company bought back 24,671,275 fully paid ordinary shares.
represeming 4.10% of fully paid ordinary shares on issue at that date, at a price of $12.16
per share. $70.2 million was debited against the Company's capital account (including
$1.4 million transaction cosis, net of tax) and $231.2 million was debited against retained
earnings,

{c) Redeemable convertible preference shares
On 30 September 2004, the Company issued 8,000,000 redeemable convertible preference
shares at $100 each, which resulted in an amount of $600,000,000 being credited to the
Company's capital account before deducting the costs of issue.

Redeemable convertible preference shareholders receive a floating preferential.
-nan-cumlative dividend which incarparates tha wvalua of franking cradite {i . it ic an =

grossed up basis), set ai the Bank Bill Swap Rate for 180-day bills plus a margin, Dividends
on redeemable converible preference shares are in pricrity to any dividend declared on
ordinary class shares. Redeemable convertible preference shareholders are not entitied to
vote at any general meetings, except in the following circurnstances:
(D on a proposal:

(1} to reduce the share capital of the Company;

(2} that affects rights attached to the redeemable convertible preterence shares;

(3) to wind up the Company: or

(4} for the disposal of the whole of the property, business and undertaking of the

Company:
(ii) on a resolution to approve the terms of a buy-back agreement;
(i) during a pericd in which a dividend or part of a dividend on the redeemable

convertible preference shares is in arrears; or
{iv)  during the winding up of the Company.

In the event of the winding up of the Company, redeemable convertible preference shares
will rank for repayment of capital behind all creditors of the Company. but ahead of the
ordinary class shares.

The redeemable convertible preference shares may. at the sole discretion of the Company.
be converted into ordinary class shares and/or exchanged.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to sateguard the ability 10 continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for sharehoiders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to maintain an efficient capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Capital and Reserves (continued)

Fasn occi VEeD

Consistently with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. The Group undertakes this on a forecast and actual results basis. This ratio is calculated as
total capital. Net debt is calculated as 1otal interest-bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and value of financial derivatives used 1o hedge net
debt. Total capital is calculated as total equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. Equity

net debt divided by

- includes redeemable convertible preference shares.

Curing 2008 the Group's target was to maintain a gearing ratic below 45% and a BBB+ Standard &
Poor's credit rating. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 were as

follows:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $rnillion $million $million
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings
(note 21) 2.454 .4 2,096.0 4.088.0 2,478.2
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 9) (1.552.9) (200.8) (1.,402.9) (56.8)
Nei fair value of financial derivatives used
1o hedge debt (notes 12 & 23):
Crass-currency swap contracts (92.0) 10.5 - -
Interest rate swap contracts {303.5) {67.3) - -
Net debt 506.0 1,838.7 2,683.1 2,421.4
Total equily 4.478.3 3,093.1 3.131.0 3,469.6
Total capital 4,984.3 4,931.8 5814.1 5,881.0
Gearing ratio 10.2% a7 3% 46 1% A1 1%

The decrease in the Group gearing ratio resulted primarily from the receipt of proceeds from the
sell-down of the Gladstone LNG project during the year.

Dividends
Dividends recognised during the year by the Company are:
Dollars Totat Franked/ Payment
per share 3$million unfranked date
2008
interim 2008 redeernable preference 30 Sep
$3.3365 20.0 Franked 2008
Final 2007 redeemable preference $2.8983 18.0 Franked 31 Mar 2008
Interim 2008 ordinary 30 Sep
$0.22 1311 Franked 2008
Final 2007 ordinary $0.20 117.2 Franked 31 Mar 2008
—2883
2007
Interirn 2007 redeemable preference $2.8592 17.1 Franked 2 Oct 2007
Final 2008 redeemable preference $2.7272 16.4 Franked 2 Apr 2007
Interim 2007 ordinary $0.20 115.4 Franked 2 Qct 2007
Final 2006 ordinary $0.20 119.7 Franked 2 Apr 2007

268.6

Franked dividends paid during the year were franked at the tax rate of 30%.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Capital and Reserves (continued)

Aiter the balance sheet date the foliowing dividends were proposed by the Directors. The
dividends have not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences.

Dollars Total Franked/ Payment
per share $million unfranked date
Final 2008 redeemable preference $2.9989 18.0 Franked 31 Mar 2009
Final 2008 ordinary $0.20 117.0 Franked 31 Mar 2009

135.0 .

The financial effect of these dividends has not been brought to account in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008 and will be recognised in subsequent financial reports.

SANTOS LTD
2008 2007
$million $million

Dividend franking account
30% franking credits available to shareholders
of Santos Lid for future distribution, after
adjusting for franking credits which will arise
from the payment of the current tax liability at
31 December 2008 1.061.8 661.6

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to
declare dividends.

The impact on the dividend franking account of dividends proposed after the balance sheet date
but not recognised as a liability is to reduce it by $57.9 million (2007: $57.9 million).
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3% DECEMBER 2008

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable 1o
ordinary equity holders of Santos Ltd (after deducting dividends paid on redeemable convertible

preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during ihe
year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of Santos Ltd (after adding back the dividends paid on redeemabhle convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion
of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares,

CONSOLIDATED

2008 2007
$million $million
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings
per share reconciles fo the net prolit afler 1ax in the income
staternent as follows:
Net prafit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Santos Lid
from continuing operations 1.650.1 4249
Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Santos Lid
from discontinued operations - (65.6)
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Santos Ltd 1,650.1 3592
Dividends paid on redeemable convertible preference shares (38.0) {33.5)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 1,612.1 3258
Dividends paid on redeemable convertible preference shares 38.0 33.5
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 1.650.1 359.3
2008 2007

Number of éhares

The weighied average number of shares used for the purposes
of calculating diluted earnings per share reconciles to the
number used to calculate basic earnings per share as follows:

Basic earnings per share 580.706.5186 590.505.305
Partly paid shares 71.222 65,864
Executive share oplions 1,446,209 818,109
Share acquisition rights 1,694,044 1,846.671
Redeemable convertible preference shares 36,650.691 -
Dituted earnings per share 630,568.682 593.235.949

Partly paid shares outstanding issued under the Santos Executive Share Plan, options outstanding
issued under the Santos Executive Share Option Plan, Share Acquisition Rights {"SARs") issued to
eligible executives and redeemable convertible preference shares have been classilied as potential
ordinary shares and included in the calcutation of diluted earnings per share in 2008. The number
of shares included in the calculation are those assumed to be issued for no consideration, being
the difference between the number that would have been issued at the exercise price and the
numkber that would have been issued at the average market price.

Redeemable convertible preference shares have not been included in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share for 2007 as their impact was not dilutive.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Earnings per Share (continued)

During the year. 303,583 options (2007: 455,398) and 141,330 SARs (2007: nil) were converted to
ordinary shares. The diluted earnings per share calculation includes that portion of these options,
SARs and partly paid shares assumed to be issued for nil consideration, weighted with reference
to the date of conversion. The weighted average number included is 181,447 (2007: 321,982).

460,385 options (2007: 335.500) and 236,426 SARs (2007: 273,100) lapsed during the year. The
diluled earning per share calculation includes that portion of these options and SARs assumed to
be issued for nil consideration, weighted with reference 1o the date the options or SARs lapsed.
The weighted average number included is 177,527 (2007: 104,179).

To calculate earnings per share amounts for the discontinued operations, the loss figure used in
the nunealal and the weighled avelage nanber of vidinary shiares Tue Lbuth basic and Jdiluled

amounts are per the above tables.

CONSOLIDATED

2008 2007
cents cenis
Earnings per share for continuing and
discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share:
From continuing operations 272.9 66.3
From discontinued operations - (11.1)
272.9 55.2
Diluted earnings per share:
From continuing operations 261.7 66.0
From discontinued operations - {(11.1)

261.7 54.9




b Bl L N L

26.

56

I~ i LA VL S LVVT AV e, Lo Al L 1 § o o/ 1lao rax oerver

SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Consolidated Entities

Country of Country of
Name incorporation Name incorporation
Santos Lid {Parent Entity) AUST Santos (Bawean) Pty Lid AUST
Controlled entities': Santos {BBF) Pty Lid AUST
Alliance Petroleum Australia Pty Ud * AUST Controfled entities of Santos (BBF} Pty Ltd
Basin Oil Pty Ltd AUST Santos (SPV) Pty Ltd ALST
Boston L.H.F. Pty Lid AUST Conirolled entities of Santos (SPV) Fiy Lid
Bridgefield Pty Ltd AUST Novus Nominees Pty Lid AUST
Bridge Cit Developments Pty Limited © AUST Santos Brantas Pty Ltd AUST
Bronco Energy Pty Limited AUST Santos {Madura Offshore) Pty Ltd AUST
Canso Resources Pty Ltd AUST Santos UK (Kakap 2} Limited UK
Coveyark Pty Lid AUST Santos {Donggala) Pty Ltd AUST
Doce Pty Ltd AUST Santos Egypt Pty Ltd AUST
Fairview Pipeline Pty Ltd AUST Santos Hides Ltd PNG
Farmout Drillers Pty Ltd AUST Santas International Operations Pty Lid AUST
Gidgealpa Gil Pty Lid AUST Santos International Ventures Pty Lid AUST
Kipper GS Pty Ltd AUST Santos Niugini Exploration Limited PNG
Controlled entity of Kipper GS Pty Lid Santos (Nth Bali 1} Pty Ltd AUST
Santos Carbon Pty Lid AUST Santos (Papalang) Pty Ltd AUST
Moome Pipeline Campany Pty Ltd AUST Santos (Popedi) Pty Ltd AUST
Reei Qi Pty Lid © AUST Santos Vietmam Pty Ltd AUST
Santos Asia Pacific Pty Ltd AUST Zhibek Resources Limited ™ UK
Controlled entities of Santos Asia Pacilic Pty Lid Controlled entity of Zhibek Resources Limited
Santos {Sampang) Pty Ltd AUST CJSC KNG Hydrocarbons ** KGZ
Santos {Warm) Pty Ltd AUST  Santos (JBJI1) Pty Lid AUST
Santos Australian Hydrocarbens Pty Ltd AUST  Controlfed entities of Santos (JBJ1} Ply Ltd
Santes (BOL) Pty Ltd ° AUST Santos (JBJZ} Pty Ltd AUST
Controfled entity of Santos (BOL) Pty Ltd Ceonlrolled entily of Sanios (JBJZ2) Pty Lid
Bridge Oil Explaration Pty Limited AUST Shaw River Power Station Pty Ltd {previously
Santes CSG Pty Ltd AUST Santos (JBJS3) Pty Ltd} AUST
Santos Danwin LNG Pty Ltd ° AUST  Santos (JPDA 06-104} Pty Ltd AUST
Santos Direct Pty Ltd AUST  Santos (JPDA 91-12} Pty Ltd AUST
Santos Facilies Pty Ltd AUST  Santes (NARNL Cooper) Pty Ltd © AUST
Santos Finance Lid AUST  Santos (N.T.) Pty Ltd AUST
Santas GLNG Pty Ltd ® AUST  Controlled entity of Santos (N.T.) Pty Ltd
Conirolled entity of Santos GLNG Ply Lid Bonaparte Gas & Qil Pty Limited AUST
GLNG Operations Pty Ltd "° AUST  Santas Ofishore Pty Lid © AUST
Santos (Globe) Pty Ltd AUST  Santos Qil Exploration {iMalaysia) Sdn Bhd
Santos International Heldings Pty Lid AUST {in liquidation) MY
Controlled entities of Santos International Santos Petroleum Ply Lid AUST
Holdings Pty Lid Santos GNT Pty Ltd ° AUST
Barracuda Limited PNG Controlled entities of Santos QNT Pty Ltd
CJSC South Petreleum Campany ' KGZ Santos QNT {No, 1) Pty Ltd * AUST
Lavana Limited PNG Ceontrolled entities of Santos QNT (No. 1) Pty Lid
Petroleum Ventures B.V. NL Santos Petraleum Management Ply Lid * AUST
Sanro Insurance Pte Ltd SG Santos Petroleum Operations Pty Ltd AUST
Santar Americas and Euvrope Corporation USA TMOC Exploeation Proprietary Limited AUST
Controlled entities of Santos Americas and Santos QNT (No. 2) Pty Lid ® AUST
Europe Corporation Controfled entitiec of Santos ONT (No. 2} Pty Ltd
Santos TPY Corp USA Moaonie Oil Pty Ltd AUST
Controlled entities of Santos TPY Corp Petramin Pty Ltd AUST
Santos Queensland Corp USA Santos (209) Pty Lid {in liquidation) * AUST
Santos TOG Cerp USA Santes Exploration Pty Lid AUST
Controfled entities of Santos TOG Corp Santes Gnuca Pty Lid AUST
Santos TOGA Pty Ltd AUST Transeil Pty Ltd AUST
Controlled entily of Santos TOGA Ply Lid Santos Rescurces Pty Ltd AUST
Santos TPC Piy Ltd AUST  Santos (TGR) Pty Lid AUST
Santos TPY CSG Corp USA Santos Timor Sea Pipeline Pty Ltd AUST
Santos Bangladech Limited (previously Cairn Sesap Ply Lid AUST
Vamgas Pty Ltd * AUST

Energy Bangladesh Limited} UK
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLILED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Consolidated Entities (continued)

Notes
1 Beneficial interests in all controlled entities are 100%, except:
» CJSC South Petroleumn Company (70%);
e CJSC KNG Hydrocarbons (54%);
s  GLNG Cperations Pty Ltd (60%6); and,
=  Zhibek Resources Limited (75%).
Carnpany is party to a2 Deed of Cross Guarantee. Reler note 37.
Company incarporated during the year.
Company acquired during the year. Refer note 27,
Company placed into voluntary liquidation during the year.
Associated Petroleum Pty Ltd and Santas (NGA) Pty Lid were liquidated on 12 December 2008.

Do ok W

Country of incorporation

AUST - Australia

KGZ - Kyrgyz Republic

MY - Malaysia

NL - Netherlands

PNG - Fapua New Guinea

G - Singapore

UK - United Kingdom

USA - United States of America

In the financial stalements of the Company, investments in controlled entities are recognised at
cost, less any impairment losses.

Acquisitions of Subsidiaries

During the financial year the following controfled entities were acquired and their operating results
have been included in the income statement from the date of acquisition:

Contribution to

Beneticial consolidated
Date of interest Purchase profit since
Name of entity acquisition acquired consideration acqguisition
% $million $million
Zhibek Resources Limited 17 Novemnber 2008 75% 0.1 -
CJSC KNG Hydrocarbons 17 November 2008 54% - {0.7)

CJUSC KNG Hydrocérbons is a subsidiary of Zhibek Resources Limited and is engaged in
exploration for ail in the Kyrgyz Republic, both have no operating revenues. |f the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2008, there would be no impact on Group revenue and net profit,

The consideration for the acquisition comprises an initial payment of £31,200 (A$73,265), and
deferred consideration of US$1.3 million (A$2.0 million), being the commitment to fund the minority
interest's share of phase 1 of the exploration prograrn over 2009.

The Group has the right 1o withdraw from the exploration program either within 60 days of
cornpletion of the seismic program and subject to paying US$3.0 million to Xtract International Ltd.
the original owner ot Zhibek Resources Limited, or within 60 days after completion of phase 2, or
within 80 days after the drilling and completion of ihe first qualifying well or if the Tashkumyr
licence is not renewed of extended.

During the year, the Group commitied to fund the minority interest's share of phase 2 of the
exploration program associated with the 2006 acquisition of CJSC South Petroleum Company.
Accordingly an increase in the expleration and evaluation asseils acgquired and deferred
consideration payable of $11.6 million has been recognised during the current year.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED

ENTITIES

i/ 100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Acquisitions of Subsidiaries (continued)

The acquisitions had the following efiect on the Group's assets and liabilities:

FaxX oerver

Carrying Fair value Recognised
amounts adjustments values
$million $mitlion $million
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 - 0.1
Trade and other receivables 1.1 - 1.1
Exploration and evaluation assets, 0.5 14.5 15.0
Trade and other payables (1.0} - (1.0}
Deferred tax liabilities - {1.6) {1.6)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 0.7 12.9 13.6 !
|
The cost of the acquisitions is as follows: !
Cash paid 0.1
Deferred consideration 13.5
Total cost of the acquisitions 13.6
The cash outflow an acquisition of
controlled entities is as follows:
Cash paid {0.1)
Net cash acquired with subsidiaries 0.1
Deferred consideration paid * (7.5)
Net consolidated cash cutflow (7.5)

Delerred consideration paid in 2008 comprises:

+ $6.2 million paid in early setitement of the performance payments associated with the 2007
Bronco Energy Ply Limited acquisition {$8.0 million). The value of the oil and gas assets
acquired has been decreased by $1.8 million accordingly.

* $1.3 million paid in relation to the 2006 acquisiticn of CJSC South Petroleum Company. in |
lieu of the US$1.0 million worth of shares in $Santos Ltd that were to be issued on the
Group committing to fund the minority interest's share of phase 2 of the exploration

program.

In 2007, the Group acquired 100% beneficial interest in the following controlled entities:

Date of Purchase
Name of entity . acquisition consideration
$million

Petroleurn Veniures B.V. 22 January 2007 141
Gidgealpa Qil Pty Ltd 7 June 2007 1.7
Bronco Energy Pty Limited 25 June 2007 10.7
Cairm Energy Bangladesh

Limited 25 QOctober 2007 62.9
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Interests in Joint Ventures

(a)

{b}

rasr ool vl

The lollowing are the significant joint ventures in which the Group is a jaint venturer:

Joint venture

Cash-generating unit

Principal activities

% interest

*

Oil and gas assets -
Producing assets

Bayu-Undan Liquids

Bayu-Undan LNG

Casino

Fairview

Madura PSC (Maleo)

Mereenie

John Brookes

Mutineer-Exeter

Sampang PSC

{Nivnna Wartal

Sangu

Stag

SA Fixed Factor Area

SWQ Unit

Qil and gas assets -
Assets in
development

Hides

Kipper

Reindeer

darik)

Exploration and
evaluation assets
Evans Shoal

Bayu-Undan
Bayu-Undan
Casino

Fairview
Madura PSC
Mereenie

John Brookes
Mutineer-Exeter

Samnana PSC
Sangu PSC

Stag
Cooper Basin
Cooper Basin

Hides
Kipper
Reindeer

Gas production

Gas preductian

Gas preduction

Gas preduction

Gas production

Qil and gas production
Gas production

Qil producticn

Ol and aas pradoction
Gas production

Oil and gas production
Oil and gas production
Gas production

Gas development
Gas development
Gas development

Contingent gas resource

11.4
11.4
50.0
45.7 °
867.5
65.0
45.0
33.4

45N
37.5

66.7
66.6
60.1

31.0
50.0
45.0

40.0

The Group’s interest in Fairview decreased from 76.1% 1o 45.7% as a result of the sale

of 40% imterest to PETRONAS during the year,

The Group recognises its interests in the iollowing jointly controlled entities using the
proportionate consolidation method of accounting:

Joint venture entity

% interest

Darwin LNG Pty Lid

Easternwell Drilling Services Holdings Pty Lid
Fairview Power Pty Ltd (in liquidation)
GLNG Operations Pty Lid

11.4
50.0
50.0
60.0
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $millien  $million $miltion
28. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)
The Group's share of the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the jointly controlled
entities, which are included in the
consolidated financial statements using the
proporticnate consolidation method of
accounting, are as follows:
Current assets 49.8 46.1 - -
Non-current assets 194.7 148.8 - -
244.5 194.9 - -
Current liabilities (98.0) {63.1) - -
Non-current liabilities (15.3) {4.3) - -
Net assets 131.2 127.5 - -
Revenue 2375 120.0 - -
Expenses {213.7) {96.0) - -
Profit before income tax 23.8 24.0 - -
() The Group’s share of capital expenditure
commitments and minimum exploration
commitments in respect of joint ventures are:
Capital expenditure commitments 366.3 287.4 93.0 154.4
Minimum exploration commitments 186.5 336.0 7.2 35.0
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $rmillion $million  $million
29. Notes to the Cash Flow Statements
{(a} Reconciliation of cash flows from
operating activities
Profit after income tax 1,650.1 359.3 201 1,270.2
Add/(deduct) non-cash items:
Depreciation and depletion 663.9 759.3 2733 4183
Net impairment loss/(reversal) on invesiment
in controtled entities - - 49.6 (380.7)
Nel impairment {reversal)/loss on
receivables due from controlled entities - - (23.8) 253
Net impairment loss on receivables C.4 - 0.3 -
Dividends received from controlled entities - - (27.0) -
Net borrowing costs paid to cantrelled
entities - - 146.9 -
Exploration and evaluation expensed 179.0 234.8 222 54.2
Net impairment loss on oil and gas assets 216.2 - 71.2 56.6
Net (gains)/losses on fair value hedges {7.3) 2.4 - -
Share-based payments expense 8.3 52 83 5.2
Borrowing costs capitalised {9.5) {6.3) - -
Unwind of the effect of discounting on
provisions 313 23.9 87 8.5
Change in fair value of financial asseis
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss 125 11.9 - 1.3
Defined benefit plan expense 3.0 56 1.8 5.6
Foreign exchange {gains)/losses {24.4) (0.4) (7.1) 0.7
Nel (gain)/loss on saie of non-current assets  (1,698.5) 28 (0.8) (1.7)
Net gain on sale of available-far-sale
financial assets (0.3) (33.4) (0.3) {13.9)
Net loss an sale of discontinued operations - 867.7 - -
Net cash provided by operating activities
before changes in assets or liabilities 1,024.7 1,432.8 543 .4 1450.8
Add/({deduct) change in operating assets or
liabilities net of acquisitions or disposals of
businesses:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables 10.5 (90.2) 49.4 {0.9)
Increase in inventories {58.4) (49.8) (20.1) {38.8)
{Increase)/decrease in other assets {0.5) 2.1 (7.0) {1.9)
Net increase/{decrease) in deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities 73.5 345 39.9 (10.7)
Increase/{decrease) in currem tax liabilities 398.0 (181.2) {(174.4) (178.5)
(Decrease}/increase in frade and other
payables {25.5) 59.6 {60.8) 19.4
Increase in provisions 50.9 6.1 6.0 27
Net cash provided by operating activities 1.473.2 1.213.9 376.4 1.241.9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSQOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million Emillion
29. Notes to the Cash Flow Statements (continued)
(b) Non-cash financing and investing
activities
Dividend Reinvestiment Plan 35.1 51.6 351 51.6
Dividends received from controlled entities - - 33.9 -
Share subscriptions in controlied entities - - {13.8) -
Income tax transferred from controlled
entities - - 612.9 -
Net borrowing costs paid 1o controlled
entities - - (146.9) -
30. Employee Benefits
(a) Liability for defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit members of the Sanics
Superannuation Plan receive a lump sum
benefit on retirement, death, disablement
and withdrawal. The defined benefit
section ol the Plan is closed to new
members. All new members receive
accurnulation only benefits.
Defined benefit plan
Amcunt recognised in the balance sheet:
Deticit in plan recognised in non-current
provisions {refer note 22) 61.5 16.3 61.5 16.3
Other financial assets (refer note 18) {17.1) (4.9) {17.1) {4.9)
44.4 11.4 44 .4 i1.4
Movements in the liability for net defined
benefit obligations recognised in the
balance sheet
Liability at the beaginning of the year 11.4 18.4 11.4 18.4
Expense recognised in income statement 3.0 5.6 1.8 5.6
Amount capitalised in oil and gas assets 23 - 1.2 -
Amount recognised in retained earnings 36.5 (8.3) 36.5 {6.3)
Defined benefit receivable from controlled
entities - - 2.3 -
Employer contributions (8.8) (6.3) {(8.8) (6.3)
Liability at the end of the year 44 .4 11.4 44.4 11.4
Expense recognised in the income
statements
Service cost 35 6.4 2.1 6.4
Interest cost 3.6 5.6 2.2 5.6
Expected return on Plan assets {4.1) (6.4} (2.5) {6.4)

3.0 5.6 1.8

5.6
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million  $million
30. Employee Benefits (continued)
{a) Liability for defined benefit obligations (continued)
The expense is recognised in the
following line items in the income
statements:
Other expenses 3.0 - 1.8 -
Financial expenses - 5.6 - 5.6
3.0 5.6 1.8 5.6
Amounts recognised in statements of
recognised income and expense
Actuarial (loss)/gain in the year {36.5) 6.3 {36.5) 6.3
Tax eftect i1.0 {1.9) 11.0 (1.9)
Net aciuarial {loss)/gain in the year {25.5) 4.4 {25.5) 4.4
Cumulative actuarial {loss)/gain recognised
in the statement of recognised income and
expense, net of tax {23.4) 2.1 {(23.4) 2.1
Historical information for the
current and previous periods
CONSOLIDATED
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Smillion $million $million $million $million
Present value of defined benefit .
obligations 174.8 161.8 158.2 129.5 126.5
Fair value of Plan assets (113.3) {145.5) {131.9) (113.4) (108.7)
Delicit in Plan 61.5 16.3 26.3 16.1 17.8
Experience adjustments loss/(gain) on
Plan assets 43.2 (4.0) {6.3) (8.0) (5.5}
Experience adjustments (gainyloss on
Plan liabilities (13.7) {1.2) 17.5 (0.1} (4.5)
SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$million $million $million $million $million
Present value of defined benefit
obligations 174.8 161.8 158.2 129.5 126.5
Fair value of Plan assels {(113.3) (145.5) {131.8) (113.4) (108.7)
Deticit in Plan 61.5 16.3 26.3 16.1 17.8
Experience adjustrnents [oss/(gain) on
Plan assets 43.2 {4.0) {6.3) (8.0} (5.5)
Experience adjustments (gain)/loss on
Plan liabilities (13.7) (1.2} 17.5 {0.1} (4.5)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $raillion

30. Employee Benefits {(continued)

(a) Liability for defined benefit obligations {continued)

Reconciliation of the present value of the
defined benefit obligations

Opening defined benefit obligations 161.8 158.2 161.8 158.2
Service cost 8.4 9.1 8.4 9.1
Interest cost 8.7 8.0 8.7 8.0
Contributions by Plan participants 7.9 9.1 7.9 9.1
Actuarial losses/{gains) 6.8 (5.0} 6.8 {5.0)
Benefits paid (16.2) {15.7} (16.2) (15.7)
Taxes and premiums paid (2.7} (2.2) (2.7} {(2.2)
Transfers in 0.1 0.3 0.1 0.3
Closing defined beneiit obligations 174.8 161.8 174.8 161.8
Reconciliation of the fair value ot Plan
assets
Opaning fair value af Dlam aceata 14C.6 101.0 14¢C.6 101.0
Expecied return on Plan assets 10.0 9.1 10.0 9.1
Actuarial (losses)/gains {43.2) 4.0 (43.2) 4.0
Employer contributions 11.9 8.0 11.9 S.0
Contributions by Plan participants 7.9 9.1 7.9 9.1
Benelits paid {16.2) {15.7) {16.2) {15.7)
Taxes and premiums paid {(2.7) {2.2) (2.7} (2.2)
Transters in 0.1 - 0.3 0.1 0.3
Closing fair value of Plan assets 113.3 145.5 113.3 145.5
Plan assets
The percentage invested in each asset ¢class
at the balance sheet date:
CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Yo Yo Yo Yo

Australian equity 28 33 28 33
International equity 27 28 27 28
Fixed income 10 13 10 13
Property 13 9 13 9
Oiher 10 - 10 -
Cash 12 17 12 17

Fair value of Plan assets

The fair value of Plan assets includes no amounts relating to:
« any of the Group's own financial instruments; or
. any properly occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million Emillion $million $mnillion
30. Employee Benefits (continued}
{a} Liability for defined beneftit obligations (continued)

(b)

Actual return on Plan assets
Actual return on Plan assets (24.2) 9.2 {24.2) 9.2

Expected rate of return on Plan assets

The expected return on assels assumption is determined by weighting the expecied long-
term return for each asset class by the target allocation of assets 1o each asset class and
allowing for the correlations of the invesiment returns between asset classes. The returns
used for each asset class are net of investment tax and investment fees. An allowance for
asset-based administration expenses has also been deducted from the expected returmn.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the

balance sheet date (expressed as 2008 2007
weighted average) % pa % pa
Discount rate 4.0 53
Expecied rate of return on Plan assets 7.0 6.9
Expected average salary increase rate over

the life of the Plan 6.0 6.0

The expected rate of return on Plan assets includes a reduction to allow for the administrative
expenses of the Plan.

Expected contributions

The Group expects to contribute $8.3 million to the defined benefit superannuation plan in
2009.

Defined contribution plans

The Group makes contributions to several defined contribution plans. The amount recegnised
as an expense for the year was $8.4 million (2007: $8.5 million).
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROCLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans

(a)

Current general employee share plans
The Company currently operates two general employee share plans:

. the Santos Employee Share Acquisition Plan (*SESAP"); and
. the Santos Employee Share Purchase Plan {"SESPP").

Both of these plans have operated since 1997.

SESAP

Broadly, SESAP provides lor permanent eligible employees with at least a minimum period
of service determined by Directors as at the offer date (one year of completed service for
issues so far) 1o be entitled to acquire shares under this Plan. Executives participating in the
Executive Long-term Incentive Program in 2008, and casual employees and Directors of the
Company are excluded from participating in this Plan. Employees are not eligible to
participate under the Plan while they are resident overseas unless the Board decides
otherwise.

The Plan provides for grants of fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Company up to
a value determined by the Board which, to date, has been $1.000 per annum per eligible
employee. A trustee is funded by the Group tc acquire shares directly irom the Campany or
on market. The shares are then held by the trustee on behalf of eligible employees who
participate in ihe Plan.

The employee's ownership of shares allocated under the Plan, and his or her right to deal
with them, are subject to restrictions until the earlier cof the expiration of the restriction period
determined by the Board (being three years) and the time when he or she ceases to be an
empioyee. Participanis are entitled to insiruct the trustee as to the exercise of voting rights,
receive dividends and participate in bonus and rights issues during the restriction period.
Shares are granted to eligible employees at no cost to the employee.

Summary ol share movements in the SESAP during 2008 {and comparative 2007
information):

OPENING GRANTED DURING DISTRIBUTIONS
BALANCE THE YEAR DURING THE YEAR CLOSING BALANCE
Fair
value per Fair value Fair value
Grant dates Number Number share Number aggregate  Number aggregate
$ $ $
2008
18 November 2005 20,848 - - 89,848 1,164.977 - -
17 November 2006 105,156 - - 7176 117,648 97,980 1,456,963
20 November 2007 99,825 - - 7,200 119,379 92,625 1,377,334
21 November 2008 - 111,153 12.62 474 6,621 110,679 1,856,797
294 829 111,153 104,628 1,408,625 301,284 4,491,094
2007
22 November 2004 127,002 - - 127,002 1,679,802 - -
18 November 2005 96,272 - - 6,424 81,085 89,848 1,268,654
17 November 2006 113,620 - - 8,464 107,105 105,156 1,484,803
20 November 2007 - 100,650 13.33 225 11,471 99,825 1,409,529

336,894 100,650 142,715 1,879,543 204829 4,162,986
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

a1, Share-based Payment Plans {(continued)

{a}

Current general employee share plans (continued)

Shares are allocated at a price equal to the weighted average sale price of the Campany's
ordinary shares on the ASX during the one-week period up to and including the Grant Date.
This is shewn as fair value per share for shares granted during the year. The fair value of
shares distributed {rom the trust during the year and remaining in the trust at the end of the
financial year is the market price of shares of the Company on the ASX as at close of trading
on the respective dates.

Distributions during the year oaccurred at various dates throughout the year and therefore
have noi been separately listed.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group and the Company in
relation to SESAP during the year were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million
Employee expenses 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.3
Issued ordinary share capital 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.3

At 31 December 2008, the total number of shares acquired under the Plan since its
cammencement was 2,307,150.

SESPP

The general employee offer under SESPP is open to all employees {other than a casual
employee or Director of the Company} determined by the Bocard who are continuing
employees ai the date of the offer. However, employees who are nol resident in Australia at
the time of an offer under the Plan and those who have participated in the Executive Long-
term Incentive Program during the year will not be eligible to participate in that offer unless
the Board otherwise decides.

Under the Plan, eligible employees may be offered the opportunity to subscribe for or
acquire {ully paid ardinary shares in the capital of the Company atl a discount to market price.
subject to restrictions, including on disposal, determined by the Beard {which has been a
period of one year for issues so tar).. The subscription or acquisition price is Market Value
{being the weighted average sale price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the ASX during
the one-week period up to and including the cffer date)} less any discount determined by the
Board (5% for issues so far). Under the Plan, at the discretion of the Peard, financial
assistance may be provided to employees ic subscribe for and acquire shares under the
Plan. The 5% discount constitutes financial assistance for these purposes. Participants are
entitled to vote, receive dividends and participate in bonus and rights issues while the shares
are restricted.

On 21 November 2008, the Company issued 300,100 ordinary shares to 397 eiigible
employees at a subscription price of $10.91 per share under the Plan, being a 5% discount
on the Market Value of $11.48. The total market price of those shares on the issue date was
$3,766,255, based on the markel price at the close of trade on the date of issue $12.55.
The total amount received from employees for those shares was $3,274,091,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans {continued)

{a)

(b)

Current general employee share plans (continued)

A summary of share movements in the SESPP are set cut below:

OPENING GRANTED DURING RESTRICTION CEASED CLOSING
BALANCE THE YEAR DURING THE YEAR BALANCE
Fair vatue
Grant dates Number Number per share Number Date Number
$
2008
20 November 2007 400 . - 400 20 November 2008
21 NMovember 2008 - 300,100 11.48 - . 300,100
400 300,100 400 300,100
T Sy
2007 -
i7 November 2008 62,900 - - 62,900 17 November 2007
20 November 2007 - 400 15.72 - - 400
62,900 400 62,900 400

The fair value per share for shares granted during the year is Market Value {as defined
above). The consideration received by the Company per share is Market Value less the
discount of 5% referred to above.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group and the Company in
relation to the general employee offer under the SESPP during the year were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
A R s T R P T R e
Issued ordinary share capital 3.2 - 3.3 -

At 31 December 2008, the total number ot shares acquired under the general employee
offer of the Plan since its commencement was 1,122,400.

Executive Long-term Incentive Program

The Company’'s Executive Long-term Incentive Program provides for invitations to be
extended to eligible executives selected by the Beard.

The Program currently consisis of an offer of securities under:

. the Santos Employee Share Purchase Plan ("SESPP"); and
. the Santos Executive Share Option Plan ("SESOP™).

SESCOP has operated since 1997 and the SESPP has been used as a component of
executive compensation since 2003,

SARs and options
Each SAR and aption is a conditional ertittement ta a fully paid ardinary share. subject to the
satisfaction of performance conditions, on terms and conditions determined by the Board.

SARs and options carry no voting or dividend rights until the perforrmance conditions are
salisfied and, in the case of options, when the oplions are exercised or. in the case of SARs,
when the SARs vest.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)

Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ ") and Managing Director
Mr D J W Knox was appeointed as CEO and Managing Director on 28 July 2008.

©n 3 May 2008, the Company made equity granis to its Senior Executives for the long-term
incentive {"LTI") compenent of their remuneration for 2008, Mr Knox participated in these
grants in his capacity as Acting Chiet Executive Qfficer. The grants comprised:

* a performance-based component, equal to 71% of the total grant value {“Performance
Award"}; and

s a service-based compenent, equal to 29% of the total grant value ("Deferred Award").

The key terms of the Performance Award and Deferred Award are set out in 1he Eligible
Senior Executives section below.

Upon his formal appointment as CEO, Mr Knox received a furher grant of equity awards
("CEO Performance Award"} to supplement the grants already made 1o him in his Senior
Executive capacity.

The grants made 1o Mr Knox in 2008 constitute his full LTI entittement for the 2008, 2009
and 2010 financial years.

All LTI awards were granted. at Mr Knox' election, as either Share Acquisition Rights
("SARs") (under SESPP) or options {(under SESOP).

SARs and options were granted at no cost to the CEQ, with the number of SARs awarded
being determined by dividing the amount of the award by the volume weighted average price
of the Company's shares over the week up to and including the award date. The number of
options awarded is of equivaleni value calculated by an independent exper based an an
acceptable valuation method.

The CEO Performance Award operates on the same terms as the performance-based LTI
granted to other Senior Executives described below, that is, it is subject 1o performance
hurdles based on the Company’s Total Shareholder Return ("TSR") relative 1o the ASX 100
over a three-year performance peried. The Board believes the chosen performance hurdles
effectively align the CEQ's interests with thal of the Company's shareholders, as TSR is a
fair measure of shareholder returns and the ASX 100 represents the companies in which
most of the Company's shareholders could invest as an alternative to Santos,

As the CEO Performance Award forms part of the CEGQ's remuneration for each of the 2008,
2009 and 2010 financial years. it is divided into three tranches as iollows:

Tranche 1. Tested over the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010
Tranche 2: Tested over the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011
Tranche 3: Tesled over the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012,

The following numbers of SARs and options were granted to the CEQ in 2008:

SARs Options

Performance Award (F1) - 64,992

Deferred Award (F2) - 21,837
CEQ Perfarmance Award:

Tranche 1 (F3) 35,973 94,193

Tranche 2 (F4) 50,403 131,976

Tranche 3 (F5) 50,403 131,976

Total 136,779 444,974
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)

Depending on Santos’ relative TSR over the applicable performance period, each tranche of
the CEQ Performance Award will vest in accordance with the following schedule:

TSR percentile ranking % of grant vesting
< 50th percentile 0%

= 50th percentile 37.5%

51s1to 75th percentile 39% tc 75%

76th to 100th percentile 75% to 100%

Full vesting of the CEQ Performance Award will only occur where Santos’ TSR growth over
the performance period exceeds that of all other companies in the comparator group, and
therefore requires excepticnal performance. &

There is no re-testing of the performance conditions. SARs or options which remain
unvested following testing of the performance condition will lapse.

Upecn vesting of SARs, ordinary shares in Santos will automatically be allocated to Mr Knox.
These shares will be subject to restrictions until the earlier of ten years from the grant date.
cessation of employment, or the dale at which the Board approves, at Mr Knox's request. the
removal of the restrictions. Options may be exercised at any time between the vesting date
and the expiry date (27 July 2018), subject to payment of the exercise price of $17.36 per
option {being the volume weighted average price in the week up 10 and including the grant
date}).

During the financia! year, the Company granted 444,974 options over unissued shares to the
CEOQ as set out below:

2008 2007

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

price price
3 Number $ Number
Cutstanding at the beginning of

the year - - - -
Granted during the year 16.98 444,974 - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 16.98 444,974 - -

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 have an exercise price in the range of $15.39
to $17.36, and a weighted average contractual lite of ten years,

During the year no aptions were exercised (2007 nil).

The fair value of shares issued as a result of exercising the cplions or vesting of SARs
during the reporting period at their issue date is the market price of shares of the Company
on the ASX as at close of trading.

The fair value of services received in return tor share oplions granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured based on the Monte Carlo simulation method, The
contractual life of the oplion is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the models.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program {continued)

2008 2007
Performance Deferred CEQ Performance Awards
Award Award

Option grant F1 Fz F3 F4 F5
Fair value at grant date ($) 5.25 7.30 577 422 4.29 -
Share price on grant date ($) 17.71 17.71 17.40 17.40 17.40 -
Exercise price {§) 15.35 15.39 17.36 17.36 17.38 -
Expected volatility {weighted

average, %pa) 30.7 307 309 309 30.9 -
Opticn life {weighted average) 10 years 10 years 10 vyears 10 years 1t0years -
Expecied dividends {Y%pa) 23 23 23 23 2.3 -
Risk iree interest rate {based

on Australian government

bond yields) (Y%pa) 6.29 6.29 6.05 6.05 6.05 -

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility {calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

During the linanciat year, the Company granted 136,779 SARs to the CEO as set out below.
Shares alloecated on vesting of SARs will be subject to further restrictions on dealing for a
maximum of ten years after the original grant date. No amount is payable on grant or vesting
of the SARs.

Number of SARs

2008 2007
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year . 136,779 -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 136,779 -

Exercisable at the end of the year - -

The fair value of services received in return for SARs granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of SARs granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services received is
measured based on the Monte Carlo simulation method. The contractual life of the SARs is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Monte Carlo simulation method.

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility {calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share rights), adjusted for any expected changes to future
voiatilily due to publicly available information.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b) Executive Long-term Incentive Program {(continued)

2008 2007
CEQO Performance Award

CADA s [ s ] CaA [
rair value at grant aate (%) 13.82 B.6U 8.41 -
Share price on grant date ($) 17.40 17.40 17.40 -
Exercise price () - - .- -
Expected volatility (weighted

average. Y%pa) 30.9 30.9 30.9 -
Right life (weighted average) 10 years 10 years 10 years -
Expected dividends (%pa) 2.3 23 2.3 -
Risk free interest rate (based

on Australian government

bond yields) {%%pa) 6.05 5.0% 6.05 -

Former CEQ

Mr J C Ellice-Flimt retired on 25 March 2008. Consistent with the terms of his service
agreement, 2,312,500 of Mr Ellice-Flint's oplions which had not previcusly vested, were
vested and became exercisable upon cessation of his employment.

Each option entitles Mr Ellice-Flint to acquire one fully paid crdinary share in the Company at
a predetermined price, subject to satisfaction of vesting conditions. The grant size is
determined by reference to the median grant size given to executives in similar roles in
comparable companies.

No options have been granted io Mr Ellice-Flint since 20086.

At the 2006 AGM, shareholder approval was given for the grant of three tranches of options
1o Mr Ellice-Flint as follows:

Tranche Number of options Performance period
1 500,000 4 May 20086 — 26 August 2007
2 1,000,000 4 May 2006 — 28 August 2008
3 1,000,000 4 May 2006 — 26 August 2009

At 31 December 2008, the 2,500,000 options are on issue, and are exercisable. The
exercise price for the options granted is $11.36, being the volume weighted average price in
the ten days up te and including 9 March 2006 as approved by shareholders on 4 May 2006.
The options have a coniractual lite of 1en years.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b}

Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)

Eligible senior executives — SARs and options
During 2008, the Company made equity grants to its Senior Executives as the LT!
component of their remuneration for 2008. The grants comprised:

+ a periormance-based component, equal 1o 71% of the total grant value {"Performance
Award"); and

* a service-based component, equal to 29% of the total grant value ("Deferred Award")}.,

For the Performance Award, an additional 50% of the award was added tc the standard
grant for Relative TSR performance above the 75™ percentile, up 1o the 100™ percentile of
the comparator group. Consistent with its remuneration philosophy, the Board believes it is
appropriate to provide execulives with an additional incentive to strive for exceptional
performance, recognising that executives will only benefit from the additienal 509% where
Santos achieves a ranking in the top quartile of its comparator group. Executives will only
receive the full benelit of this additicnal component where Santos outperforms every other
company in the comparator group in delivering superior returns to shareholders.

Both the Performance Award and the Deferred Award were delivered, at the executive's
election, in the form of either SARs (under the SESPP) or options (under the SESOP).

SARs and options were granted at no cost to the executives with the number of SARs
awarded being determined by dividing the amount of the award by the volume weighted
average price of the Company’s shares over the week up to and including the award date.
The number of options awarded is of equivalent value calculated by an independent expen
based on an acceptable valuation method.

Vesting details of the Perfaormance Award and the Deferred Award are summarised below.

Performance Award

Vesting period 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.
Vesting condition Vesting of the Performance Award is based on relative TSR against
ASX 100 companies as at 1 January 2008.
Vesting schedule Relative TSR condition
Santos TSR Percentile Ranking % of grant vesting
< 50" percentile 0%
= 50" percentite 50%
51 to 75" percentile 52% to 100%
76" 10 100" percentile 102% to 150%
Exercise price $15,39 for options, being the volume weighted average price in the week

up to and including the grant date of 3 May 2008.
SARs have no exercise price.

Expiry/lapse Upon cessation of employment, SARs which have not already vested and
options which are not exercisable will, in general, lapse and be forfeited.

There is no re-testing of the performance conditions if they are not

satisfied.

Deferred Award

Vesting period 3 May 2008 to 2 May 2011

Vesting condition Vesting of the Deferred Award is based on continuous service to
2 May 2011, or three years from the grant date,

Vesting schedule 0% if the continuous service condition is not met.
100% if the continuous service condition is met.

Exercise price As for Performance Award.

Expiry/lapse As for Performance Award.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b)

Executive Long-term Incentive Program {continued)

Upen cessation of employment, SARs which have not already vested ang options which are
not exercisable will, in general, lapse and be forfeited. However, if cessation occurs due to
death, disability or redundancy, or in special circumstances approved by the Board. then a
proportion of the SARs and options may ves! and become exercisable.

Where there is a change in control, the Board may determine whether, and the extent to
which, SARs and options may vest.

During the financial year, the Company granted 880,533 options over unissued shares as
set oul below:

2008 2007

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

price price
$ Number $ Number
Qutstanding at the beginning of

the year 10.27 2,078,728 8.76 2,448,826
Granted during the year 15.39 880,533 13.82 421,200
Forieited during the year 9.71 {460,385) 875 (335.900)
Exercised during the year 8.41 {303,583) 6.57 {455.398)
Cutstanding at the end of the year 12.70 2,155,293 10.27 2.078,728
Exercisable at the end of the year 8.14 232.300 7.23 180.128

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 have an exercise price in the range of $6.95
to $15.39. and a weighted average coniractual life of 3.88 years.

During the year 303,583 options were exercised (2007: 455,398). The weighted average
share price at the dates of exercise was $17.81 (2007 $13.96).

The fair value of shares issued as a result of exercising the options or vesting of SARs
during the reporting period at their issue date is the market price of shares of the Company
on the ASX as at close of trading.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group and the Company in
relation to executive share options exercised during the financial year were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $enillion Smillion $million

Issued ordinary share capital 2.5 3.0 2.5 3.0

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured based on the Monte Carlo simulation method. The
contractual life of the option is used as an input into this maodel. Expectations cof early
exercise are incorporated into the models.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Share-based Payment Plans {(continued)

(b}

Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)

2008 2007
Perfermance Delerred Performance
Award Award Award Growth Award

Option grant F1 F2 E1 GA1 GAZ
Fair value at grant date ($) 5.25 7.30 3.32 3.87 1.97
Share price on grant date ($) 17.71 17.71 13.94 13.94 13.25
Exercise price (§) 15.39 15.39 14.14 14.14 12.81
Expected volatility (weighted

average, Y%pa) 30.7 30.7 24.2 24.2 239
Option life (weighted

average) 10 years 10 years 10 years _ 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends {%pa) 23 2.3 3.5 3.5 3.5
Risk-free interest rate {based

on government bond

yields}:

Australia (Y%pa) 6.29 6.29 6.26 6.26 6.26

United States (Y%pa) n/a n/a 5.00 n/a n/a

United Kingdom {Y%pa) n/a n/a 5.36 n/a n/a

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining lite of the share options). adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

During the financial year. the Company granted 241.668 SARs to eligible senior executives
as set out below. Shares allocated on vesting of SARs will be subject to further restrictions
on dealing for a maximum of ten years after the original grant date. No amount is payable on
grant or vesting of the SARs.

Number of SARs

2008 2007
OQutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,365,800 758,900
Granted during the year 241,668 880.000
Forfeited during the year {236,4286) (273.100}
Vested during the year {141,320) -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,229,712 1,365.800

Exercisable at the end of the year - -

The fair value of services received in return for SARs granted is measured by reference to
tne fair value of SARs granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services received is
measured based on the Monte Carlo simulation method. The contractual life of the SARs is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Monte Carlo simulation method.

The expected volatility is based on the histaric volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share rights), adjusted lor any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TCO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans (continued)

(b) Executive Long-term Incentive Program (continued)

2008 2007
Performance Deferred Performance Award  Growth
Award Award Award
SARs grant F1 F2 E1 E2 GA1
Fair value at grant date ($) 11.23 16.73 9.95 9.16 12.78
Share price on grant date ($} 17.71 17.71 13.94 13.25 13.94
Exercise price ($) - - - - -
Expected volatility (weighted
average, %pa) 307 30.7 24.2 23.9 24.2
Right life (weighted
average) 10 years 10years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends (Yopa) 2.3 23 3.5 3.5 3.5
Risk-free interest rate
(based on government
bond yields):
Ausitralia {(Y%epa) 6.29 6.29 B6.26 6.26 6.26
United States (%pa) n/a n/a 5.00 4.55 n/a
United Kingdom (%pa) n/a n/a 5.36 5.75 n/a

The amounis recognised in the income statements of the Group and the Company during
the financial year in relation to equity grants issued under the Execulive Long-term Incentive
Program were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $Smillion $million

Employee expenses:

CEO share options 0.3 - 03 -
CEO SARs 0.3 - 0.3 -
Former CEO share options 1.7 1.9 1.7 1.9
Executive share options 1.7 0.7 1.7 0.7
Executive SARs 4.3 2.6 4.3 2.6
8.3 5.2 8.3 5.2

Eligible senior execttives - Shares

No shares have been issued under the executive long-term incentive component of the
SESFP since 2004. At 31 December 2008, the total number of shares acquired under the
executive long-term incentive component of the Plan since its commencement was 220.912.

The shares allocated pursuwant to the SESPP were allotied to a trustee at no cost to
participants, 1o be held on their behalf. The allocation price is Market Value (as defined
below) and the trustee was funded by the Company to subscribe for the shares.

in general the shares were restricted for a period of ane year from the date of allotment. If a
participating execulive ceased employment during this period, the Board in iis discretion
could determine that a lesser restriction on transfer and deaiing applied, having regard tc the
circumstances of the cessation. The shares can remain on trust for up to ten years fram the
date of allotment, during which time the shares are subject 1o forfeiture if paricipants act
fraudulently or dishonesily or in breach of their obligations to any Group company.
Participaris are entitled to instruct the trustee as to the exercise of voling rights, receive
dividends and participate in bonus and rights issues while the shares are held on trust.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

31. Share-based Payment Plans {(continued)

(c)

(d)

Legacy Plan - Santos Executive Share Plan

The Santos Executive Share Plan operated between 1987 and 1557, when it was
discontinued. Under the terms of the Plan, shares were issued as parily paid 1o ane cent.
While partly paid, the Plan shares are not transferable, carry no voling right and no
entitlement to dividend but are entitled 1o participate in any bonus or rights issue. Afler a
"vesling” period, calls could be made ior the balance of the issue price of the shares, which
varied between $2.00 and the rmarket price of the shares on the dale of the call being made.
Shares were issued principally on: 22 December 1987; 7 February and 5 Decernber 1989;
and 24 December 1990.

At the beginning of the financial year there were 88,000 Plan shares on issue. During the
financial year no Plan shares were fully paid and no aggregale proceeds were received by
the Company. As at 31 December 2008 there were 88,000 Plan shares outstanding.

Non-executive Director (“NED"} Share Plan

In accordance with shareholder approval given at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the
Non-executive Director ("NED™ Share Pian was introduced in July 2007. Participation in the
NED Share Plan is voluntary and all present and future Non-executive Directors are eligible
to pariicipate. Under the NED Share Plan, Directors elect to sacrifice all or part of their pre-
tax fees in return for an allocation of fully paid ordinary shares ol equivalent value. The NED
Share Plan therefore does not involve any additional remuneration for participating Directors.

Shares are allocated quarterly and are either issued as new shares or purchased on the
ASX at the prevailing market price. The shares are registered in the name of the
participating Director, but are subject to a restriction on dealing. In the absence of
exceptional circumstances, the restriction will apply until the Director ceases to hold otfice or
until ten years have elapsed since the allocation of the shares. whichever is earlier.

In 2008, 33,355 shares {(2007: 14,847) were allocated 1o participating Directors as follows:

Number Price per

Date of shares share
4 April 2008 7.376 $14.8361
3 July 2008 6,580 §20.7745
7 October 2008 8,566 §$17.8867
30 December 2008 10,824 $14.1676

The armounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group and the Company in
retation 10 the NED Share Plan during the year were:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $millien Smillion $million

Employee expenses 0.5 0.2 0.5 0.2
Issued ordinary share capital 0.5 0.2 0.5 0.2
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

32. Key Management Personnel Disclosures

(a) Key management personnel compensation

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD

2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million Smillion
Shori-term employee benefits 10.4 10.7 10.4 10.7
Post-employment benefits 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.8
Other long-term benefits 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1

Termination benefits 2.7 - 2.7 -
Share-based payment 4.6 33 4.6 3.3
19.6 15.9 16.6 15.9
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Key Management Personnel Disclosures {continued)

(b)

Equity holdings of key management personnel

Options and rights holdings

The movement during the reporting period in the number of rights and cptions over ordinary shares of the Company held direcily, indirectly or beneficially, by

each key management person, including their related pariies, is as foliows:

2008
Vested Vestad
Cptions and but not
Balance at exercised/ Balance Vested at exercisable exscisable
beginning of rights Other at end of end of the at end of at end of
Name the year Granfed'* vested” changes® the year year the year the year
Options
Directors
Ellice-Flint, John Chardes 2,500,000 - - (2,500,000} - 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
Knox, David John Wissler 100,000 444 974 - - 544 974 - - .
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 105,244 45,537 {12,744) (14.,400) 123,637 14,400 14,400 -
Baulderstone, James Leslie 50,000 41,678 - - 91,678 - - -
Brown, Trevor John 109,400 43,017 . (14,400} 138,017 29,000 29,000 -
Eames, Martyn Edwaid James 50,000 53,667 - (25,000) 78,667 25,000 25,000 -
Kennett, Roger Maxwell - - - - - - . .
Macfardane, Mark Stuart 63,700 44 982 - - 108,682 - - -
Wasow, Peter Christopher - - - - . - -
Wilkinsen, Richard John - - - - - - - -
Totd 2,978,344 673,855 {12,744} (2,553,800) 1,085,655 2,568,400 2,568,400 -
Rights
Directors
Krox, David John Wisster 50,000 136,779 - - 186,779 - - -
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 27,000 . - - 27,060 - - .
Baulderstone, James Leslie 24,600 - - - 24,600 - - -
Brown, Trevor John 27.200 - - - 27,200 - - -
Eames, Martyn Edward James 71.500 - {2,800) {9.800) 51,900 . - -
Kennett, Roger Maxwell 38,000 17 668 (4,500) {4,500} 46,668 - - .
Macfarane, Mark Stuart 36.600 . {4,800) {4,B00) 27,000 - - -
Wasow, Peter Christophes B83.500 23,220 (11.800) {11,B60) B3,220 - - -
Wilkinson, Richard John 62,100 18,115 (8.850) {8.850) 82,515 . - -
Total 420,600 195,782 (39,750) (39,750) 536,882 . - -
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘OR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

" Weh the excepfion of Mr D J W Knox, oplions granted lo excutives in the current year were granted on 3 May 2008, have an expiration date of 2 May 2018 and an exercise price of $15.39. At

the date of grant. the options granted have a fair value of $525 per option (174,613 opticns) and §7.30 per option (54,268 eptions). The options were provided af no cos! lo the recipienis.
Providing vesting conditions are met, the options are exercigble no earlier than 1 January 2011,
Cptions granted to Mr D J W Knox in the current year were canted as follows:
(1) Execulive grant on 3 May 2008: expiration date oR May 2018. exercise price of $15.38, lair value per oplion on the dale of grant of $5.25 (for 64,992 optiens) and $7.30 {for 21,837
options). Providing vesiing conditicns are met. albi the options are exercisable no earfier than | January 201 1.
(i} CEOQ grant on 28 July 2008, tranche 1. expiration ate 27 July 2018, exercise price of $17.36, lair value on the date of grant of $5.83 per oplion (94, 195 oplions). Providing vesiing
conditions are mel, all of the options are exercisale no eadier than 1 January 2011,
{ii} CEO grant on 28 July 2008, tranche 2: expiration ate 27 July 2018, exercise price of $17.36, lair value on the date of grant of $4.25 per option (131,978 options). Providing vesting
conditions are met, all of the options are exercisate no eadier than 1 January 2012,
{iv} CEQ grant on 28 July 2008, tranche 3: expiration ate 27 July 2018, exercise price of $17.36, lair value on the date of grant of $4.32 per option (131,976 options}. Providing vesting
conditions are me, all of the oplions are exercisate no eadier than 1 January 2013.
The opfions were provided at no cosf to Mr D J W Knox.
With the exceptior of Mr D J W Knox, SARs granted o exeotives in the current year were granied on 3 May 2008, have an expiration dale of 2 May 2018, and vest with the recipient for no
consideration. Al the date of grant, 44,430 of the SARs grared have a falr value of $11.23 per SAR, and 14,573 of the 5ARs granted have a lair value of §16.73 per SAR.
© SARs grantedio Mr B J W Knox in the current year were grated on 28 July 2008, have an expiration date of 27 July 2018, and vest with Mr D J W Knox for no consideration. At the date o/
grant, the SARs granied have a fair value of $14.07 per SAF(35,973 SARs). $8.65 (50,403 SARs) and $8.44 (50,403 5ARs).
Each option exercised or SAR vested resulls in the issue of ne ordinary share of the Company to the recipient. There are no amounts unpaid on the shares fssued as a result of the exercise of
options and vesting of SARs,
Qther changes may include the lapse of oplions on the expit of the exercise penied, reductions in SARs entitferments due to performance conditions not being met, forleiiure of SARs when
service conditions are not mel, or the removal of an employe’s equity holding Irom the key management personnel disclosure when they lerminate employment with the Company.

Details regarding the service and performance conditions that mst be met before the options and SARs vest with the recipient are induded in note 31{b}.

-
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

32. Key Management Personnel Disclosures {continued)

{b) Equity holdings of key management personnel {(continued)

Options and rights holdings (continued)

L9 A

g
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2007
: Vested Vested
Options and but not
Balance at exercised/ Balance Vested at exercisable exercisable
beginning of rights Other at end of end of the at end of at end of

Name the year Granted'** vested® changes® the year year the year _ the year
Options
Direclors

Ellice-Flint, John Charles 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,600 125,000 125,000
Execttives

Anderson, John Hugh 134,044 - - {28,800) 105,244 12,744 12,744

Baulderstone, James Leslie - 50,000 - - 50,000 - -

Brown, Trevar John 184,769 - {27,095) {29,000) 109,400 14,500 14 500

(19,274)

Eames, Martyn Edward James 50,000 . - - 50,000 . -

Kennetl, Roger Maxwelf - . . R . R R

Knox, David John Wissier . 100,000 - - 100,000 - -

Macfarlane, Mark Stuart 63,700 - - - §3,700 - -

Wasew, Peter Christepher - . . - . - .

Wilkinson, Richard John - - - - - - .

Young, Jonathon Terence 93,200 - - - 93,200 - -
Totat 3,025,713 150,000 (46,369) {57.800) 3,071,544 152 244 152,244
Rights
Execulives

Andersen, John Hugh - 27,600 . - 27,000 . .

Baulderstane, James Leslie - 24,600 . - 24,600 - .

Brown, Trevor John - 27,200 - - 27,200 - -

Eames, Martyn Edward James 39,500 32,000 - - 71,500 - -

Kennett, Roger Maxwell 28,800 18,200 . {9,000} 38,000 . -

Knax, David John Wissler . 50,000 - - 50,000 - -

Mactadane, Mark Stuart 19,200 27,600 - {9,800} 36,600 - .

Wasow, Peter Christopher 70,200 37,000 - {23,600} 83,600 - -

Wilkingen, Richard John 51,600 28,200 - {17,700} 62,100 - -

Young, Jonathon Terence 52,000 39,000 . {26,000} 85,000 -
Total 261.300 310,200 - {85,800} 485.600 .
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

With the excepilion ol Mr D J W Knox, options were granted fo executives on 1 July 2007, have an expiralion date of 1 July 2017 and an exercise price of §14. 14. At the date of grant, the options
granled have a fair value of 83.32 per option. The options were provided at no cost to the recipients. Providing vesting conditions are met, the options are exercisable no earlier than 1 January
2010.

Opfions were granted to Mr D J W Knox on 3 September 2007, have an expiration date of 3 September 2017 and an exercise price of $12.81. At the date of grant. all of the options granted have
2 fair value of §1.97 per option. The options were provided at no cost to Mr D J W Knox, Providing vesling condilicns are met, ail of the oplions are exercisable no earlier than 3 Seplember
2070.

With the excepfion of Mr D J W Knox, SARs were granted to execulives on 1 July 2007, have an expiration date of 1 July 2017, and vest with the recipient for no consideration. At the date of
grant, 130,100 of the SARs granled have a fair value of $9.95 per SAR. and 130,100 of ihe SARs granted have 3 lair valve of $12.78 per SAR.

SARs were granted to Mr D J W Knox on 3 Sepiember 2007, have an expiration date of 3 September 2017, and vest with Mr D J W Knox for no consideration. At the date of grant, all of the
5ARs granted have a iair value of $9.16 per SAR.

Each option exercised or SAR vested resulls in the issue of one ordinary share of the Company fo the recipient. There are no amounts unpaid or ihe shares issued as a resut! of the exercise of
options and vesling of SARs.

Other changes may include the lapse of options on the expiry of the exercise period, reductions in SARs entitlements due lo performance conditions no! being met, forfeiturs of SARs when
service conditions are not met, or the removal of an employee’s equily holding from the key management personnel disclosure when they terminate employment with the Company.

tn

Details regarding the service and perfermance conditions that must be met before the options and SARs vest with the recipient are included in note 21(b).
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

32. Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

(b)

Equity holdings of key management personnel {continued)

Share holdings
The movement during the reporting period in the number of shares of the Company held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person,
including their related parties, is as follows:

2008 Balance
held
Balance at Received on Balance nominally
beginning Granted as axercise Received on Other at end at end
Name of the year compensation of options vesting of rights Redeemed changes ! of the year of the year
Ordinary shares - fully paid
Directors
Barda, Kenneth Charles 35,207 . - - - 9,965 45172 -
Coates, Peter Roland - - - - - 7.440 7.440 -
Dean, Kenneth Alfred 4.145 - - - . 2723 6,868 -
Eilice-Flint, John Charles 4,113,344 - - - - {4,113.344) - -
Franklin, Roy Alexander - - - - - - . -
Gerlach, Stephen 49,210 - - - - 5.154 54,364 -
Harding, Richard Michael 608 - . . - 1,149 1,757 -
Knox, David John Wissler - . - - - - - - -
Slaan, Judith 10,639 - . - - 9,496 20,135 -
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 6,243 - 12,744 . - 31 19,018 -
Bauldersiene, James Leslie . - . - - - - -
Brown, Trevor John 245,369 - - - - . 246,368 -
Eames, Martyn Edward James - - . 9,800 - - 9,800 -
Kennett, Roger Maxwell 59,785 - - 4,500 - - 64,285 -
Macfarlane, Mark Stuart 3,204 - - 4,800 - - 8,004 .
Wasow, Peter Christopher 27,934 - . 11,800 - - 39,734 -
Wilkinsan, Richard John 21,441 - - 8,850 - - 30,281 -
Total 4,578,139 - 12,744 39,790 - (4,677.386} 553,247 -
Redeemable convertible preference shares
Directors
Ellice-Flint, John Chares 225 - - - - (225} - -
Sloan, Judith 185 - - . - - 185 .
Executives .
Kennett, Reger Maxwell 165 - . - - - 185 -
Total 535 - . - - {225) 3560 -

ther changes include:
(i) Non-executive Director (“NED") Share Plar and Dividend Reinvestment Plan {*DRF’} share allocations.
(i} Removal of MrJ C Ellice-Flint's equity hiolcing from the key maragement personnel disclosure as a result of his ceasing to be a Director of the Company on 25 March 2008.



Fax bServer

23/180

PAGE

13 AM

oY

LI/ 2003 10

SAalNIUVS Ltd

3a.

84

SANTOS LTD AND CONTOLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3DECEMBER 2008

Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)

(b)

Share holdings {continued)

Equity holdings of key management personnel {continued)

2007 Balance
held
Balance at Rieived on Balance neminally
beginning Granted as xercise Received en Other atend at end
Name of the year compensation wptions vesting of rights Redeemed Changes? of the year of the year
Ordinary shares - fully paid
Directors
Berda, Kenneth Charles - - - - - 35,207 35,207 -
Dean, Kenasth Alfred 3,000 - - - - 1,145 4,145 -
Ellice-Flint, John Chades 4,037,940 . . - - 75,404 4,113,344 -
Franklin, Roy Alexander - - - - . - - -
Gerlach, Stephen 44 880 - - - - 4,330 42,210 -
Harding, Richard Michast - - - - - 608 §08 -
Sloan, Judith 5.000 . . . - 5,635 10,839
Executives
Anderson, John Hugh 6175 - - - - 68 6,243
Baulderstone, James Leslie - - . - - - -
Brown, Trevor John 200,000 - 45369 - - - 246,369
Eames, Maryn Edward James - - - - - . -
Kennett. Roger Maxwsll 59,795 . - . - - 59,795
Knox, David John Wissler - - - - - - -
Macfadane, Mark Stuart 3.204 - - - . . 3,204 .
Wasaow, Peter Christopher 27,934 - - - - - 27,934 .
Wilkinson, Richard John 21,441 - . - - - 21,441 -
Young, Jonathon Terence 280,183 - - - - {100,000} 180,183 -
Total 4,689,552 - 46,369 - - 22,401 4,758,322 -
Redeemable convertible preference shares
Directors
Ellice-Flint. John Chades 225 - - - - - 225 -
Sloan, Judith 185 - - - - - 195 .
Executivas
Kennett, Foger Maxwell 185 - - - - - 165 -
Total 585 - - - - - 585 -

Qther changes include Nor-executive Direclor (*“NED} Share Plan and Dividend Reinvestmid Plan (“DRP7} share allecations.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

32. Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued)
{c) Loans to key management personnel

There have been no loans made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly, by the Group
or any of its subsidiaries al any time throughout the year with any key management person.
including their related parties.

33. Related Parties

ldentity of related parties
Santos Ltd and its controlled entities engage in a variety of related party transactions in the
ordinary course of business. These transactions are conducted on normal terms and conditions,

Details of related party fransactions and amounts are set out in:

Note 6 as 1o interest received from/paid to controlled entities;

Note 10 as 1o tax related balances and other amounts owing by controlled entities and other
related entities;

Notes 20 and 21 as to amounts owing to controlled entities:

Note 21 as tc guarantees by Santos Ltd of the financing facilities of controlled entities;

Note 22 as 1o Non-executive Directlors’ retiremment benefits;

Notes 18 and 26 as to investmems in controlled entities;

Note 28 as fc interests in joint ventures; and

Note 32 as 1o disclosures relating to key management personnel.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $000 $000 $C00
34. Remuneration of Auditors
The auditor of Santos Ltd is Ernst & Young.
Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst
& Young (Australia):
An audit or review of the financial report of the
ertity and any other entity in the consolidated
group 1,061 1,181 813 827
Oiher assurance services 368 244 292 183
Other services:
Taxation 5 - 4 -
Other 38 - 38 -
1,472 1.425 1,147 1,010
Amounts received or due and receivable by
overseas related practices of Ernst & Young
{Australia) for:
External audit 122 - - -
Assurance 20 - . -
Taxation 33 15 - -
Other services 4 - - -

179 15 - -
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Fax Server

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $000 $000 $000
34, Remuneration of Auditors (continued)
Amounts received or due and receivable by
overseas ncn-Ernst & Young audit firm for:
Audit of financial reports for subsidiaries
incorporated in Papua New Guinea 62 - - -
Amounts received or due and receivable by
related Australian practice of non-Ernst & Young
audit firm for:
Assurance 60 - 42 -
Taxation 297 - 69 -
Gther services 190 - 133 -
547 - 244 -
CCNSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$millon___ $million  $million _ $enillion
35. Commitments for Expenditure
The Group has the following commitments for
expenditure:
(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at balance
date for which no amounts have been
provided in the financial statements,
payable:
Not later than one year 330.4 324.2 1091 199.1
Later than one year but not later than five
years 150.2 89.0 22.8 53.8
Later than five years 3.7 - - -
484.3 413.2 131.9 252.9
Santos Ltd has gquaranieed the capital
commitments of certain controlled entities
{refer note 36 for further details).
(b) Minimum exploration commitments
Minimum exploration commitments for which
no amounts have been provided in the
financial statements or capital commitments,
payable:
Not later than one year 269.6 350.1 3.8 46.2
Later than one year but not later than five
years 162.2 185.4 9.3 10.6
Later than five years - 29.1 - -
431.8 564.6 13.1 56.8

The Group has certain obligations toe perform minimum exploration work and expend
minimum amaounts of money pursuant 1o the terms of the granting of petroleum exploraticn
These commitments may be varied as a
result of renegotiations of the terms of the exploration permits, licences or contracts or
alternatively upon their relinquishment. The minimum exploration commitments are less
than the nermal level of exploration expenditures expected to be undertaken by Santos Lid

permits in order to maintain rights of tenure.

and iis controlled entities,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million Smillion

35. Commitments for Expenditure {(continued)

{€)

(d)

Operating lease commitments

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are
payable as follows:

Not later than one year 94.0 92.2 38.4 387

Later than one year but not later than five
years 167.3 2045 67.9 81.1
Later than five years 491 52.8 46.0 34.2
310.4 349.5 152.3 154.0

The Group leases floating production, storage and cfftake facilities, floating storage
offfoading facilities and mobile offshore production units under operaling leases, The
leases typically run tor a period of four to six years, and may have an option io renew after
that time.

The Group also leases building office space and a warehouse under operaling leases.
The leases are generally for a period of ten years, with an option to renew the lease after
that date. The lease payrments typically increase by 5.0% per annum,

During the year ended 31 December 2008 the Group recognised $88.4 million
(2007: $59.3 million) as an expense in the income statement in respect of operating
leases.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

Finance lease commitments

Finance tease commitments are payable as
follows:
Not later than one year c.5 - 0.5 -
Later than one year but not later than five
years
Later than five years

—_
1
—_

Total minimum lease payments
Less amounts representing finance charges {

— )
—

1
| —

Vlum ok
1

il b I bl

~ OO Wb
1

—y

Present value of minimum lease payments

The Group has linance leases for various iterns of plant and equipment with a carrying
amount of $3.2 million {(2007: $ni) for both the Group and the Company. The leases
generally have terms of between three 1o twelve years with no escalation clauses and no
option to renew. Title to the assets passes to the Group at the expiration of the relevant
lease periods.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

35. Commitments for Expenditure {continued)

(e) Commitment on removal of share cap

Pursuant 1o a Deed of Undertaking to the Premier of South Australia dated 16 October
2006 and as a consequence of the enactiment of the Santos Limited (Deed of Undertaking)
Act 2007 on 29 November 2007, Santos has agreed to:

. GContinue to make payments under its existing Social Responsibility and Community
Benefits Program specified in the Deed totalling $60.0 million over a ten-year period
frorm the date the legislation was enacted. As at 31 Decermnber 2008, approximately
$52.9 million remains to be paid aver the next nine years.

. Continue 1o maintain the South Australian Cooper Basin asset's Head Office and
Operational Headquarters together with other roles in South Australia for ten years
subsequent 10 the date the legislation was enacted. At 31 December 2008, if this
condition had not beern met, the Company would have been liable to pay
approximately $90.0 million to the State Government of Soulh Australia.

Santos is required to make these payments only if the State Government of South
Australia does not reintroduce a shareholder cap on the Company's shares or introduce
any other restriction on or in respect of the Company's Board or senior management which
have an adverse discriminatory efiect in their application to the Company relative to other
companies domiciled in South Australia.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $rnillion

(1) Remuneration commitments

Commiiments for the payment of salaries
and other remuneration under the long-term
employment coniracts in existence at the
reporting date but not recognised in
liabilities, payable:

Not later than one year 6.6 8.2 6.6 8.2

Amounts included as remuneration commitments include commitments arising from the
service contracts of Directors and executives referred to in the Remuneration Report of the
Directors’ Report that are not recognised as liabilites and are not included in the
compensation of key management personnel.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million $million $million

36.

Contingent Liabilities

The Directors are of the opinion that provisions
are not required in respect of these matters, as it
is not prehable that a future sacrifice of economic
benefits will be required or the amount is not
capakble of reliable measurement,

Santos Lid and its controlled entities have the
fellowing contingent liabilities arising in respect of:

The Group:
Perfcrmance guarantees 28.7 23.2 10.3 10.2
Actual and possible legal claims and
proceedings 17.3 12.1 2.6 2.4

The Group's share of contingent liabilities of
jeint venture operations:

Performance guarantees 13.0 58 29 2.9
Litigation and proceedings 4.5 - 1.8 -
63.5 41.1 17.6 15.5

Legal advice in relation to the actual and possible legal claims and proceedings referred 1o
above indicates that on the basis of available information, any liability in respect of these claims
is unlikely to exceed $13.7 miltion on a consolidated basis.

A number of the Australian interests of the Group are lfocated within areas the subject of one or
more claims or applications for native title determination. Whatever the ouicome of those
claims or applications, it is not believed that they will significantly impact the Group's asset
base. Compliance with the ‘future act' provisions of the Native Title Act 1983 (Cih) can delay
the grant of mineral and petroleum tenements and consequently impact generally the timing of
exploration, development and producticn operations. An assessment of the impact upon the
liming of particutar operations may require consideration and determination of complex legal
and factual issues.

Guarantees provided by Santos Ltd for borrowings in respect of controlled entities are disclosed
in note 21.

Sanrteos Lid has provided parent company guarantees in respect of.

{a) the lunding and performance obligations of a number of subsidiary companies, relating
to:

s a floating storage and olfloading facilities agreement for the Sampang PSC;
. a mobhile offshore production unit agreement {or the Madura PSC:
- performance obligations under producticn sharing contracts; and

(b}  a subsidiary company's obligations to meet distribution charges for gas retail customers.

A subsidiary company has provided a letter of performance guarantee in respect of the
performance cbligations of its subsidiary company relating to a production sharing contract.

A subsidiary company has provided a letter of comlort in respect of payment obligations of
associated entities.

The total expenditure commitment under these transactions and which are the subject of a
parent company guarantee is $245.8 million.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Contingent Liabilities {continued)

Varanus Island Incident

A pipeline rupture and subsequent fire at Varanus Island on 3 June 2008 damaged gas
processing and export facilities. As a result, total production ceased both ifrom the East Spar
Joint Venture (processing and exporting gas from the John Brookes gas field) and the Harriet
Joint Venture (processing and exporling gas from various Harriet fields). Santos (BOL) Py Ltd,
a controlied entity of Santos Limited, has a 45% interest in the John Brookes gas field and the
East Spar Joint Venture. Partial production by the East Spar Joint Venture recommenced an
6 August 2008, but Santos (BOL) Pty Ltd remains unable to meet the entirety of its firm gas
commitments to customers under its various Gas Sales Agreements, and continues 1o rely on
the lorce majeure provisions of those Agreements. It is too early to provide an estimate of the
cests of managing and responding to the incident, or the potential liability {(if any) to third party
claims under Gas Sales Agreements or otherwise as a result of the incident.

Sidoarjo mudflow incident

On 11 December 2008. Santoes Brantas Pty Lid {"Santos Brantas") announced that it had
agreed to transfer its 18% minority interest in the Brantas Production Sharing Contract
{"Brantas PSC"} in Indonesia to Minarak Labuan Co (L) Lid ("Minarak”), a company associated
with Lapindo Brantas Inc ("Lapindo"} which is the operator and majority owner of the Brantas
PSC.

The transler was approved by BPMIGAS, the relevant regulatory body of the Indonesian
government.

The Brantas PSC includes the Banjar-Panji 1 onshore exploration well in Sidoarjo, the site of a
major mudflow incident which commenced in May 2008.

Santos Brantas will pay $US22.5 million to Minarak, ($US20.0 million paid at the date of this
report} with these funds to be used 1o support the long-term mud management pregram.
Santos Brantas and its relaled parties received a release from each of its former Brantas PSC
participants and Minarak. The release covers any past, present or fulure claims that any of
those parties may have against Santos in relation to the Brantas PSC or otherwise in
coennection with the incident.

The transaction does not remove possible third party claims directly against Santos Brantas.
Whilst i1 is possible that Santos Brantas could be subjected to such claims in the future, it
believes it would be able 1o successiully defend those claims. if ever made,
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Deed of Cross Guarantee

Pursuant to Class Crder 98/1418, the wholly-owned subsidiaries listed below are relieved from
the Corporations Act 2007 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of their financial
reports.

As a condition of the Class Order the Company and each of the listed subsidiaries {"the Closed
Group”) have entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee. The eflect of the Deed is that the
Company has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of any of the
subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. The subsidiaries have also
given a similar guarantee in the event that the Company is wound up.

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are:

Alliance Petroleum Australia Pty Lid
Bridge Cil Developments Pty Limiled
Reef Oil Pty Ltd

Santos (BOL) Pty Ltd

Santos Darwin LNG Pty Lid

Santos (NARNL Cooper) Pty Ltd (became a party to the Deed on 28 November 2008}
Santos Offshore Pty Lid

Santos Petroleurn Management Pty Lid
Santos Petroleumn Pty Lid

Santos QNT Pty Ltd

Sanios QNT (No. 1) Pty Lid

Santos QNT (No. 2) Ply Ltd

Vamgas Pty Ltd

The consolidated income statement and balance sheet ol the entities that are members of the
Closed Group are as follows:

CLOSED GROUP

2008 2007
$million Emillion

Consolidated income statement
Profit before tax 324.0 1,213.5
Income tax expense (154.4) (130.9}
Rovyalty related taxation expense (48.1) {80.6)
Profit after tax 121.5 992.0
Retained earnings at the beginning of the year 1,656.3 1,218.9
Adjustment to retained earnings for company added to Deed

during the year . 130.6 -
Adjustment to retained earnings an initial adopticn of

Interpretation 1003 Australian Fetroleum Resource Rent Tax - {164.4)
Dividends to shareholders (286.3} (268.6}
Share buy-back (245.0) (231.2)
Share-based payment transactions 8.3 52
Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit plan, net of tax {25.5) 4.4

Retained earnings at the end of the year 1.258.9 1,556.3
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Deed ot Cross Guarantee (continued)

Consolidated balance sheet

Current assets

Cash and cash eguivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventaries

Other

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Receivables

Exploration and evaluation assels
Qil and gas assets

Other land, buildings. plant and equipment

Other investments
Deferred 1ax assels
Other

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Deferred income

interest-bearing loans and berrowings
Current tax liabilities

Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income

Imteresi-bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred 1ax liabilities

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Issued capital
Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

ras o2GiL vl

CLOSED GROUP

2008 2007

$million $million
1,422.9 46.6
3.023.3 557.9
256.3 2157
2.7 5.6
4.705.2 825.8
30.7 61.5
208.8 169.7
4,172 .1 3,725.7
109.7 107.4
2.507.7 2.672.8
179.8 8.0

- 59
7.208.8 6,751.0
11,9140 7.576.8
757.8 507.6
50.0 11.9

0.6 -

623.8 287
38.4 43.2
1,470.6 591.4
6.3 8.8
5,560.4 2.294.8
370.5 340.0
707.0 463.1
6.642.2 3,106.7
8.114.8 3,698 .1
3,799.2 3,878.7
2.530.8 2.331.6
8.5 (9.2}
1,259 .9 1,556.3
3,799.2 3,878.7
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Financial Risk Management -

Exposure to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, commodity price risk. credit risk, and
limiidity rick arieaa in the narmal rrniraa Af the Grrnip's hineinece The (Griip's nvarall financial
risk managermeni strategy is to seek 1o ensure that the Group is able 10 tund its business plans.
Derivative financial instruments may be used lo hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity prices.

The Group uses various methods to measure the types of risk to which it is exposed. These
methods include Cash Flow at Risk analysis in the case of interest rate, foreign exchange and
commodity price risk, and ageing analysis for credit risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by a central treasury department ("Treasury") under
policies approved by the Board of Directors, The Board provides written principles for averall
risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

{a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions and recognised assets and
abilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional cutrency.
The risk is measured using cash flow forecasting and Cash Flow at Risk analysis.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk principally through the sale of liquid
petroleum products denominated in US dollars, US dollar borrowings and US dollar
expenditure. In order to economically hedyge this {oreign currency risk, the Group has
from time to time entered into forward foreign exchange, foreign currency swap and
foreign currency option contracts.

Al US dallar denominated borrowings of AUD functional currency comparnies
(2008: US$1,140.6 million; 2007 US$1,155.8 million) are either designated as a hedge ol
US dollar denominated investrments in foreign operations, or swapped using cross-
currency swaps to Australian doltars in crder to achieve an economic hedge. As a resuli,
there were no net foreign currency gains or losses arising from translation of US
denominated dollar borrowings recognised in the income statements in 2008.

The Group's risk management policy is o hedge between 0% and 50% of forecasted
cash flows in US dollars for the current financial year.

Based on the Group's net financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008, the
following table demonstrates the estimated sensitivity 1o a +/- 10 cent movement in the
US dellar exchange rate (2007: +/- 10 cents) with all other variables held constant, on
posi-tax prolit and equity.

CONSOLIDATED SANTOS LTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
$million $million Smillion Ernillion

Impaci on post-tax profit:

AUD/USD +10 cents {0.8) 10.6 - -

AUD/USD -10 cents 0.8 {13.3) - -
Impact on equity: .

AUD/USD +10 cents (0.6) 10.6 - -

AUD/USD -10 cents 0.8 {(13.3) - -

The above sensitivity should be used with care as the Group’s linancial asset and liability
profile will nol remain constant.

The +/- 10 cent sensitivity is the Group’s estimate of reasonably possible changes in the
US dollar exchange rate over the following financial year, based on recent volatility
experienced in the market.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Financial Risk Management {continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and
deposits wilth banks and financial instilutions, as well as credit exposures to custormers,
including outstanding receivables and committed transactions, and represents the
potential financial loss if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. Management has
credit policies in place and the exposure 1o credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
The majerity of Santos’ gas contracts are spread across major Ausiralian energy retailers
and industrial users. Contracts exist in every mainland state whilst the largest customer
accounts for less than 20% of contracted gas.

The Group contrels credit risk by setting minimum creditworthiness requirements of
counterparties, which for banks and financial institutions is a Standard & Poor's rating of
A or better,

Approved Total Total Exposure
Rating counterparties credit limit exposure’ range
$million $rillion $million
AA, AA- 7 2.437.2 1,669.0 37.2 - 380.9
A+ 5 663.5 542.4 10.3-298.3

' Cash deposits plus accrued interest, bank account balances and the mark-te-market gain and percentage of
notional value weighted by term on derivatives,

i custorners are independently rated these ratings are used, otherwise the credit quality
of the customer is assessed by taking into account its financial position, past experience
and other faciors including credit support from a third party. Individual risk fimits for
banks and financial institutions are set based on external ratings in accordance with limits
setl by the Board. Limils for custorners are determined within contract terms. The daily
nomination of gas demand by customers and the utilisation of credit limits by customers
is monitored by line management,

In addition, receivables balances are monitored on an ongeing basis with the result that
the Group's exposure to bad debis is not significant. The Group does not hold collateral,
nor does it securitise its trade and other receivables.

Atihe balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group and financial instruments are spread amongst a number of financial institutions 1o
minimise the risk of default by counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amecunt of financial
assels of the Group. excluding investiments, which have been recognised on the balance
sheet.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidily risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Group aims at rnaintaining
flexibitity in funding to meet ongoing operational requirements, exploration and
development expenditure, and small-to-medium-sized oppertunistic projects and
investments, by keeping committed credit facilities available.
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Financial Risk Management (continued)
{d) Liquidity risk (continued}

The following table analyses the contractual maturities of the Group's financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclesed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows comprising principal and interest repayments. except for interest
rate swaps. Estimated variable interest expense is based upon appropriate yield curves
existing as at 31 December 2008.

Less than 1to2 2to 5 More than
1 year years years S years
$million $million $million $million
Consolidated
2008
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 604.8 - - -
Obligations under finance leases 0.5 c.5 1.0 1.3
Bank loans 54.5 341 82.1 118.7
Commercial paper - - - -
Medium-term notes 18.3 16.9 3756 118.8
Long-term notes 140.5 258.5 374.5 1.432.4
Derivative financial assets
Cross-currency swap contracts (55.9) (30.6) - -
Interest rale swap contracts (42.4) (57.9) (73.7) {184.1}
720.3 222.5 759.5 1,487 .1
2007
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and cther payables 609.7 - - -
Chbligations under finance leases - - - -
Bank lcans 41.1 40.8 25%8.2 133.7
Commercial paper 65.0 - - -
Mediurn-term notes 27.8 6.5 19.6 469.5
Long-term notes 75.2 111.7 502.9 1,151.4
Derivative financial
liabilities/(assets)
Cross-currency swap contracts 12.6 11.8 7.6 -
Interest rate swap contracts (9.5) {21.3) (31.9}) {(27.0)
821.9 148.5 757 .4 1,727.6
Santos Ltd
2008
Trade and other payables 723.0 - - -
Chligations under finance leases 0.5 0.5 1.0 1.3
Amounts owing to controlled entities - - - 4.082.8
723.5 0.5 1.0 4.084 .1
2007
Trade and other payables 625.1 - - -
Obligations under finance leases - - - -
Amounts owing to controlled entities - - - 2.478.2

625.1 - - 2,478.2
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Financial Risk Management {continued)

(d)

{e)

Liguidity risk {continued)

Amounts owing to controlled entities are shown at their carrying value as any interest
charged on the loans is added to the loan balance. The loans are made in the ordinary
course of business on normal market terms and conditions and are nol repayable for a
minimum ot nine years.

Fair vaiues

The financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company are recognised on the
balance sheets at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policies in note 1,
except for long-term notes thatl are not swapped to a variable interest rate, and bank
borrowings, which are recognised at face value. The carrying value of these long-term
notes is US$156.5 million and their fair value is estimated at US$169.4 million based on
discounting the future cash flows excluding the credit spread at the time of issue. The
discount rate used is the interest rate swap rate for the remaining term to malurity of the
note as at 31 December 2008. The carrying value of the bank borrowings approximates
fair value as itis a floating rate instrument,

Basis tor determining fair values
The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimaling
the fair values of financial instruments:

Trade and other receivables
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables is a reasonable
approximation of their fair values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets
The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is determined by reference to their
quoted bid price at the reporting date.

Derivatives

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated by discounting estimated future cash
flows based on the terms of maturity of each contract and using market interest rates
for a similar instrument at the reporting date. Where these cash fiows are in a loreign
currency the present value is converted to Australian dollars at the foreign exchange
spot rate prevailing at reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash
Hlows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. Where these cash
flows are in a foreign currency the present value is converted to Australian dollars at the
foreign exchange spot rate prevailing at reporting date.

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are
based on the market yield curve at the reporting date. The deall credit spread is
assumed to be the same as ihe market rate for the credit as at reporling date as
allowed under AASB 139 Financial Instrurmnents: Recognition and Measurement. The
interest rates inciuding credit spreads used to determine fair value were as follows:

2008 2007

Derivatives 1.3% -4.3% 5.4% -7.8%
Loans and borrowings 1.7% - 4.9% 58%-9.1%
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
for the year ended 31 December 2008

tn accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Santas Ltd ("the Company”}. we state that;
1. In the opinion of the Direclors:
{a)  the financial statemenis and notles of the Company and of the consolidated entity are
in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007, including:

(i} giving a true and fair view of the Company's and consolidated entity's linancial
position as at 31 December 2008 and of their performance for the year ended
on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corparations Hegulations 2007;
and

{b) there are reasonabie grounds 1o believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis
as and when they become due and payable,

2. This declaration has been made afler receiving the declarations required to be made to the
Directors in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year
ending 31 December 2008.

3. As at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of
the Closed Group identified in note 37 will be able to meet any obligaticns or liabilities to which
they are or may become subject. by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between the
Company and those members of the Closed Group pursuant to Class Crder 98/1418.

Dated this 19th day of February 2009

On behalt of the Board:

Director Director

Adelaide
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Santos Ltd

Report onh the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial repart of Santos Ltd. which comprises the balance sheet as
at 31 December 2008, and the income staterment, statement of recognised income and expense and cash
flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other
explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and
the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circurnstances. In Note 1(a), the
directors also state that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards reqguire that we compty

. with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagerments and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
report. :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinicn.

Liability limited by & scherne appaved
under Professional Standards Leyislation
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Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy of which
is referred to in the directors’ report. In addition to aur audit of the financial report, we were engaged to
undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The provision of these services
has not impaired cur independence.,

R e A T

In our opinicn: |
1. the financial report of Santos Ltd is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Santos Ltd and the consolidated entity
at 31 December 2008 and of their perfarmance for the year ended on that date; and

il complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 7 to 25 of the directors' report for the year ended
31 December 2008. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001 . Qur responsibility is to
express an cpinien on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Repert of Santos Ltd far the year ended, complies with section 300A of the |
Corporations Act 2001. |

Ernst & Young

RJ Curtin

Partner

Adelaide

19 February 2009
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Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Santos Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of Santos Limited and the entities it controlled for the year
ended 31 December 2008, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of
the auditor independence requirernents of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of
professional conduct.

Ernst & Young

R J Curtin

Partner

Adelaide .

Ernst & Young .
19 February 2009

Liability limited by a scherme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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SANTOS LTD AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Financial Risk Management

(b)

Market risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’'s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that the majority of its exposure to changes in
interest rates on borrowings is on a floating rate basis. Interest rate swaps, denominated
in Australian dollars and US dollars, have been entered into as fair value hedges of
medium-term notes and long-term notes respectively. When transacted, these swaps
have maturities ranging from one to twenty years, and align with the maturity of the
related notes. At 31 December 2008, the Group had interest rate swaps with a notional
contract amount of $1,302.0 million (2007: $1,067.7 million}.

The net fair value of swaps at 31 December 2008 was $303.5 million (2007; $67.3
rmillion), comprising assets of $303.5 million and liabilittes of $nil. These amounts were
recognised as fair value derivatives.

Based on the net debt position as at 31 December 2008, taking into account interest
rates swaps, it is estimated that if interest rates changed by +0.25%/-2.0% (2007 +/-1%),
with all other variables held constant, the estimated impact on post-tax protit and equity
would have been:

CONSOLIDATED SANTOSLTD
2008 2007 2008 2007
Smillion $million $million $million

Impact on post-tax profit:

Interest rates +0.25% (2007 +1%}) (0.5) (11.8} - -

Interest rates -2.0% (2007: -1%) 3.9 11.6 - -
Impact on equity:

Interest rates +0.25% (2007 +1%) (0.5) (11.8) - -

Interest rates -2.0% (2007 -1%]} 3.9 11.6 - -

This assurnes that the change in interest rates is efiective from the beginning of the
financial year and the net debt position and fixed/floating mix is constant over the year.
However, interest rates and the debt profile of the Group are unlikely to remain constant
and therefore the above sensitivity analysis should be used with care,

The +0.25%/-2.0% sensitivity is the Group’s estimate of reasonably possible changes in
interest rates over the following financial year, based on recent interest rate trends.

Changes in interest raies over the following year may be greater or less than the +0.25%/
-2.0% sensitivity employed in the estimates above.

Commeodity price risk exposure

The Group is exposed to commaodity price fluctuations through the sale of petroleum
products denominated in US dollars. The Group may enter into commodity crude oil
price swap and option contracts to manage its commeadity price risk,

At 31 December 2008 the Group has no open oil price swap contracts (2007: nil}, and
therefore is not exposed to movements in commodily prices on financial instrumenis.
The Group continues to monitor oil price volatility and to assess the need for commodity
price hedging.
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The Directors present their report together with the financial report of Santos Limited (Santos or
Company) and the consolidated financial report of the consolidated entity, being the Company
and its controlled entities, for the financial year ended 31 December 2008, and the auditor report
thereon. Information in the Annual Report referred to by page number in this repon, including the
Remuneration Reportt, or contained in a Note to the financial statements referred to in this report
is to be read as part ot this repont.

1. Directors, Directors’ Shareholdings and Directors’ Meetings

The names of Direclors of the Company in office at the date of this report and details of the relevant
interest of each of those Directors in shares in the Company at that date are as set out below:

DIRECTORS’ STATUTORY REPORT

Surname Other Names Shareholdings in Surname Other Names Shareheldings in
Santos Ltd ’ Santos Ltd
Ordinary Franked Ordinary Franked
Shares Unsecured Shares Unsecured
Equity Listed Equity Listed
Securities Securities
Borda Kenneth Charles 45172 - Gerlach Stephen 54,364 -
{Chairman)
Coates Peter Roland 7,440 - Harding Richard Michael 1.757 -
Dean Kenneth Alfred 6,868 - Knox David Jehn Wissler - -
Franklin  Roy Alexander - - Sloan Judith 20,135 195

The above named Directors held office during and since the end of the financial year, except for
Mr PR Coates who was appointed a Director of the Company on 18 March 2008 and Mr DJW Knox, who
was appointed Managing Director of the Company on 6 August 2008,

Mr JC Ellice-Flint held office as Managing Director of the Company until his retirement on 25 March 2008.
Except where otherwise indicated. all shareholdings are of {ully paid ordinary shares.

At the date of this report, Mr D J W Knox holds 544,974 options under the Santos Executive Share Option
Plan and subject to the further ferms described in Note 31 1o the financial statements. Details of the
options granted to Mr Knox during the year are set out in the Remuneration Report on page 13.

Details of the qualifications. experience and special respensibilities of each Director and the Company
Secretary are set out on the Directors’ and Executives’ biography pages of the Annual Repoert. This
informaticn includes details of other directorships held during the last three years.

Santes Limited: Directors’ Statutory Report & Remuneration Report 2008
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Directors’ Meetings
The number of Directors’ Meelings and meetings of committees of Directors held during the financia! year
and the number of meetings attended by each Director are as follows:

Sumame Other Nomes Dircclors’ Audil Committee Envircnment, Remuncrotion Finan ¢c Cominillee Nomination
Meetinga** Hendth, Safely and Committee Commitiee
Susisinabllity
Commitee
No. ot No. ol No. of No, of No. of No. al No. ol Mo, af No. ol No. of No. of No. ot
Migs Mtga Miga Migs Migs Miga Migs Migs . Miga Migs Miga Mg
Held" Attended Held* Attended Held* Anended Held* Anended Held* Anended Held" Allended
Borda Kenneth
Charles 12 12 ) . ) : ) ) 4 4 i )
Coates Petar
Roland 10 |8 2 2 - - 1 1 - . - -
Dean Kenneth
Alirad 12 | 12 5 5 - - - - 4 4 - -
Ellice- John
Flint Charles 2 2 ) . 1 1 ) ) . ) . )
Franklin | Hoy
Alexander 12 12 ) i 4 4 ) . ) ) ) )
Gerlach | Stephen 12 12 - - 4 4 5 6 4 4 1 1
Harding | Richard
Michaal 12 11 5 4 4 4 5 5 - - 1 1
Krox Dz}wd John 5 5 _ ) 3 3 B ) B B ~ A
Wissler
Slean Judith 12 11 3 3 - - 4 4 - - 1 1

* Reflects the number of meetings held during the time the Director held office, or was o member of the Committee, dunng the year.

** In addition to fermal meetings, the Board participated in a site visit to the Petronas operatiens in Malaysia, [Petronas is the joint
venture partner for Gladstone LNG].

As ai the date of this report, the Company had an audit committee ol the Board of Directors.

Particulars of the Company's corporate governance practices appear in the Corporate Governance
Statement in the Annual Report.

2. Principal Activities

The principal aclivities of the consolidated entily during the financial year were: petroleum exploration, the
production, treatment and marketing of natural gas. crude cil, condensate. naphtha. liquid petroleum gas,
and the transportation by pipeline of crude oil. No significant change in the nature of these activities has
occuired during the year.

3. Review and Results of Operations

A detailed review of 1he operations of the consolidated entity during the fimancial year, the results of those
operations and the financial position of the consolidated entity as at the end of the financial year is
contained in the reports by the Chairman, Chietf Executive Olticer and Chief Financial Officer in the
Annual Report. Funher details regarding the cperations, resulls and business strategies of the
consolidated entity appear in the individual reports providing more detailed discussion of business
activities and outlook in the Annual Report.

in summary, the consolidated net profit after incame tax attributable to the shareholders was $1,650.1
million. a 359.3% increase from the previous period comparative result of $359.3 million. Sales revenue
was a record $2.761.8 million, up 11.0% from 2007,

In particular, total revenue for the Australian segment was $2,563.4 million, an 8.8% increase ifrom the
2007 result of $2,356.4 million. International operations recarded revenue growth of 43.5% from 2007 1o
$241.6 million in 2008,
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Total production was down by 8.0% to 54.4 million barrels of oil equivalent (mmboe), reflecting natural
field decline, Mutineer Exeter FPSO down time, the Varanus Island plant incident and the Stag shut-in,
partially offset by commencement of production from the Sampang field, increased produclion
contributions from Maleo. the acquisition of the Sangu field and increased contributions from Cooper Qil,

4, Significant changes in the state of affairs

The Directors consider that matters or circumstances that have significantly affected, or may significantly
affect, the operations, results of operations or the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent financial
years are:

* The selection of Petronas, ane of the world's largest LNG producers, tc be the Company's 40%
partner in the development, operation and marketing of the company’s proposed Gladstone LNG
preject;

e The transier of the Company’s interest in the Brantas Production Sharing Contract (PSC)in
Indonesia, including the Banjar Panji-1 well, to a company associated with the operator of the PSC;

» The signing of a Gas Agreement between the Government of Papua New Guinea (PNG) and the
PNG LNG joint verture and the project formally entering into Front End Engineering Design: and

= Government of South Australia legislation preventing any one shareholder having an entittemeni to
more than 15% of the Company's shares was repealed effective 29 November 2008.

5. Dividends
On 19 February 2009, the Directors:

{i} resolved to pay a tully franked final dividend of $0.20 per fuily paid ordinary share on 31 March
2009 to shareholders registered in the books of the Company at the close of business on 3 March
UG, TITNS PR Linvider 1 di1Ouning O appiOxInmi@iely=p .0 rinnnan ana

{ii) declared that in accordance with the Terms of Issue, a fully franked dividend of $2.99839 per

Franked Unsecured Equity Listed Security be paid on 31 March 2009 to holders registered in the
books of the Company at the close of business on 3 March 2009, armounting to $18.0 million.

A tully franked final dividend of $117.2 million {20 cents per share} was paid on 31 March 2008 on the
2007 resulis. Indication of this dividend payment was disclosed in the 2007 Annual Report. In addition. a
fully franked interim dividend of $131.1 million {22 cents per fully paid aordinary share) was paid to
meambers on 30 September 2008.

In accordance with the Terms of Issue. a fully franked final dividend of $2.9583 per Franked Unsecured
Equity Listed Security {$18.0 million} was paid on 31 March 2008, Indication of this dividend payment was
disclosed in the 2007 Annual Report. A fully franked imterim dividend of $3.3365 per Franked Unsecured
Equity Listed Securities ($20.0 million} was paid on 30 September 2008.

6. Environmental Regulation

The consolidated entity’'s Australian operations are subject to various environmental regulations under
Commonwealth, State and Territory legislation. including under applicable petrotfeurmn legislation, under
authorisations in respect of its South Australian operations {numbers EPA 888. 1259, 2164,
2569,14145,14427, 45080036, 45080037, 45080038 and 45080092 issued under the Environment
Protection Act 1993), its Queensland operations {numbers EA 150029, 150101, 150125, 150224,
150225, 150238, 150245, 150271, 150275, 150288, 150313, 150347, 150351, 150343, 150355, 150359,
150368, 150381,150382, 150274, 150166, 150390, 170526, 170533, 170562, and numbers EA PEN
2000018207, 2000054807, 2000054007. 200054107, 200214208, 200196508, 10021028.
100188208. 200039307, 200196208, 200196308, 200196408, 100030807, 200194208, 200196608,
200012400, 200214308, 2100214408 and 100090007 issued under the Environmental Proteclion Act
1994) and its Victorian operations {number LA 54626 issued under the Environment Protection Act 1970}.
Applicable legislation and reqguisite environmenital licences are specified in the entity's EMS Compliance
Database, which forms part of the consolidated entity’s overall Environmental Management Systemn,
Compliance performance is monitored on a regular basis and in various forms. including environmental
audits conducted by regulatory authorities and by the Cornpany. either through internal or external
resgurces.

During the financial year, no fines were imposed and no prosecutions were instituted in respect of the
ahove-referenced environmental regulations, Since the end of the financial year. Santos has received a
mincr infringement notice for a breach cf the Environmental Protection Act 1394 {Qld). Apart from this,
Santos has not been the subject of any enforcement action under the environmental protection legislation
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te which its operations are subject. Appropriate corrective measures have been taken to preclude a
re-occurrence of the circumstances which led to the issuing of this notice. In February 2008. Santos
received a notice of noen-compliance from the Department of Primary Industries and Resources South
Australia in relation 1o the disturbance of cultural heritage sites during clear and grade activities on the
Jacksen to Moomba Pipeline right of way. This incident was formally investigated by Santos and
appropriate correclive measures have been taken to preclude a re-occurrence,

7. Events Subsequent to Balance Date

Except as mentioned below. in the cpinion of the Directars there has not arisen in the interval between
the end of the financial year and the date of this report any matter or circurnstance that has significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those
operations, or the state ol affairs of the consolidated entity in future financial years.

Dividends declared after 31 December 2008 are set out in ltem 5 of this Directors’ Repornt and Note 24 1o
the financial statements.

8. Likely Developments

Certain likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of those
operations in {uture financial years are referred 1o in the reports in the Annual Report by the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Further information abaut likely developrents in the operations of the consolidated entity and the
expected results of those operations in future financial years has not been included in this report because
disclosure of the information would be likely to result in urreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity.
Further details regarding likely developments appear in the individual reports providing more detailed
discussion of business activities and outlook in the Annual Report.

4. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ Remuneration

Details of the Company's remuneration policies and the nature and amount of the remuneration of the
Directers and senior management {including shares and options granted during the financial year)} are set
out in the Remuneration Report commencing on page 9 of this report.

10. Indemnification

Rule 61 of the Company’s Constitution provides that the Company indemnifies, on a full indemnity basis
and to the ufl extent permitied by law, officers of the Company for all losses or liabilities incurred by the
person as an officer of the Company, a related body corporate or trustee of a company-sponsored
superannuation fund. Rule 61 does not indemnily an officer for any liability involving a lack of good faith.
Rule 61 alsc permits the Company to purchase and maintain a Directors’ and Officers’ insurance palicy.
No indemnity has been granted to an auditor of the Company in their capacity as auditor of the Cornpany.

In conformity with Rule 61, the Company is party to Deeds ol Indemnity in favour of each of the Directors
referred to in this repont who held office during the year and certain senior executives of the consclidated
entity. The indemnities operate to the full extent permitted by law and are not subject 1o a monetary limit.
Santos is hot aware of any liability having arisen, and no claims have been made, during or since the
financial year under the Deeds of Indemnity.

During the year, the Company paid premiums in respect of Directors’ and Officers' Liability and Legal
Expenses insurance contracts for the year ending 31 December 2008 and since the end of the year the
Company has paid, or agreed tc pay, premiums in respect of such contracts for the year ending 31
December 2009. The insurance contracts insure against certain hability (subject to exclusions) persons
who are or have been directors or cificers of the Company and its centrolled entities, A condition of the
contracts is that the nature of the liability indemnitied and the premium payable not be disclosed.

11. Non-audit services

During the year the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, was paid the following amounts in relation 1o non-
audit services it provided:

Taxation services $38,000
Assurance services $388.000
Olher services $42.000
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The Directors are satislied, based on the advice of the audit committee, that the provision of the non-audit
services detailed above by Ernst & Young is compatible with the general standard ol independence for
auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001,

The reason for farming this opinion is that all non-audit services have been reviewed by the audit
committee to ensure they do not impact the impariiality and objectivity of the auditor,

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001 is set out on page 101 of the financial statements.

12. Shares under opticn

Unissued ordinary shares of Santos Ltd under option at the date of this report are as follows:

Date options granted

15 June 2004
23 May 2005

23 May 2005

24 Octeber 2006
4 May 2006

1 July 2007

1 July 2007

3 September 2007
3 May 2008

3 May 2008

28 July 2008

28 July 2008

28 July 2008

" Thig i3 the exercise price payable by the optionhalder.

Expiry date

14 June 2009
22 May 2015

22 May 2015

24 October 2016
3 May 20186

30 June 2017
30 June 2017

2 September 2017
2 May 2018

2 May 2018

27 July 2018

27 July 2018

27 July 2018

Issue price of Number
shares” under option
$6.95 50,000
$8.46 22,850
$8.46 159,450
$10.48 736,000
$11.38 2.500.000
$14.14 227.500
$14.14 585,800
$12.81 100,000
$15.39 644,949
$15.39 281,573
$17.36 94,163
$17.36 131.976
$17.36 131,976
5,140,267

Options do not confer an entitlement to participate in a bonus or rights issue, prior to the exercise of the

cption.

13. Shares issued on the exercise of options

The following ordinary shares of Santos Ltd were issued during the year ended 31 December 2008 on the
exercise of options granted under the Santos Executive Share Option Plan. Ne further shares have been
issued since then on the exercise of opticns granted under the Santos Executive Share Option Plan. No

amounis are unpaid on any of the shares,

Date options granted

13 June 2004
15 June 2004
23 May 2005
23 May 2005
24 Oclober 20086

Issue price of shares

$6.95
$6.95
$8.46
$8.46
$10.48
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14. Rounding

Australian Securities and Investments Commission Class Order 98/100. dated 10 July 1998. applies 1o
the Company and accordingly amounts have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order,
unless otherwise indicaled.

This report is made on 19 February 2009 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director Director
2009 2009
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2008 REMUNERATICN REPORT

The Directors of Santos Limited present the Remuneration Report for the Company and its controlled entities
for the year ended 31 December 2008. The information provided in this Remuneration Repart has been audited
as required by section 308(3C) of the Corparations Act. This Rermuneration Report forms part of the Directers’
Report.

In arder to achieve ils objective of delivering top quartile strategic operating and shareholder value performance
cempared to its peers in the Australian and international exploration and production industry, the Company
needs to have highly capable staff. Consistent with this objective, the Company’s remuneration strategy is
designed 1o atiract and retain appropriately qualified and experienced directors, executives and staff with the
necessary skills and atiributes to lead and manage the Company. The Company's remuneration strategy is
therefore critical to the delivery of the Company's overall strategic objectives.

In addition 1o attracting and retaining talent, Santos’ remuneration strategy alsc aims to erncourage its
employees o strive for superior performance by rewarding the achievement of targets that are fair. challenging,
clearly understood and within the control of employees to achieve through their own actions. For the Company's
rmost sentor staff, performance targets are prnimarily aligned with long-term shareholder value creation.

The Remuneration Report sets out remuneration information for the Company's non-executive Directors,
Managing Direclor and Senior Executives who are the key rmanagement personnel accountable for planning,
directing and controlling the affairs of the consolidated entity. They include the tive highest remunerated
executives of the Company and Group for the 2008 financial year, and are listed in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Non-executive Directors, Managing Director and Senior Executives

Execulive Non-Executive

Name Position Name Position

DJW Knox Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer’ S Gerlach Chairman

JH Anderson Vice President Commercial® KC Borda Director

JL Baulderstone | General Counset and Company Secretary PR Coates Deputy Chairman”

TJ Brown Vice President Geoscience and New Ventures KA Dean Director

MEJ Eames Vice President Corporate and People RA Franklin Director

RM Kennett Vice President Operations’ AM Harding Director

MS Macfarlane Vice President Development J Sloan Director

PC Wasow Chief Financial Offlce: 1. Appointed on 28 July 2008, formerly

RJ Wilkinson Vice President GLNG Acting Chief Executive Officer {from 25
March 2008 to 27 July 2008} and

Former - Executive Vice President Growth

JC Ellice-Flint Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer” Businesses (until 24 March 2008).

2. Appointed on 1 September 2008, formerly
Vice President Strategic Projects.

3. Seconded to GLNG Operations Pty Ltd on
24 July 2008.

4. Appointed on 1 September 2008. formerly
Vice President Commercial.

5. Departed 25 March 2008,

6. Appointed Director on 18 March 2008.
Appointed Deputy Chairman on
10 December 2008,

DELIVERING ON PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

2008 was an important year in Sanios' history, during which the achievement of key milestones shaped the
Company's future. The Company's ambition 1o be a significant supplier of energy 1o Asia 1ook a major step
forward through two significant achievements. First, the sale of a 40% interest in the Company’s GLNG project,
and the resultant joint venture with Petronas, the leading LNG player in the region. Second, the entry imo FEED
in the PNG LNG project. These achievements, together with the Company meeting its production guidance,
placed Santos as one of the premium growth stocks on the ASX as well as in the broader energy sector. Santos
was one of only eight ASX 100 companies whose share price grew during the severe stock market downturn in
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2008 and was also one of the top performing exploration and production companies internationally. The
achievernent of these significant milestones was an important aspect in the Company's 2008 rernuneration

deliberations.

David Knox assumed the position of Acting Chief Executive Officer upon the retirement of John Ellice-Flint on
25 March 2008, and was subsequently appoinied Managing Director and Chiel Executive Officer (CEO) on

28 July 2008, following an internaticnal search by the Company. The terms of Mr Knox's appointment were
outlined in an ASX release dated 29 July 2008. and are summarised on pages 11 to 14, Details of

Mr Ellice-Flint's retirement package we{e communicated to the market an 14 May 2008 and are summarised on

page 23.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's remuneration policy as set by the Board is summarised below.

Policy objective

Implementation approach

Non-executive
Drirectors

To enable the Company to prudently
secure and retain the services of
suitable individuals to serve as
Directors.

Directors’ tees are set taking into account,
among other things. fees paid for similar roles
in comparable companies, the commitment,
risk and responsibility accepted by nan-
executive Directors, and recognition of their
commercial expertise and experience.

To promote independence and
impartiality.

Non-executive Director remuneration does not
vary according to the performance of the
Company.

Ta align nen-executive Director and
shareholder interests by encouraging
the creation of long-term shareholder
value.

Purchase of the Company's shares by
Directors is facilitated via the Non-executive
Director Share Plan.

Managing Director
and Senior
Executives

To enable the Company to prudently
secure and retain the services of
suitable individuals able 1o contribute
towards meeting its strategic
objectives.

Executive remuneration levels are market-
aligned by comparison against similar roles in
comparable companies.

To encourage executives to strive for
superior performance by rewarding
achieverment of targets that are fair,
challenging, clearly understoed and
within the control of employees to
achieve through their own actions.

A significant component of executive
remuneration is driven by Company and
individual performance through the Ccmpany's
short-term and long-term incentive programs.
These components of remuneration are “at
risk”, so executives only derive value from
participating in these programs where they
satisty challenging performance hurdles.

Individual performance alsc affects base
remuneration. The Board intends the base
remuneration of cansistently high-performing
executives to be higher, in market terms, than
that of others.

To align executive and shareholder
interests by encouraging the creation
of long-term shareholder value.

Part of executive remuneration is delivered in
share-based payments, in crder to align
executive and shareholder interests.

Consistent with the objective of creating a
meaningful alignment of interests. Directors
and Senior Executives are not permitied to
hedge their shareholdings or Long Term
Incentives (LTIs) unless those securities have
futlly vested and are no longer subject to
restrictions. Breaches of this policy will be
subject to appropriate sanctions. which could
include disciplinary action or termination of
employment.
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DETAILS OF REMUNERATION POLICY IMPLEMENTATION IN 2008
Non-executive Director remuneration

Maximum aggregate amount

Total non-executive Directors’ fees paid in a year, including Board commitiee fees, cannot exceed $2,100,000.
This amount was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 2 May 2008. Directers may
alse be paid additional fees for special duties or exertions, and are enlilled to be reimbursed for a2ll business-
related expenses. These paymenis are not included in the maximum aggregate amount approved by
sharehclders. No additional fees were paid during the year.

2008 Non-executive Directors' fees

Within the maximum aggregate amouni approved by shareholders, fees are set for Board and Committee
responsibilities. An external review of Directors' fees was undertaken by Egan Associates in December 2007,
which included benchmarking comparisons of non-executive directors’ fees for similar companies and
consideration of the responsibilities and time commitments required from each Director to discharge their
duties. Recormmendations arising from this review resulted in approval by the Board of a revised scale of
payment, effective from 1 July 2008. An extension of this review, conducted in January 2009 by Egan
Associates. also provided benchmark data for remuneration for the new Deputy Chairman's role. The Board
adopted the recommended fees with eflect from the date of appointment of the Deputy Chairman on

10 December 2008, Directors’ fee rates are provided in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Non-executive Directors’ fees per annum

Beard Committees
Chair’ Deputy Chair’ Member Chair Member
| Annual Fees $435,000 $217,500 $145,000 $12.000 - $30,000 $5.000 - $15.000

' The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Board do not receive any additional fees for serving on or chairing any Board
commitiee,

Superannuation and retirement benefits

Superannuation contributicns are made on behalf of non-executive Directors in accordance with the
requirerments of the Company’s statutory superannuation obligations.

Non-executive Directors appointed prior to 1 January 2004 (Participating Directors) are contractually entitied 1o
receive benelits upon their retirement pursuant to agreements entered into upon their appointment, the terms of
which were approved by shareholders at the 1989 AGM. Non-executive Directors appointed after 1 January
2004 are not entitled to receive a benefil upon retirement other than statutory entitlements.

The retirement benelits of Participating Directors were frozen with effect from 30 June 2004, at which time their

cnlitlenienla veased tw avwrus, | luwever, b pevertl eresiorn in the real value of the hveon benslita, Uie Doansd
determined that from 1 July 2007 the benefits would be indexed annually against the five-year Australian
Government Bond Rate.

Table 3 below shows the increase in Participating Directors’ frozen benefits as a result of indexation in 2008.
Full provision has been made for these retirement benefits.

Table 3: Non-executive Director retirement benefits

Director Benefit as at 1 January 2008 Increase as a result of Benelit as at 31 December
indexation 2008

S Gerlach $1,168.650 $39,897 $1,208,547

J Sloan $358.382 $12.235 $370.617
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Non-executive Director Share Plan

The Non-executive Director Share Plan (NED Share Plan) was introduced in July 2007 following shareholder
approval at the 2007 Annual General Meeting. Participation in the NED Share Plan is voluntary and all present
and future non-executive Direclors are eligible to participate. Under the NED Share Plan, Directors elect to
sacrifice all or part of their pre-tax fees in return for an allocation of shares of equivalent value, The NED Share
Plan therefore does not involve any additional remuneration for participating Directlors,

Shares are allocated quarterly and are either issued as new shares or purchased on the ASX at the prevailing
market price. The shares are registered in the name of the participating Director, but are subject to a restriction
cn dealing. In the absence of exceptional circumstances, the restriction will apply until the Director ceases to
hold office or until ten years have elapsed since the allocation of the shares, whichever is earlier.

Details of the shares allocated to Directors under the NED Share Plan during the year are set out in Table 4
below,

Table 4: 2008 NED Share Plan allocations

Director Q1 2008 Q2 2008 Q3 2008 Q4 2008 Total
allocation’ allocation® allocation® allocation®

KC Borda 2,316 1,654 2,188 2,770 8,928
PR Coates 336 1,564 2,412 3,105 7417
KA Dean 697 497 535 807 2,640
S Gerlach 985 703 911 1,151 3,750
RM Harding 296 211 273 345 1.125
J Sloan « 2,746 1,961 2,143 2,646 5,496

1 Shares were allocated to the participating Directors on 4 April 2008 at $14.8381 per share.

2 Shares were allocated to the participating Directors on 3 July 2008 at $20.7745 per share.

3 Shares were allocated to the participating Directors on 7 October 2008 at $17.8867 per share.

4  Shares were altocated to the participating Directors on 30 December 2008 at $14.16878 per share,

Details of remuneration paid to non-executive Directaors
Details of the fees and other benefits paid to Directors during 2008 are set out in Table 5 below.

Table 5; 2008 Non-executive Director remuneration details

Share-
Short-term benefits Retirement benefits based
payments
Directors’ Fees for Total
fees (incl special Other 2 Superannuatiosn |rnectirfear§2r:? NED Share
Committee | duties or contributions benefit Plan
tees) ! exertions
S Gerlach $350.625 - $4.796 $13,437 $39.867 $61,875 | $470,630
KC Borda $0 - - $13.060 - $147.141 1 $160.201
PR Coates $0 - - $10,246 - $124.644 | $134,890
KA Dean $i30,687 - - $13,437 - $43.563 | $187.687
HA Franklin $150,250 - - $813 - - $151,063
RM Harding $167,287 - - $6,872 - $18,588 | $192.747
J Sloan $0 - - $13,3786 $12.235 $157,342 | $182.953

1 Refer Table 2 above for details of annual Directors’ fees and Committee fees. Figure shown is after fee sacrifice 1o NED
Share Plan.

2 This figure represents the value of car parking provided to the Chairman in the Company's head office in Adelaide.

3 Ingludes superannuation quarantee payments. Superannuation guarantee payments are made to Mr Franklin only in
relation to days worked in Australia.

IS
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Share-
Short-term benefits Retirement benelits based
paymenis
[fDirectprs!‘ Fees ’folr s . Increase 1o Total
ees (inc specia .
Comn‘fiﬁee duF;ies or Other * c%?w?:iatiaz;}l;?\tsl%n retlremg?nt NEglirare
Fees) ' exerlions benefit
S Gerlach $252.229 - $4.788 £111,678 $37.925 $35,000 | $445,620
K C Beorda $51,704 - - $10,672 - $68.750 | $131.1286
K A Dean $107,575 - - $54,282 - $16,550 | $178,407
R A Franklin $140,512 - - $3,185 - - $143,707
R M Harding $39,600 - - $136,440 - $8,800 | $184,840
C J Recny ” $19,589 - - $1,763 - - $21,352
J Sloan $0 - - $94,407 $11.630 $81.500 | $187.537

1 Figure shown is after fee sacrifice to superannuation and/or NED Share Plan.

2 This figure represents the value of car parking provided to the Chairman in the Company’s head office in Adelaide.
3 Includes superannuation guaraniee payments and any voluntary fee sacrifice to superannuation.

4 Payment to deceased estate.

Managing Director and CEO remuneration
Remuneration components and their relative weightings

Total remuneration for the Managing Director and CEQ, Mr DJW Knox, is made up of the following
components:

+ Base remuneration — comprising salary and superannuation;

» Short-term Incentive {STI) — an annual bonus linked to Company performance and achievement of strategic
objectives; and

s bLong-term Incentive (LT} — equity grants tied to vesting conditions dependent on Santos” achievernent of
superior performance relative to the ASX100,

The Board received external advice on Mr Knox's remuneration package, which is benchmarked against the
remuneration paid to Managing Directors/CEQOs of comparable companies in the industry.

The relative weightings of the three components comprising the Managing Directer and CEQ's total
remuneration are provided below,

Table 7: Relative weightings of remuneration compenents’

% of total remuneration (annualised)

Fixed remuneration Performance-based remuneration

8TI LTI

37% 26% 3I7%

Managing Director

1 These figures reflect the annualised weightings of the Managing Director and CEQ's remuneration components (based
on target performance for the "at risk" components). The figures do not reflect the relative weightings of the remuneration
compoeonents paid to Mr Knox in 2008, as Mr Knox did not serve as Managing Director for the full period. These figures do
not reflect the relative value derived by Mr Knox from each of the components, which is dependent on actual performance
against targels for the “at risk” components. This is discussed in the STl and LTI sections below,

Base remuneration

Mr Knox is paid Tolal Fixed Remuneration {TFR}, out of which the Company makes contributions into his
accumulation superannuation fund of at least the minimum statutory amount. He may, it he wishes, salary
sacrifice part of his TFR for additional superannuation contributions or cther benefits such as a novated car
lease. Under his service agreement, TFR far the Managing Director and CEQ is set at $1.75 million per annum,
subject to annual review. Mr Knox’s TFR for the 2008 financial year (as set out in Table 9 below) was pro-rated
according o the various roles he held during the peried,

Santes Limited: Directors’ Statutory Report & Remuneration Report 2008
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Short-term Incentive (STI)

The Managing Director and CEQ has a maximum annual STi opportunity of 100% of TFR. subject to
achievement of applicable performance targets set by the Board. For the 2008 financial year, Mr Knox's
maximurn ST| was pro-rated for the varicus roles he held during the period (that is, his maximum STI amount of
$1,358.167 reflects a pro-rated portion of the maximum amount he could have earned from the roles held
during the year).

Consistent with his role as Managing Directar and CEQ, Mr Knox's performance measures comprise a
combination of financial and operaticnal targets, all of which are directly related to strategic objectives set by
the Board. The Board believes that this method of setling perlormance targets focuses the Managing Director

and CEO's attention on achieving the key conditions and milestones necessary to achieve the Board's strategic
plan for the Company.

At the end of each financial year, the Remuneration Committee assesses performance against the objectives
set by the Board, and rmakes recommendations to the Board regarding Mr Knox's performance and the
appropriate level of ST award. The Board believes this method of assessment provides a balanced
assessment of the Managing Director and CEC's overall performance.

For the 2008 performance period, as outlined above, Mr Knox's STl targets were based on agreed objectives
linked to Company perfiormance targets and delivery of its strategic growth initiatives. Consistent with his role
as Managing Director and CEQ, these performance measures for 2008 included the Company's strategic
positioning in Australia and Asia. furtherance of its LNG projects (including formation of a strategic joint venture
for its GLNG project) and achievemnent of financial, operational and safety performance milestones.

Based on performance against these targets during the year, Mr Knox was awarded an ST! payment of
$1,100.000 cr 81% of the maximum STI payable. The dilference between actual STl paid and maximum STI
was forleited.

Long-term Incentive (LTI)

Overview of grants made to Mr Knox in 2008

On 3 May 2308, the Company made equity grants to its Senior Executives for the long-term incentive (LTI}
component of their remuneration for 2008. Mr Knox participated in these grants in his capacity as Acting Chief
Executive Officer. The grants comprised;

= aperformance-based component, equal to 71% of the total grant value (Performance Award}: and
e aservice-based component, equal 1o 29% of the total grant value (Deferred Award}.
The key terms of the Performance Award and Deferred Award are set out on pages 16 to 18.

Upon his formal appointment as CEO, Mr Knox received a further grant of equity awards {CEQ Performance
Award) to supplement the grants already made to him in his Senior Executive capacity.

THE Yranns made o M KO0x 12006 GuNstiule IS (il LT eNUueinenn ron the 2uus, 2009 did 20 10 (gl
years.

All LTI grants were delivered in the form of:

= Share Acquisition Rights (SARs) - a conditional entittement 1o a fully paid ordinary share at zero price,
subject to satisfaction of vesting conditions; or

» Options - an entitlement to acquire a fully paid ordinary share al a predetermined price, subject to
satisfaction of vesting conditions.

Table 8 below contains details of the number and value of SARs and Options granted to Mr Knox in 2008,
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Table 8: SARs and Options granted 1o Mr Knox in 2008’
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Grant name Number of SARs granted Number of Options granted Maximum value of grant <

CEQ Performance Award Tranche 1 35,973 | Tranche 1 94,193 | Tranche 1 51,040,640
Tranche 2 50,403 | Tranche 2 131,978 | Tranche 2 $990,405
Tranche 3 50,403 | Tranche 3 131,978 | Tranche 3 $990,0686

2008 Awards prior to CEQ

Appointiment

Performance Award - 64,992 $341,208

Deferred Award - 21,837 $159,410

13

1 The grants made to Mr Knox during the year constitute his full LTI awards for the 2008, 2009 and 2010 financial years. As the SARs
and options only vest on satisfaction of service andfor performance conditions to be tested in future financial yeass, none of the SARs
or options detailed above were forfeited during the year.

2  Maximum value represents the fair value of the LTI Awards as attheir grant date {being 3 May 2008 for the Performance Award and
Deterred Award and 28 July 2008 for the CEC Performance Award). The fair value per instrument at the grant date was:

CEQ Performance Award Tranche 1: SARs — $13.82, Options - $5.77

Tranche 2: SARs — $8.60, Cptions - $4.22
Tranche 3: SARs — $8.41, Options - $4.29

Options - $5.25
Options - $7.30

Pedormance Award
Deferred Award

Konte Care simulatien was used to determine the value of the SARs and options granted. Details of the assumptions underlying the
valuation are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements, The minimum tetal value of the grant, if the applicable vesting conditions
are not met, is nil in all cases.

These grants have been structured to provide Mr Knox with an annual LTl oppoertunity of 100% cf TFR (based
on the 2008 level of $1.75 million) for each of the 2008, 2009 and 2010 years, subject to achieving applicable
vesting conditions.

Summary of CEQ Performance Award

The CEO Performance Award operates on the same terms as the performance-based LTI granted 1o other
Senior Executives described on pages 16 to 18 below, 1hat is, it is subject to performance hurdles based on the
Company's TSR relative to the ASX 100 over a three year performance period. The Board believes the chosen
performance hurdles effectively align the CEQ's inleresis with that of the Company's sharehelders, as TSR is a
fair measure of shareholder returns and the ASX 100 represents the companies in which most of the
Company's shareholders could invest as an alternative to Santos.

As the CEC Performance Award forms pan of the Managing Director and CEQO's rermuneration for each of the
2008, 2009 and 2010 financial years, it is divided into 3 tranches as lollows:

Tranche 7: Tested over the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010
Tranche 2: Tested over the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011
Tranche 3: Tested over the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.

Depending on Santos’ relative TSR over the applicable performance period, each iranche of the CEOQ
Perfarmance Award will vest in accordance with the following schedule:

TSR percentile ranking % of grant vesting

< 50th percentile 0%

= 50th percentile 37.5%

51st 10 75th percentile 39% to 75%

76th 1o 100th percentile 76% to 100%

Full vesting of the CEQ Performance Award will only occur where Santos' TSR growth over the performance
period exceeds that of all other companies in the comparator group, and therefore requires exceptional
performance.

.
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There is no re-testing of the performance conditions. SARs or options which rermain unvested following testing
of the performance condition will lapse.

Upen vesting of SARs, ordinary shares in Santos will automatically be allocated to Mr Knox. These shares will
be subject to restrictions until the earlier of ten years fromn the grant date, cessation of employment, or the date
at which the Board approves, at Mr Knox's request, the removal of the restrictions. Options may be exercised at
any time between the vesting date and the expiry date (27 July 2018), subject to payment of the exercise price
of $17.38 per oplion (being the volume weighted average price in the week up to and including the grant date).

2008 Remuneration details for Mr DJW Knox

Table 9: 2008 remuneration details for Mr DJW Knox'

Short-term employee benefits Post- Share-based Termin- Other Total % at
employment paymerits® ation long-term risk
Base ST Other Super- SARs Options benefits”
salary annuation
$ $ $ $ % $ 3 $ $
1,200.115] 1,100,000 - 54,745 381,824 418,382 - 39,593 3,194,659 | 59%

1 Remuneration paid to Mr Knox in 2008 varied according to each of the three positions he held during the year,

2  In accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards, remuneration includes a proportion of the notional
value of equity compensation granted or outstanding during the year. The notional value of equity instruments which do
not vest during the reporting period is determined as at the grant date and is progressively allocated over the vesting
period. The amount included as remuneration is not related to or indicative of the benefit (if any) that Mr Knox may
ultimately realise should the equity instruments vest. The notional value of SARs and options as at their date of grant
was determined in accordance with AASB 2 "Share Based Payment” applying the Monte Carle simulation method.
Oetaits of the assumptions underlying the valuation are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements. Of the total
remuneration for Mr Knox for the year, 25% consisted of SARs and options.

3 This amount represents the value of long service leave accrued in 2008.
4 This amount represents the STI award made for the 2008 financial year, which will be paid in March 2009,
Service Agreement

The Company entered info a service agreement with the Managing Director and CEC on 28 July 2008, which is
ongoing until termination by the Managing Director and CEQ, or the Company.

The service agreement provides that the Company may terminate the Managing Director and CEO's
employment on giving 12 manths’ notice. Where the Company exercises this general right to terminate, it must
make a payment to the Managing Director and CEO equivalent to his TFR for the full notice period. Pro-rata STl
entilements, subject to performance, will apply 10 the date of termination and the Board retains discretion to
vesl any outstanding LTI, having regard to perfarmance and reasons for termination.

The Company may terminate the Managing Director and CEC's employment at any time for cause. No payment
in liew of notice, ncr any payment in respect of STl or LT| will be made in this circumstance.

Mr Knox may initiale termination of his service agreement by giving the Company six months’ notice, in which
case he will be entitled to payment of TFR in respect of the notice period and pro rata ST1 1o the date of
termination, subject to performance. The Board retains discretion to vest any outstanding LTI, having regard to
periormance and reasons for termination. Mr Knox may also initiate termination of his service agreement
immediately if there is a fJundamental change in his role or responsibilities without his consent. In this
circumstance the service agreement provides for payment of 12 months’ TFR, full STl for the year in which
employment is terminated and a pro rata portion of the lollowing year's STI, subject to current year
performance. Pro rata vesting of ouistanding LT! will apply, based on the expired portion of the performance
periocd and pertormance achieved to the termination date.
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Senior Executive remuneration

Remuneration components and their relative weightings

Total rermuneration for Senior Executives is made up of the following components:

» Base remuneralicn — comprising salary and superannuation;

* Short-term incentives (STI) — annual bonuses tied to individual and Company performance; and

+ Long-term incentives (LTI} — equity grants tied to vesting conditions tested over a three-year period.

Santos’ executive remuneration struciure is consistent with the Company’s “pay for performance” policy.

The relative weightings of the three components comprising the Senior Executives' total remuneration are
provided in Table 10 below.

Table 10: Relative weightings of remuneration components’

15

% of total remuneration {annualised)

Fixed remuneration Performance-based remuneration
TFR STI LTI

Executive Vice Presidents
and Chief Financial Officer 52% 27% 21%
Other Senior Executives 57% 20% 23%

1 These figures reflect the relative weightings used by the Company to determine the size of STl and LTI allocations to
Senior Executives. The figures do not reflect the relative value derived by Senior Executives from each of the
components. which is dependent on actual performance against targets for the "at risk” components.

Base remuneration

Salary and
superannuation

Senior Executives are paid Total Fixed Remuneration (TFR}, out of which the
Company makes contributions inte their superannuation funds of at least the
minimum statutory amount. They may, if they wish, salary sacrifice part of their
TFR for additional superannuation contributions or other benefits such as
novated car leases.

Benefils

Senior Execulives do not receive any benefits in addition to TFR.

Market alignment

Executive remuneration levels are market-alianed by comparison to similar roles
in ASX 100 energy, materials and ulilities companies, excluding BHP Billiton and
Rio Tinto due 1o their disproportionately larger size and market capitalisation.
This broad industry group is used as there are {oo few Australian exploration and
production companies of similar size 1o Santos {or benchmarking purposes.

Short-term Incentive

Frequency

STi is assessed and paid annually.

Maximum STI

75% of TFR for Executive Vice Presidents.
50% of TFR for other Senior Executives.

Merformanrce migasurca

To pramute cullabaratiorn armweryg Oenivr Cascutives ard to focuas their offarts
towards the overall benefit of the Company, 70% of their STl is based on
Company performance. The remaining 30% is based on the executive's
individual performance.

A range of Company performance metrics is used in order to drive balanced
business performance. These metrics include lagging indicators to assess the
Company's past performance, as well as forward-locking indicators to ensure
the Campany is positioning itself effectively for future growth. The metrics
include reserve growth, reserve replacement cost, production. margin, new
growth options, shareholder value creation, people, environment, health and
satety and continuous improvement. Individual periormance is assessed against
targets set within each executive's area of responsibility.
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Assessment of Individual performance is assessed by the Managing Director and CEO.
perfarmance
Company pericrmance is assessed by the Remuneration Commitiee,

Each metric is assessed against target and assigned a score on a five-point
scale. The average of these scores forms the overall Company performance
score.

The Board believes the ahove methods of assessment are rigorous and
transparent and provide a balanced assessmeni of the executive's performance.

Payment method Cash.

ST awarded in 2008 Company perfoermance against the metrics in 2008 resulted in an average STI of
80% of maximum payable to all eligible employees.

2008 STl awards made to individual Senior Executives ranged from 56% {0 94%
of maximum. The dilference between actual ST| paid and maximum ST| was
forteited.

Long-term Incentives

DCuring the year, the Company made equity grants to its Senior Executives as the long-term incentive (LTI}
component of their remuneration for 2008. The grants comprised:

» aperiormance-based component, equalto 71% of the total grant value (Perfarmance Award); and

*» aservice-based component, equal to 29% of the total grant value (Deferred Award).

All LTI grants were detivered, at the execulive's election. in the form of either:

= Share Acquisition Rights (SARs) - a conditional entitlement to a fully paid ordinary share at zero price,
subject 1o satisfaction of vesting conditions; or

= Oplions - an entitlement to acquire a fully paid ordinary share at a predetermined price, subject to
satistaction of vesting conditions.

Grant sizes were market-aligned.

For the Pertormance Award. an additional 50% of the award was added to the standard grant for Relative TSR
performance above the 75" percentile, up to the 100™ percentile of the comparator group. Consistent with its
remuneration philosophy, the Board believes il is appropriate to provide executives with an additional incentive
to strive for exceptional performance, recognising that executives will only benefit from the additional 50%
where Santos achieves a ranking in the top quartile of its comparator group. Executives will only receive the full
benefit of this additional component where Santos cutperforms all other carmpanies in the comparator group in
delivering superior returns io shareholders.

Vesting details of the Performance Award and the Deferred Award are summarised in Table 11 below. In

addition, Table 12 contains details of the number and value of SARs and options granted to Senior Executives
in 2008 under the Performance Award and the Deferred Award.
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Table 11: Performance Award and Deferred Award vesting details
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Pertormance Award

Deferred Award

Vesting period

1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.

3 May 2008 to 2 May 2011,

Vesting Vesting of this grant is based on relative TSR Vesting of the Detlerred Award is based on
condition against ASX 100 companies as at 1 January continuous service to 2 May 2011, or three
2008. years from the grant date.

Vesting 0% if the continuous service condition is not

schedule Santos TSR percentile 96 of standard grant met.

ranking vesting
< 50th percentile

0%
= 50th percentile

50%

51st to 75th percentile
52% to 100%
76" to 100" percentile

102% to 150%

100% if the continuous service condition is
met.

Exercise price

$15.39 ior options, being the volurme weighted
average price in the week up to and including the
grant date of 3 May 2008.

SARs have no exercise price.

As for Performance Award.

Exercise Options may be exercised at any time between As for Performance Award.
period the vesting date and the expiry date.
Upon vesting of SARs, shares will automatically
be allocated to the executive.
Expiry/lapse SARs and options that do not vest upon testing of | SARs and options will lapse where the

the performance condition will lapse. There is no
re-testing of the performance condition if it is not
satisfied.

Vested oplions will expire if not exercised before
3 May 2018.

service condition is not satisfied.

Vested options will expire if not exercised
before 3 May 2018.

Cessation/
change of
control

Upcn cessation of employment, SARs which
have not already vested and options which are
not exercisable will, in general, lapse and be
forfeited.

However. if cessation occurs due to death,
disability or redundancy, or in special
circumstances approved by the Board, then a
proportion of the SARs and options may vest and
become exercisable.

Where there is a change in control, the Board
may determine whether, and the extent to which,
SARs and options may vest.

As for Performance Award.
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Table 12: SARs and Options granted to Senior Executives in 2008™M

L0/ L3OO rax

Executive Grant name Number of SARs Number of Maximum value ef grant
granted Optians @
granted

JH Andersen Performarnce Award 34,290 180,023
Deferred Awargd 11,247 82,103

JL Baulderstone Performance Award 31,384 184,766
Deferred Award 10,204 75,146

TJ Brown Performance Award 33,925 178,106
Defterred Award 9,092 66,372

WMEJ Eames Performance Award 40,412 212,163
Deferred Award 13,255 96,762

R Kennett FPerformance Award 13,304 149 404
Deferred Award 4,364 73,010

MS Mactarlane Performance Award 34,602 181,661
Deferred Award 10,380 75,774

PC Wazow Performance Award 17,485 198,357
Deterred Award 5,735 95,947

RJ Wilkinson Performance Award 13,641 153,188
Deferred Award 4474 74,850

QTIVer

(1) The grants made to the Senior Executives during the year constitute their full LTI awards for the 2008 financial year. As the SARs and
options only vest on satisfaction of service andfor perfarmance conditions to be tested in fulure financial years, none of the SARs o
options detailed above were fordeited during the year,

(2) Maximum value represents the fair value of the Performance Award and Deferred Award as at their grant date (being 3 May 2008}.

The fair value per instrument at the grant date was:
SARs - $11.23, Options - $5.25
SAHRsS - $16.73, Options - $7.30

Perdormance Award

Deferred Award

tMonte Carlo simulatien was used to determine the value of the SARs and options granted. Details of the assumptions underdying the
valuation are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements, The minimum fotal value of the grant, it the applicable vesting conditions
are not met, is el in all cases.
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Prior year LTI grants to Senior Executives

The following LTI grants were still in progress or were tested during 2008:
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Grant Grant type Vesting condition(s) Performance/ Status
year vesting period
2005 Performance | « Relative TSR performance 1 January 2005 to Girant tested during the year,
Awvard against ASX 100 companies 31 December 2007 resulting in:
{50% of grant) s Full vesting of 50% of the grant
» Relative TSR performance as the Company's TSR ranked
against Australian and at the 75th percentile of the
internaticnal £&P companies ASX100 comparator group; and
{50% of grant) » No vesting of 50% of the grant
as the Company ranked below
the 50th percentile of the E&P
comparator group.
2006 Performance | ¢ Relative TSR performance 1 January 2006 to Grant tested after the end of
Award against ASX 100 companies 31 December 2008 financial year resulting in fuli
{509 of grant) vesting of the grant as the
+ Relative TSR performance Company's TSR ranked above the
against Australian and 75" percentile of both the ASX100
international E&P companies comparator group and the E&F
(50% of grant) comparator group.
2007 Performance « Relative TSR performance 1 January 2007 to Still in progress.
Award against Australian and 31 December 2009
internationa! E&P companies
(50% of grant)
« Absolute TSR target of 11%
per annum compound {50% of
grant)
Deferred Continuous service 1 July 2007 to Siill in progress.
Award 30 June 2010
2008 Performance Relative TSR perfermance 1 January 2008 to Still in progress.
Award against ASX 100 companies 31 December 2010
Cwfaves Carmtinueus se e 2 by QOO0 te CHill im preagrese.
Award 2 May 2011
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The value derived by Senior Execulives during 2008 in respect of LTls granted in previcus financial years is set

outin Table 12 below. Table 13 also contains details of prior year LTls that lapsed or were forfeited during
2008.

Table 13: Senior Executives' LTI remuneration outcomes in 2008

: Vested Exercised’ Farfeited/ Lapsed
Number Value” Number Value® Number Value® "

JH Anderson
SARs - - E - - -
Options 14,400 74,592 12.744 188,611 14,400 16,560
JL Baulderstene
SARs - - 1 - -
Cptions - - - - .
TJ Brown
SARs - - E - - -
Options 14,400 74 592 - - 14.400 16.560
MEJ Eames
SARs 9,800 133,672 1 9,800 45,374
Oplions - - - - 25.000 28,750
RM Kennett™
SARs 4 500 61,380 1 - 4.500 20,835
Options - - - - - -
MS Macfarlane
SARs 4 800 65,472 1 - 4 800 22,224
Options - - - . - -
PC Wasow
SARs 11.800 80 952 1 - 11.800 54 634
COptions - - - - - -
RJ Wilkinson
SARs 8.850 120,714 1 - 8,850 40,976
Options - - - - - -
Total SARs 39,750 542,180 1 188,611 392,750 184,043
Total Options 28.800 149.184 12,744 53,800 51.870

1 For each option exercised during the year, the relevant executive received one fully paid ordinary share in
the Company. Oplions were exercised on 20 June 2008, at an exercise price of $6.95 per option.

2 The value of each SAR on the date of vesting is based on the closing market price of Santos Limited shares
on ASX on the preceding trading day. The value of each option on the date of vesting is based on the
difference between the closing market price of Santos Limited shares on ASX on the preceding trading day
and the relevant exercise price.

3 The value cof each option exercised during the year is based on the difference between the closing market
price of Santos Limited shares on ASX cn the preceding trading day and the relevant exercise price.

4 The value of a SAR or option on the day it lapsed represents the benefit foregone as determined by the
Monte Carlo valuation method at the date the SAR or option was granted.
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2008 Senior Executive Remuneration Details

Table 14: 2008 Senior Executive remuneration details

21

Short-term employee benefits Post- Share-based payments” Termination | Other long Total 9% at rik
employment term
(LT1) 3
benefits
Base
salary sTI! Cther Superannuation SARs Options
JH Andersen $468,021 | $205,000 - $486.689 $122,742 $80,852 - $12,228 $937,532 44%
JL Bauldersione | $465.734 | $250,000 - $46.326 $111.832 $119,641 - $12,030 $1,005,563 48%
TJ Brown $500,023 | $i145,000 $18,523" $123,651 $77,719 - $11,803 $876,720 40%
MEJ Eames $551.505 | $220,000 - $57.455 $173.306 $68,558 - $14,078 $1,084,501 43%
AM Kenneit® $484,297 | $235,000 | $22,430° $64,315" $147.201 - - $12,983 $966,228 40%
MS Maciarlane | $471,282 | $205,000 - $49,029 $122,742 $79,811 - $12,056 $939,919 43%
2C Wasow $830,548 | $585,000 - $13,289 $255,239 - - $22.839 $1,718,718 50%
]J Witkinson $485,676 | $255,000 | $5.282° $90.260 $201.462 - - $11.881 $1,049,361 43%

1 This amount reflects the accounting value ascribed ic the superannuation benefit reflecting the services provided during the petiod, The actual contribution made during

2008 by the Company in respect of the current and future entitlements of T J Brown and R M Kennett was $13,289 and $57,526 respectively.

2 In accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards, remuneration includes a proportion of the notional value of equity compensation granted or outstanding
during the year. The notional value of equity instruments which do not vest during the reporting period is determined as at the grant date and is progressively allocated
over the vesting period. The amount included as remuneration is not related to or indicative of the benefit (if any} that individual executives may ultimately realise should
the equity instruments vest. The notional value of SARs and options as at their date of grant was determined in accordance with AASB 2 "Share Based Payment” applying
the Monte Carlo valuation method, Details of the assumptiens underlying the valuation are set out in Note 30 to the financial statemants. The amounts set out above
include a proportion of the value of SARs and Options granted during 2008 under the Performance Award and Deferred Award as well ag a proportion of the value of

o ;A W

SARs and options granted in previous financial years that had not vested as at 1 January 2008. The percentage of each Senior Executive's total remuneration for the year
that consisted of SARs and options is as follows:

JH Anderson 22% RM Kennett 15%
JL Bauldersione 23% MS Macfarlane 22%
TJd Brown 23% PC Wasow 15%
MEJ Eames 22% RJ Wilkinson 19%

These amounts represent Senior Executives' long service leave accruals in 2008,
This amount represents the STI award made for the 2008 financial year, which will be paid in March 2008.
RM Kennett was seconded to GLNG Operations Pty Lid on 24 July 2008. Figures in this table represent his remuneration for the full 2008 year.

This amount represents allowances paid to RM Kennett for relocation to Brisbane and for incidental expenses for RJ Wilkinson relating to commuting between Adelaide
and Brisbane.

Santes Umited: Directors’ Statutory Report & Remunerstion Report 2008



rax oCrvecr

sALGE 1oL/l 1090

1o Al

BiRw ARV “F AT VAN D= BN IV I b |

[=retLiN QW i R

2007 Senior Executive Remuneration Dstails

Table 15: 2007 Senior Executive remuneration details
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Shori-term employee benefits Post- Share-based payments’ Terminatio | Other long Total % at risk
employment (LTi) n term
benefits*

Base

salary ST Other' Superannuation SARs Cpticns
JH Anderson $426,902 | $199,500 $1,944 $44,542 $61,371 $35.458 - $10.961 780,678 38%
JL Baulderstone Mm_ﬂmmmm $1 mﬂuOOO m_ uhmw ﬁwmwho @mm,m 16 @mmqmoo " - mm...um.ﬂwd 38%
TJ Brown $465.358 | $163,700 $1,944 $17.627¢ $61,626 | $36,330 . $11,031 757,818 35%
MEJ Eames $505,228 | $235,100 $1,944 $52.766 $135,576 $22,181 - $12916 | 985711 41%
RM Kennett $391,697 | $187,500 $1,976 $66.082° $72,549 - - $10,304 | 730,008 36%
DJW Knox® $230.403 | $143,300 - $21.792 $65.429 | $28.143 - - 439,067 48%
MS Macfarlane $426,902 | $180,700 $1,924 $44,542 $78517 | $22,682 - $10,961 | 766.248 37%
PC Wasow $631,261 $4086,500 $1,944 $12,686 $158,421 - - $14.904 | $,226,117 46%
RJ Wilkinson $411,455 | $207.800 $1.944 $81,752 $118,370 - - $10.524 631,846 39%

These amounts represent the cost of car parking provided panlly in the Company's old head office premises in Adelaide and partly in its current premises, w to 30 April
2007. Cn 1 May 2007, the cost of parking in the Company's current head office was added te TFR, and from then on Exacutives were required to obtain paking via salary

sacrifice.

This amount reflects the accounting value ascribed to the superannuation benefit reflecting the services provided during the period. The actual contributionsmade dwing

2007 by the Comparty in respect of the current and future entittements of TJ Brown and RM Kennett were $12,686 and $51,180 respectively.

In accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards. remuneration includes a propertion of the notional value of equity compensation grantedar qutstanding
during the year. The notional value of equity instruments which do not vest during the reporting periad is determined as at the grant date and is progressivey allocated
over the vesting period. The amount included as remuneration is not related to or indicative of the benefit [if any} that individual executives may ultimately ralise should
the equity instruments vest. The notional value of SARs and options as at their date of grant was determined in accordance with AASB 2 "Share Based Paynent” applying

the Monte Carlo valuation method. Details of the assumptions underlying the valuation are set out in Note 30 io the financial statements. The amounts set at above

incfude a proportion of the value of SARs and Options granted during 2007 under the Performance Grant and Growth Awards as well as a proportion of thevalue of SARs
and options granted in previous financial years that had not vested as at 1 January 2007. The percentages of each Senior Executive’s total remuneration fo the year that

consisted of SARs and options are as follows:

JH Anderson 1% AM Kennett 19%
JL Baulderstone 13% DJ Knox 12%
TJ Brown 12% PC Wasow 12%
ME. Eames 16% RJ Wilkinson 13%
MS Macfasiane 8%

These amounis represent Senior Executives’ long service leave accruals in 2007.
Mr DJW Knox was appoinied en 3 September 2007.
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Service Agreements — Senior Executives

The Company has entered into service agreements with the Senior Executives. The service agreements are
ongoing uil terrination by the Company upon giving 12 months’ notice or the Senior Executive upon giving
six months’ notice. In a Company-initiated termination, the Company may make a payment in lieu of notice
equivalent to the TFR the executive would have received over the notice period. All Senicr Executives' service
agreements may be terminated immediately for cause, whereupon no payments in lieu of notice or other
termination payments apply.

Former Managing Director and CEQO
Mr JC Ellice-Flint retired as Managing Director and CEO on 25 March 2008,

Consistent with the terms of his service agreement, Mr Ellice-Flint received the following benefits upon
cessation of his employment;

* a payment of $1.85 million equivalent to 12 months’ base salary;

* a payment of $855,262 in respect of annual and long service leave accrued at the date his employment
ceased,

» 2,312,500 optioné, which had not previously vesled, were vesied and became exercisable. In accordance
with the original terms of issue approved by shareholders, these options are exercisable, at an exercise
price of $11.236 per option, until 3 May 2016; and

*« a pro rated amount of his short term incentive potential for the period from 1 January to 31 March 2008
($520.312).

Whilst Mr Ellice-Flint officially stepped down as CEO on 25 March 2008, he continued to provide services 1o the
Company until 30 June 2008 in a consultancy capacity, for which he was paid $492.337.

Details of Mr Ellice-Flint's remuneration are shown in Table 16 below.

Table 16: Details of 2007 and 2008 remuneration for Mr JC Ellice-Flint

Short-term employee benefits Post- Share-based | Termination Other Total %, at
employment paymenis long-term
(LT benefits?
Super-
Base annuation
salary STI Other ! Options®
2008 | $433.135 | $520.312 - $1.172,553 |  $1.570.522 | g2 705262 : $6.401.784
2007 | $1.702.694 | $1.950,000 | $1.944" | $987.,357 $1.898,273 ) $42.601 | g6 582860

1 This amount reflects the accounting value asciibed to the superannuation benefit reflecting the services provided during
the period. The actual contribution made by the Company in respect of Mr Ellice-Flint's entitliements was $1.094,334 in
2007 and $208.250 in 2008.

2  In accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards, remuneration includes a preportion of the notional
value of equity compensation granted or outstanding during the year. The notional value of equity instruments which do
not vest during the reporting period is determined as at the grant date and is progressively allccated over the vesting
period. The notichal value of SARs and options as at their date of grant was determined in accordance with AASB 2
"Share Based Payment’ applying the Monte Carlo valuation method. Details of the assumptions underlying the
valuation are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements, The amounts set out above include a proportion of the value
of options granted to Mr Ellice-Flint in 2006 that had not vested as at 1 January 2007 and 1 January 2008. Of Mr Ellice-
Flint's total remuneration for the year, 29% consisted of options in 2007 and 25% consisted of options in 2008.

3  This amount represents the cost of car parking provided in the period 1 January 2007 - 30 April 2007. From 1 May
2007. the cost of parking in the Company's new head office was paid by the Managing Birecltor,

4 This amount represents long service leave accrued in 2007.
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LINK BETWEEN COMPANY PERFORMANCE, SHAREHOLDER WEALTH AND REMUNERATION -
2004 TO 2008
Table 17 sets out the Group's performance over the past five years in respect of the key financial and non-
financial indicators used to measure year-on-year periormance. Table 17 also shows how the size of the ST1
pool available to Senior Executives has varied aver this period based on the level of performance achieved
each year across these key indicators.
Table 17: Key indicators of short-term Company performance 2004 — 2008

2004 2005 2008 2007 2008
Safety {lotal recordable case frequency 6.4 4.9 6.4 53 5.8
rate)
Production (mmboe) 47.1 56.0 61.0 58.1 54.4
Reserve replacement cost - 1P (A$/boe) 17 13 15 13 13
Reserve replacement rate - 1P (%) 127 218 143 175 160
Proven plus probable reserves — 2P 643 774 819 879 1.013
Netback (A$/boe) 20 30 33 33 36
Al ,_._,_‘:J [l L PR DR | o At~ islal AN LAkl A 2N
Earnings per share (cents) 54 124 103 55 273
Dividends per ordinary share (cenis) 30 36 40 40 42
Size of ST! pool {% of maximum) 80.0 85.0 70.0 80.0 80.0

The graphs below show the relationship over the past five years between the Company's TSR and share price
agrowth, being two key indicators of long-term Company performance, and the percentage of LTI grants to
Senior Executives that vested. The graphs demonstrate how the level of Senior Executive reward derived from
their LTl grants is dependent upon the delivery of sustained above-average returns to shareholders.

1

e

2 S
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The TSR growth shown above incorporates dividends and capital returns the Company made to shareholders
during the past tive years. Dividends paid by the Company in the past five years are as follows:

(Dividends per ordinary share) .

2004  $0.30
2006  $0.40
2007 $0.40
2008 $0.42

The following capital returns were made in the 2004 — 2008 period:

» |In conjunction with its $800 million offering of Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares {or FUELS), on
A0 Septeamhesr 2004 the Campany redesamed and hranght hack the entire 3 500,000 Raaat Cnnvartihla
Preference Shares on issue at that date. 2.865.821 were redeemed at face value and reinvested in FUELS.
489,774 shares were bought back for $105 each arnd cancelled, and 144,405 were redeemed at face value.

« On 30 June 2007, the Company bought back 24,671,275 fully paid ordinary shares, representing 4.10% of

2005 $0.36
! fully paid ordinary shares cn issue at that date, at a price of $12.16 per share.

» (On 6 October 2008, the Company bought back 18,487,305 fully paid ordinary shares, representing 3.07%
of fully paid shares on issue at that date, at a price of $16.23 per share.

END
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